
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

There will be a Regular meeting of the City of Stoughton Utilities Committee on Monday, April 

20, 2015 to be held at 5:00 p.m. in the Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room of the Stoughton 

Utilities Administration Office in the Stoughton Utilities Building, 600 S. Fourth Street, 

Stoughton, WI 53589 

 

AGENDA: 

 

Call To Order. 

Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda.  (All items are considered routine and will 

be enacted upon by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 

Stoughton Utilities Committee member so requests, in which event the item will be removed 

from the consent agenda and be considered on the regular agenda.)  (Action.) 

a) Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report.   

b) Draft Minutes of the March 16, 2015 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting.  

c) Stoughton Utilities February 2015 Financial Summary.   

d) Stoughton Utilities February 2015 Statistical Information.   

e) Stoughton Utilities Communications.   

f) Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar.   

g) Stoughton Utilities March 2015 Activities Report. 

 

BUSINESS: 

 

1. Status of the Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) to the Stoughton 

Common Council. (Discussion.) 

2. Stoughton Utilities 2014 Audit Report And Management Letter.  (Action.) 

3. Stoughton Utilities Proposed Electric And Water Tax Stabilization Dividends.  

(Action.) 

4. Stoughton Utilities Proposed Water Rate Adjustment.  (Action.) 

5. Stoughton Utilities Light Emitting Diode (LED) Streetlight Conversion Program.  

(Discussion.)     

6. Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Item(s).  (Discussion.) 

   

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Mayor Donna L. Olson, Chairperson  

Stoughton Utilities Committee  

April 14, 2015 

 

Notices Sent To: 

Mayor Donna L. Olson, Chairperson 

Alderperson Eric Hohol, Vice-Chairperson and Common Council Liaison 

Alderperson Thomas Majewski 

Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu, Alternate Common Council Liaison  

Stoughton Utilities Committee Citizen Member David Erdman 

Stoughton Utilities Citizen Member John D. Kallas 

Stoughton Utilities Citizen Member Alan Staats 

Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent Sean Grady 

Stoughton Utilities Director Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 

 



cc: Stoughton Common Council Members 

 Stoughton City Attorney Matthew P. Dregne 

 Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor Brian G. Erickson 

 Stoughton Utilities Billing and Consumer Services Technician Erin N. Goldade 

 Stoughton Utilities Engineering Technician Scott S. Grady 

 Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor Brian R. Hoops 

 Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager Kim M. Jennings, CPA 

Stoughton City Clerk Lana Kropf 

 Stoughton Utilities Lead Lineman John V. McLain 

 Stoughton Utilities and WPPI Energy Energy Services Representative Cory Neeley 

Stoughton Utilities and Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin Safety Coordinator Andrew 

Paulson 

 Stoughton Leadership Team 

Oregon Observer, Stoughton Newspapers and Wisconsin State Journal 

 

IMPORTANT:  FIVE MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A QUORUM:  If a Stoughton Utilities 

Committee member encounters a situation that may affect your scheduled participation, please 

contact Robert Kardasz or Sean Grady at 877-7423 or 877-7416 respectively prior to 5:00p.m. or via 

email at bkardasz@stoughtonutilities.com. 

 

It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of members of other committees of the 

Common Council of the City of Stoughton may be in attendance at the above-mentioned meeting to 

gather information.  No action will be taken by any such group(s) at the above-mentioned meeting 

other than the Stoughton Utilities Committee consisting of Mayor Donna Olson, Alderperson Eric 

Hohol, Alderperson Thomas Majewski, Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu, Citizen Member 

David Erdman, Citizen Member John Kallas, and Citizen Member Alan Staats.     

 

Please note that items taken on the Consent Agenda will not be discussed.  Any individual Stoughton 

Utilities Committee member may request an item be removed from the consent. 

 

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals 

through appropriate aids and services.  For information or to request this service, please contact the 

Stoughton Utilities Director at (608) 877-7423. 

 

An expanded meeting may constitute a quorum of the Common Council. 

 

Current and past Stoughton Utilities Committee documents, including meeting notices, meeting 

packets, and meeting minutes, are available for public download at http://uc.stoughtonutilities.com. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:bkardasz@stoughtonutilities.com
http://uc.stoughtonutilities.com/




 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  April14, 2015 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Status Of The Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) To The 


Stoughton Common Council. 


 


The following items from the March 16, 2015 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 


Meeting were placed on file or acted upon by the Common Council:  


 


Consent Agenda: 


 


 Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List. 


 Stoughton Utilities Committee February 16, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes. 


 Stoughton Utilities January 2015 Financial Summaries. 


 Stoughton Utilities January 2015 Statistical Worksheet. 
 


Business: 


 


 Stoughton Utilities Proposed Updated Position Description For The Utilities 


Customer Service Technician Position and new position. 


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 


 


 








 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


 


 


Date:  April 14, 2015 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Kim M. Jennings, CPA 


  Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 


 


  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities 2014 Audit Report And Management Letter. 


 


The Stoughton Utilities Audit Reports and Management Letter will be presented at the 


April 20, 2015 Stoughton Utilities Committee meeting.  Ms. Jodi Dobson of Baker Tilly 


Virchow Krause, LLP is scheduled to present the information. Please review the attached 


information and contact us if you have any questions prior to the meeting.   


 


We are requesting that the Utilities Committee accept the Stoughton Utilities 2014 Audit 


Report and Management Letter and recommend the acceptance of the audit report and the 


management letter and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton 


Common Council on April 28, 2015.   


 


Encl. 


 


cc: Jodi Dobson, CPA, Partner - Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


Bethany Ryers, CPA, - Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


 Brian G. Erickson - Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 Sean O Grady - Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 Brian R. Hoops - Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor 


 Laurie Sullivan - City of Stoughton Finance Director 
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Date:  April 14, 2015 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Kim M. Jennings, CPA 


  Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 


 


  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities 2014 Audit Report And Management Letter. 


 


The Stoughton Utilities Audit Reports and Management Letter will be presented at the 


April 20, 2015 Stoughton Utilities Committee meeting.  Ms. Jodi Dobson of Baker Tilly 


Virchow Krause, LLP is scheduled to present the information. Please review the attached 


information and contact us if you have any questions prior to the meeting.   


 


We are requesting that the Utilities Committee accept the Stoughton Utilities 2014 Audit 


Report and Management Letter and recommend the acceptance of the audit report and the 


management letter and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton 


Common Council on April 28, 2015.   


 


Encl. 


 


cc: Jodi Dobson, CPA, Partner - Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


Bethany Ryers, CPA, - Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 


 Brian G. Erickson - Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 Sean O Grady - Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 Brian R. Hoops - Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor 


 Laurie Sullivan - City of Stoughton Finance Director 


  


  


 







 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE STOUGHTON UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE 


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2014 Audit 


Report and Management Letter. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
 


 
Fiscal Impact: None 


 
File Number: 


 
 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
April 28, 2015 


 
WHEREAS, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP has prepared the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and 


Management Letter for 2014, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on April 20, 2015 to consider, approve, and 


recommend the approval of the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and Management letter for 2014 and the 


adoption of the corresponding resolution, now therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) are 


hereby authorized and directed to approve the Stoughton Utilities Audit Report and Management Letter 


for 2014. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
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OPERATIONAL RESULTS 
 
 ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING RESULTS 
 
The electric utility’s operating income decreased in 2014 to $900,000 compared to $948,000 in 2013. 
Electric operating income decreased due to an overall increase in operation and maintenance expense 
compared to 2013.  
 


 WATER UTILITY OPERATING RESULTS 
 
The water utility’s operating income decreased in 2014 to $436,000 compared to $567,000 in 2013. The 
primary reason for the decrease was due to an increase in labor for maintenance costs compared to 
2013.   
 


 WASTEWATER OPERATING RESULTS 
 
The wastewater utility’s operating income decreased in 2014 to $379,000 compared to $478,000 in 2013. 
Decreased operating income is not due to one driving factor.  Overall, there was a general increase in 
operating and maintenance expenses as well as increased depreciation expense related to an increased 
asset base after the upgrade to the treatment plant.  
 
 
CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS 
 


PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF WISCONSIN (PSCW) STAFF AUDIT OF ELECTRIC BILLING PROCESSES 
 


The PSCW began conducting billing procedure audits of municipal electric utilities in January of 2014. 
The audits are designed to ensure that proper billing procedures are in place and that customer bills are 
accurate and consistent with state statutes and the administrative code requirements. The intent of the 
PSCW is to conduct such audits for all municipal electric utilities over a seven to ten year period.  
 
The PSCW is requesting written documentation of policies and procedures related to: 
 


 New customer setup 


 Ensuring all customers are billed and billed at the correct rate schedule 


 Estimated bills, late payments, and budget billing 


 Determining responsibility to pay a bill, especially with rental or foreclosed properties 


 Identifying billing errors, applying credits, providing refunds or back-billing 


 Billing for extensions of service 


 Annual notice requirements including the bill of rights and available optional rates  


 Implementation new rates after a rate increase 


 Meter testing programs 
 
Management should consider reviewing existing documentation or creating written documentation of the 
utility’s policies and procedures in these areas. Such written documentation will not only aid management 
during a future PSCW billing audit, but will also serve as a tool in the day-to-day operations of the utility 
and in training new or temporary employees.  
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INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS 
 
 WISCONSIN ACT 274 IMPLEMENTATION 
 
During 2013 the Wisconsin legislature passed Act 274 which revised the law applicable to residential 
tenants’ delinquent utility charges. This legislature preserved the ability of municipal utilities to use the tax 
roll for collecting delinquent utility charges; however, there are some new requirements that the utility will 
need to comply with in order to utilize this collection method for residential tenant accounts. The 
requirements include additional disclosures and notifications to property owners (landlords). At this time, 
management should consider if the billing system can be used to enhance the efficiency of these 
notifications as well as the data required for amounts ultimately transferred to the tax roll. Additional 
information on this legislation can be found at http://www.lwm-info.org/vertical/sites/%7B92F7D640-E25A-
4317-90AD-4976378F8D%7D/uploads/2013_Wisconsin_Act_274_FAQ_Packet.pdf.  
 
 CYBER RISK  
 
Information security is a growing concern for many organizations and is no longer considered to be strictly 
an Information Technology (IT) issue. If your government is the victim of a security breach, the impacts 
can be financial, operational, and reputational. Cyber risk should be a high priority and evaluated on a 
regular basis.  
 
Security breaches can come in a number of forms, which are constantly evolving with advances in and 
increased use of technology. It is important for governments to assess what types of information they 
have that would be vulnerable to cyber-attack. Does your organization process, collect, and/or store 
personal information about employees or customers? Information related to social security numbers, bank 
accounts, addresses, medical information, birth dates, and credit cards is common for governments. It is 
important to take inventory of all of the personal information that flows through your systems in order to 
properly secure your data.  
 
Certain types of personal information are required to be protected in prescribed ways. If you are required 
to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) or Payment Card Industry 
Data Security Standards (PCI DSS), there should be a designated individual within management that 
should be familiar with and oversee compliance in these areas. 
 
Outsourcing portions of your data processing can remove personal information from your system; 
however, outsourcing does not remove your responsibility for oversight of this data. If customer or 
employee data is hacked while with the third-party vendor, your organization can still be responsible. 
Certain vendors have a Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements 16 report (SSAE 16 report) 
that provide you with information about that vendor’s internal controls, including data security, and an 
independent assessment on whether those controls are effective. In addition, any vendors providing PCI 
DSS services for your organization should be able to provide a certificate of compliance annually upon 
request. There should be a designated individual within management that is responsible for monitoring 
information with a third-party service provider at least annually.  
 
Finally, we recommend that you have an incident response plan developed and practiced so that you are 
prepared in the event of a data breach.  
 


SEC DEBT COMPLIANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
 
In 2014, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) undertook an initiative known as the 
Municipalities Continuing Disclosure Cooperation Initiative (MCDC Initiative). This initiative is a result of 
SEC concerns about “potentially widespread violations of the federal securities laws by municipal issuers 
and underwriters of municipal securities in connection with certain representations about continuing 
disclosures in bond offering documents.”(1) Under the MCDC Initiative, the SEC requested municipal 
securities issuers and underwriters to self-report material false certifications of compliance in bond 
offering documents.  
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INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS (cont.) 


 
SEC DEBT COMPLIANCE CONSIDERATIONS (cont.) 


 
While the deadline to self-report has passed, we expect the increased scrutiny on municipal securities to 
continue. The SEC has indicated that no issuer is too small to be involved in an enforcement action. 
Fines and penalties for violations uncovered after the deadline for self-reporting may be significant. 
Because your organization issues public debt, we recommend that you take a close look at your policies 
and procedures to ensure that you are in compliance with what is required.  
 
In addition to the increased focus on official reporting requirements, issuers should also be aware that the 
SEC has been reviewing public statements made by government officials during its investigations. 
Following are selections from investigation report release no. 69516, which explain the SEC’s views on 
this topic: 
 
 “Public officials should be mindful that their public statements, whether written or oral, may affect 


the total mix of information available to investors, and should understand that these public 
statements, if they are materially misleading or omit material information, can lead to potential 
liability under the antifraud provisions of the federal securities laws.” 


  
“Investors may be more likely to rely upon statements from public officials where written 
undertakings made pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 have not been fulfilled and required continuing 
disclosures are not available through the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic 
Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) system.” 
 
“In this Report, the term “public official” means elected officials, appointed officials, and 
employees, or their functional equivalents, of any State, municipality, political subdivision or any 
agency of instrumentality thereof.” 
 


We recommend that your debt policies and procedures incorporate adequate training to ensure that all 
public officials understand their specific responsibilities in this area.  
 


(1) SEC website, Division of Enforcement  
 


GASB 67 AND 68 
 
The Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds sent an Employer Bulletin (“Bulletin”) to all 
Wisconsin Retirement System Employers related to the new GASB pension reporting requirements. The 
Bulletin was dated December 1, 2014 (Vol.31, No. 16). 
 
As noted in the Bulletin, GASB 67 affects the Wisconsin Retirement System (“WRS” or “the Plan”) for its 
year ended December 31, 2014. GASB 68 affects the employers participating in the Plan. GASB 68 will 
affect your organization as of [June 30, 2015 or December 31, 2015].  
 
WRS has represented that it will provide general information necessary for employers to implement 
GASB 68. There will be a significant impact on your financial statements including: 
 


 Your organization’s proportionate share of the WRS’s net pension asset or liability will be 
reported in your full-accrual funds and the government-wide financial statements for the first time. 


 The net pension asset or liability should be allocated to the full-accrual funds that are expected to 
make payments toward this liability.  


 The footnote disclosures will have significant changes. 
 
We are available to assist you with the implementation of this new standard. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL COMMENTS (cont.) 


 
 COMPLETE SEGREGATION OF DUTIES NOT FEASIBLE 
 
A properly designed system of internal control includes adequate staffing as well as policies and 
procedures to properly segregate duties. This includes systems that are designed to limit the access or 
control of any one individual to your government’s assets or accounting records, and to achieve a higher 
likelihood that errors or irregularities in the utility’s accounting processes would be discovered by your 
staff in a timely manner.  
 
At this time, due to staffing and financial limitations, the utility does not have proper internal controls in 
place to achieve ideal segregation of duties. As a result, errors or irregularities could occur as part of the 
financial process that may not be discovered by the utility.  
 
Procedures, designed to improve controls, have been established by management including: 
 


 Authorization of official depository. 


 Review and acceptance of the audit report and management letter. 


 Authorization of capital expenditures. 


 Approval of annual budgets. 


 Cross training of personnel and rotation of duties entailing custody of certain liquid assets. 
 
These procedures are helpful in assuring that management is knowledgeable of and involved with the 
day-to-day system operations. 
 
There are also key controls, which are listed below, that are not currently in place at the utility related to 
significant transaction cycles. These key controls are important in reducing the risk of errors or 
irregularities in the utility’s accounting processes.  


 Review of the reconciliation of open work orders to the construction balance in the ledger. 


 Review of the monthly or yearend financial statements. 


 Complete segregation of billing and receipting for miscellaneous services. 
 
During the current year audit, there was one adjusting journal entry which affected accounts payable and 
cash.  The entry had no effect on operating income or net position. Although we would like to see 
additional layers of internal review we understand that the size of the organization limits the ability to 
accomplish this and that management has segregated transactions from reconciliations.   
 
Since these key controls are not currently in place, errors or irregularities could occur as part of the 
financial process that may not be discovered by the utility. Our review of internal control disclosed a 
control deficiency in that segregation of duties is not feasible due to the limited number of staff in the 
office. For example, many reconciliations are prepared by a person who is also involved in the day to day 
transactions. Although we do not feel this is a material weakness or significant deficiency we do believe it 
is important that the Committee is aware of this fact. 
 
This situation necessitates an increased amount of management involvement in the day-to-day operation 
of the system. This is not unusual in utilities of your size, but management should continue to be aware of 
this condition and realize that the concentration of duties and responsibilities in a limited number of 
individuals is not desirable from a control point of view. 
 
  







  


 


OTHER COMMUNICATIONS TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 
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TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT  
 
As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the 
audit process. Auditing requirements provide for two-way communication and are important in assisting 
the auditor and you with more information relevant to the audit. 
 
As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have learned to begin the planning process for next 
year’s audit. It is important that you understand the following points about the scope and timing of our 
next audit: 
 


a. We address the significant risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, through 
our detailed audit procedures. 


b. We will obtain an understanding of the five components of internal control sufficient to assess the 
risk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to error or fraud, and to 
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a sufficient 
understanding by performing risk assessment procedures to evaluate the design of controls 
relevant to an audit of financial statements and to determine whether they have been 
implemented. We will use such knowledge to:  
 
> Identify types of potential misstatements. 


> Consider factors that affect the risks of material misstatement. 


> Design tests of controls, when applicable, and substantive procedures. 
 
We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or 
compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant programs.  


c. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, either individually or in the aggregate, 
are important for fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles while other matters are not important. In performing the audit, we are 
concerned with matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material to the 
financial statements. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance that material misstatements, whether caused by errors or fraud, are detected. 


 
We are very interested in your views regarding certain matters. Those matters are listed here: 


 
a. We typically will communicate with your top level of management unless you tell us otherwise. 


b. We understand that the utilities committee has the responsibility to oversee the strategic direction 
of your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the entity. Management has the 
responsibility for achieving the objectives of the entity. 


c. We need to know your views about your organization’s objectives and strategies, and the related 
business risks that may result in material misstatements. 


d. Which matters do you consider warrant particular attention during the audit, and are there any 
areas where you request additional procedures to be undertaken? 


e. Have you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies? 


f. Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements? 
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TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT (cont.) 


 
Also, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness, and actions of the utilities 
concerning: 
 


a. The utilities’ internal control and its importance in the entity, including how those charged with 
governance oversee the effectiveness of internal control? 


b. The detection or the possibility of fraud? 
 
We also need to know if you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws, 
accounting standards, governance practices, or other related matters, or in response to previous 
communications with us. 
 
With regard to the timing of our audit, here is some general information. If necessary, we may do 
preliminary financial audit work during the months of November or December. Our final financial fieldwork 
is scheduled during January to best coincide with your readiness and report deadlines. After fieldwork, we 
wrap up our financial audit procedures at our office and may issue drafts of our report for your review. 
Final copies of our report and other communications are issued after approval by your staff. This is 
typically 6-10 weeks after final fieldwork, but may vary depending on a number of factors.  
 
Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the audit, 
it does not change the auditor’s sole responsibility to determine the overall audit strategy and the audit 
plan, including the nature, timing, and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence. 
 
We realize that you may have questions on what this all means, or wish to provide other feedback. We 
welcome the opportunity to hear from you. 







  


 


REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS BY THE AUDITOR TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 


  











To Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Stoughton Utilities 
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 QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY’S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES 
 
  Accounting Policies 


Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the 
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies 
and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the utilities are described in Note 1 to the 
financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not 
changed during 2014. We noted no transactions entered into by the Stoughton Utilities during the year that 
were both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, 
or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 
 
  Accounting Estimates 


Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future 
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements were the accrual of compensated 
absences and fair value of the ATC investment. We have reviewed managements’ assumptions and 
methodologies for these estimates. 
 
  Financial Statement Disclosures 


The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
 DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit. 
 
 CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management 
has corrected all such misstatements.   
 
In addition, the one misstatement was detected as a result of audit procedures and was corrected by 
management. This was a classification correction between cash and accounts payable based on the timing of a 
payment. The adjustment did not have an effect on operating income or net position. 
 
 DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that 
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audits. 
 
 CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has 
all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 











 


 


MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2014 and 2013 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 3 


The management of the Stoughton Utilities (utilities) offers all persons interested in the financial position 
of the utilities an objective, easy to read overview and analysis of the utilities’ financial performance 
during the years ending December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. You are invited to read this narrative in 
conjunction with the utilities’ financial statements. 


 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 


 
ELECTRIC: 
 


 Electric revenues increased by 1.22% in 2014. 
 


 The electric division’s net position increased by $530,837 from the prior year. 
 


 Financed $621,000 of capital improvements to improve operations and electric system reliability. 
 
WATER: 


 Completed $590,000 of capital improvements including over 2,000 feet of main replacements. 
     


 The water division’s net position increased by $21,683 from the prior year.  
 


 Sales increased by $20,316 or 1.19% in 2014 due to a 3.0% increase in retail rates on June 1, 
2014.     
 


WASTEWATER: 
 


 Completed $3,255,000 of sewer projects which included collecting main upgrades, slip lining of 
mains to extend their useful life, and an electrical upgrade at the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  
  


 The utility experienced an increase in revenues of $19,685 or 0.98% in 2014 due to a slight 
increase in volume sales.  No retail rate increases were implemented in 2014. 


 
 The wastewater division’s net position increased by $322,769 from the prior year. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


 
The utilities are self-supporting entities and separate enterprise funds of the City of Stoughton (city). The 
utilities provide electric, water, and wastewater service to properties within the city and also provides 
electric service to the following Townships: Dunkirk, Dunn, Pleasant Springs, Porter and Rutland.  
 
The water and electric utilities are managed by a Utilities Committee and operate under service rules and 
rates that are established by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). The accounting 
records are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the PSCW, 
and in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  
 
The Utilities Committee also manages the wastewater utility.  The Utilities Committee establishes rates 
and service rules. Accounting records are maintained in accordance with the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. 
 
This annual report consists of two parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, and the basic financial 
statements, including the independent auditor’s report. 
 
An analysis of the utilities’ financial position begins with a review of the Statement of Net Position, and the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. These two statements report the 
utilities’ net position and changes therein. The utilities’ net position – ‘the difference between assets and 
liabilities’ is key to measuring the financial health of the utilities. Over time, increases or decreases in the 
net position value are an indicator of whether the overall financial position is improving or deteriorating. 
However, it should be noted that the financial position may also be affected by other non-financial factors, 
including economic conditions, customer growth, climate conditions and new regulations. 
 
 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS  


 
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the utilities’ assets and liabilities and provides information 
about the nature and amount of investments in resources and the obligations to creditors. This statement 
provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of 
the utilities.  
 
A summary of the utilities’ Statements of Net Position is presented below in Tables 1 through 3. 
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 1 


Condensed Statement of Net Position – Electric Utility 
 


2014-2013
2014 2013 2012 Change


Current and Other Assets 10,529,265$ 10,114,745$ 9,518,367$    414,520$       
Capital Assets 14,350,749   14,726,389   15,160,909    (375,640)        


Total Assets 24,880,014   24,841,134   24,679,276    38,880           


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 4,460,000     4,940,000     5,505,000      (480,000)        
Other Liabilities 2,628,423     2,640,380     2,346,261      (11,957)          


Total Liabilities 7,088,423     7,580,380     7,851,261      (491,957)        


Investment in Capital Assets 9,349,914     9,231,928     9,255,909      117,986         
Restricted 1,089,205     1,076,042     1,039,577      13,163           
Unrestricted 7,352,472     6,952,784     6,532,529      399,688         


Total Net Position 17,791,591$ 17,260,754$ 16,828,015$  530,837$       


In 2014, the electric utility net position increased $530,837, an increase of 3.08%. The increase was as 
anticipated and in line with the 2014 operating budget. 
 
In 2013, the electric utility net position increase $432,732, an increase of 2.57%. The increase was as 
anticipated and in line with the 2013 operating budget. 
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 2 


Condensed Statement of Net Position – Water Utility 
 


2014-2013
2014 2013 2012 Change


Current and Other Assets 1,203,476$   1,563,853$   1,656,392$    (360,376)$      
Capital Assets 12,747,318   12,546,530   12,537,167    200,788         


Total Assets 13,950,794   14,110,383   14,193,559    (159,588)        


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 1,775,381     1,926,638     2,077,213      (151,257)        
Other Liabilities 624,686        654,701        696,443         (30,015)          


Total Liabilities 2,400,067     2,581,339     2,773,656      (181,272)        


Investment in Capital Assets 10,820,680   10,469,317   10,275,044    351,363         
Restricted 406,334        408,836        431,068         (2,502)            
Unrestricted 323,713        650,891        713,791         (327,178)        


Total Net Position 11,550,727$ 11,529,044$ 11,419,903$  21,683$         


In 2014, the water utility net position increased $21,683, an increase of 0.19%. The water utility has 
experienced increases in net position since the last full retail rate increase was implemented in 2010. An 
estimated retail rate increase of 3.0% will occur in 2015 in order to maintain the water utility net position. 
 
In 2013, the water utility net position increased $109,141, an increase of 0.96%. A simplified rate increase 
of 3.0% was completed in 2014 to maintain stable returns. 
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 3 


Condensed Statements of Net Position – Wastewater Utility 
 


2014-2013
2014 2013 2012 Change


Current and Other Assets 2,890,768$   2,326,901$   2,941,906$    563,867$     
Capital Assets 17,931,136   15,303,036   15,021,478    2,628,100    


Total Assets 20,821,904   17,629,937   17,963,384    3,191,967    


Long-Term Debt Outstanding 5,312,592     2,646,720     2,903,455      2,665,872    
Other Liabilities 633,136        429,810        924,964         203,326       


Total Liabilities 5,945,728     3,076,530     3,828,419      2,869,198    


Investment in Capital Assets 12,236,966   12,399,704   11,468,409    (162,738)      
Restricted 1,489,947     1,247,923     1,501,295      242,024       
Unrestricted 1,149,263     905,780        1,165,261      243,483       


Total Net Position 14,876,176$ 14,553,407$ 14,134,965$  322,769$     


 
In 2014, wastewater net position increased $322,769 or 2.22%. The increase was as anticipated and in 
line with the 2014 operating budget. 
 
In 2013, wastewater net position increased $418,442 or 2.96%. The increase was as anticipated and in 
line with the 2013 operating budget. 
 
The restricted portion of net position includes accounts that are limited by bond covenants. Listed below 
are restricted assets: 
 
 Redemption   – Used for debt service payments. 
 Reserve    – Used for any deficiencies in the redemption account. 
 Depreciation  – Used to restore deficiencies in the redemption and reserve accounts, and for funding 


plant replacements. 
 Construction – Bond issue proceeds used only for the restricted construction project(s).  
 Replacement – Used for plant replacement. 
  
The specific nature or source of these changes becomes more evident in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position as shown in Tables 4 through 6.  
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides an indication of the 
utilities’ financial health. 
 


Table 4 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Position – 
Electric Utility 


 
2014-2013


2014 2013 2012 Change


Operating Revenues 15,603,989$   15,379,679$    15,385,267$    224,310$        
Non-Operating Revenues 94,519            71,308             100,685           23,211            
     Total Revenues 15,698,508     15,450,987      15,485,952      247,521          


Depreciation Expense 934,151          918,885           910,353           15,266            
Other Operating Expense 13,770,271     13,512,427      13,336,299      257,844          
Non-Operating Expenses 158,954          254,852           276,156           (95,898)           
     Total Expenses 14,863,376     14,686,164      14,522,808      177,212          


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 835,132          764,823           963,144           70,309            


Capital Contributions 80,949            78,489             130,561           2,460              
Transfers - Tax Equivalent (366,032)         (380,584)         (363,359)          14,552            
Transfers  (19,212)           (29,989)           (25,600)            10,777            


Changes in Net Position 530,837          432,739           704,746           98,098            


Beginning Net Position 17,260,754     16,828,015      16,123,269      432,739          


Total Net Position-Ending 17,791,591$   17,260,754$    16,828,015$    530,837$        
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Table 5 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Position –  
Water Utility 


 
2014-2013


2014 2013 2012 Change


Operating Revenues 1,750,961$     1,727,969$      1,756,878$      22,992$          
Non-Operating Revenues 2,118              5,245               10,718             (3,127)             
     Total Revenues 1,753,079       1,733,214        1,767,596        19,865            


Depreciation Expense 390,653          381,278           364,679           9,375              
Other Operating Expense 924,261          779,963           745,471           144,299          
Non-Operating Expenses 84,281            90,133             97,706             (5,852)             
     Total Expenses 1,399,195       1,251,374        1,207,856        147,822          


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 353,884          481,840           559,740           (127,957)         


Capital Contributions 26,500            -                      9,000               26,500            
Transfers - Tax Equivalent (352,700)         (361,820)         (342,159)          9,120              
Transfers  (6,001)             (10,879)           (6,935)              4,878              


Changes in Net Position 21,683            109,141           219,646           (87,459)           


Beginning Net Position 11,529,044     11,419,903      11,200,257      109,141          


Total Net Position-Ending 11,550,727$   11,529,044$   11,419,903$   21,683$         


 
 







 STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  
December 31, 2014 and 2013 


 


See Independent Auditors’ Report.  Page 10 


 
UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 
 


Table 6 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, 


Expenses and Changes in Net Position - 
Wastewater Utility 


 
2014-2013


2014 2013 2012 Change


Operating Revenues 2,050,885$        2,029,464$      2,062,606$      21,421$          
Non-Operating Revenues 11,559               3,498               9,763               8,061              
     Total Revenues 2,062,444          2,032,962        2,072,369        29,482            


Depreciation Expense 726,884             673,593           630,188           53,291            
Other Operating Expense 944,780             877,420           877,033           67,360            
Non-Operating Expenses 105,611             85,280             104,934           20,331            
     Total Expenses 1,777,275          1,636,293        1,612,155        140,982          


     Income Before Capital
     Contributions and Transfers 285,169             396,669           460,214           (111,500)         


Capital Contributions 37,600               21,773             49,255             15,827            


Changes in Net Position 322,769             418,442           509,469           (95,673)           


Beginning Net Position 14,553,407        14,134,965      13,625,496      418,442          


Total Net Position-Ending 14,876,176$     14,553,407$   14,134,965$   322,769$       
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Comparison of Electric Sales
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Electric sales increased by 1.22% in 2014. The increase is due to a pass thru of increased wholesale 
electric costs. A review of retail rates was completed in 2014 and rates are expected to increase by 
1.50% in the second quarter of 2015. Electric sales remained relatively constant in 2013. 
 


 


2014 2013 2012


Residential 7,705,020$         7,742,249$        7,711,886$       
General Service 2,099,107           2,067,323          2,104,261         
Small Power 1,618,430           1,532,050          1,467,540         
Large Power 1,044,735           1,021,094          1,049,188         
Industrial Power 2,805,130           2,728,523          2,761,836         
Public Lighting 147,079             142,072             141,102            


Total Electric Sales 15,419,501$       15,233,311$       15,235,813$      
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 


Comparison of Water Sales
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Sales increased by $20,316 or 1.19% in 2014 due to a 3.0% increase in retail rates on June 1, 2014. 
Sales to multifamily residential buildings having 3 or more units are now classified separately as required 
by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin. Sales decreased in 2013 due to a decrease in water 
consumption. 
 


2014 2013 2012


Residential 793,284$            797,026$           816,587$          
Multifamily Residential 59,595               -                    -                   
Commercial 146,790             192,994             196,348            
Industrial 251,139             250,544             255,137            
Public Authority 16,738               17,672               19,222              
Private Fire 28,385               26,318               25,422              
Public Fire 432,068             423,129             420,871            


Total Water Sales 1,727,999$         1,707,683$        1,733,587$       
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Comparison of Wastewater Sales 


 


 


The utility experienced an increase in revenues of $19,685 or 0.98% in 2014 due to a slight increase in 
volume sales. No retail rate increases were implemented in 2014. The decrease in sales in 2013 was 
also due to a decrease in volume sales. 
 


2014 2013 2012


Residential 1,354,439$         1,388,955$        1,449,168$       
Commercial 456,341             445,201             441,780            
Industrial 180,296             138,306             112,101            
Public Authority 26,590               25,519               25,855              


Total Wastewater Sales 2,017,666$         1,997,981$        2,028,904$       
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
The Statement of Cash Flows reports the cash provided and used by operating activities, as well as other 
cash sources such as investment income and cash payments for repayment of bonds and capital 
additions. 
 


Table 7 
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows –  


Electric Utility 
 


2014-2013
2014 2013 2012 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 1,665,622$     2,039,792$      2,062,896$      (374,170)$       
     Non-capital financing activities (352,219)         (346,703)         (302,751)          (5,516)             
     Capital and related financing
        activities (1,200,647)      (1,175,293)      (1,365,177)       (25,354)           
     Investing activities (289,421)         409,111           408,202           (698,532)         


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents (176,665)         926,907           803,170           (1,103,572)      


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 3,752,549       2,825,642        2,022,472        926,907          


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 3,575,884$     3,752,549$     2,825,642$     (176,665)$      


The decrease in cash and cash equivalents in 2014 is a result of cash flows from normal operating 
activities and purchases of long term investments during the year. 
 
The increase in cash and cash equivalents in 2013 was a result of normal operations, maturities of long-
term investments and was anticipated and in line with the 2013 budget. 
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 8 


Condensed Statements of Cash Flows – 
Water Utility 


 
2014-2013


2014 2013 2012 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 824,521$        952,858$         1,059,453$      (128,337)$       
     Non-Capital financing activities (367,821)         (353,038)         (308,070)          (14,783)           
     Capital and related financing
        activities (819,346)         (706,358)         (851,898)          (112,988)         
     Investing activities 40,654            (236,512)         411,612           277,166          


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents (321,992)         (343,050)         311,097           21,058            


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 670,403          1,013,453        702,356           (343,050)         


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 348,411$       670,403$        1,013,453$     (321,992)$      


The water utility experienced a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $321,992 in 2014. The 
decrease was anticipated and is primarily due to the acquisition and construction of capital assets.   
 
The decrease in cash and cash equivalents in 2013 was primarily the result of purchases of long-term 
investment securities. 
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 9 


Condensed Statements of Cash Flows – 
Wastewater Utility 


 
2014-2013


2014 2013 2012 Change


Cash Flows From:
     Operating activites 1,061,317$     1,178,921$      1,201,971$      (117,604)$       
     Capital and related financing
        activities (504,963)         (1,792,026)      (1,490,850)       1,287,063       
     Investing activities 42,552            (178,826)         287,856           221,378          


        Net Change in Cash and
           Cash Equivalents 598,906          (791,931)         (1,023)              1,390,837       


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   Beginning of Year 1,449,778       2,241,709        2,242,732        (791,931)         


Cash and Cash Equivalents
   End of Year 2,048,684$     1,449,778$     2,241,709$     598,906$       


The utility experienced an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $598,906 in 2014. The increase is 
mainly due to the reimbursement of 2013 Wisconsin Clean Water Fund project expenditures for a large 
Wastewater Treatment Plant electrical upgrade. 
 
The 2013 decrease in cash and cash equivalents was due to the purchase of long-term investment 
securities and expenditures for the Wastewater Treatment Plant project which were subsequently 
reimbursed through the Clean Water Fund financing. 
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 10 


Capital Assets – Electric Utility 
 


2014-2013
2014 2013 2012 Change


Capital Assets
     Transmission and distribution 22,522,693$ 22,081,116$ 21,618,433$  441,577$     
     General 4,396,696     4,385,802     4,367,482      10,894         
          Total Capital Assets 26,919,389   26,466,918   25,985,915    452,471       


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (12,594,695)  (11,742,374)  (10,854,101)   (852,321)      
Construction in progress 26,055          1,845            29,095           24,210         


Net Capital Assets 14,350,749$ 14,726,389$ 15,160,909$ (375,640)$   


Table 11 
Capital Assets – Water Utility 


 
2014-2013


2014 2013 2012 Change


Capital Assets
     Source of supply 581,758$      581,758$      581,758$       -$                   
     Pumping 1,461,653     1,461,653     1,428,957      -                     
     Water treatment 90,763          90,763          90,763           -                     
     Transmission and distribution 15,354,937   14,776,519   14,400,401    578,418         
     General 1,208,737     1,189,714     1,185,462      19,023           
          Total Capital Assets 18,697,848   18,100,407   17,687,341    597,441         


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (5,981,157)    (5,578,071)    (5,174,407)     (403,086)        
Construction in progress 30,627          24,194          24,233           6,433             


Net Capital Assets 12,747,318$ 12,546,530$ 12,537,167$ 200,788$      
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UTILITY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.) 


 
Table 12 


Capital Assets – Wastewater Utility 
 


2014-2013
2014 2013 2012 Change


Capital Assets
     Collection system 9,360,156$   9,092,573$   8,789,146$    267,583$       
     Collection system pumping 401,065        397,412        397,412         3,653             
     Treatment and disposal 15,550,149   13,319,526   12,914,727    2,230,623      
     General 1,308,895     1,155,937     1,150,622      152,958         
          Total Capital Assets 26,620,265   23,965,448   23,251,907    2,654,817      


Less:  Accumulated depreciation (8,727,985)    (9,062,641)    (8,446,186)     334,656         
Construction in progress 38,856          400,229        215,757         (361,373)        


Net Capital Assets 17,931,136$ 15,303,036$ 15,021,478$ 2,628,100$    


 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT 


 
As of December 31, 2014, the electric utility had total mortgage revenue bond debt outstanding of 
$4,940,000 payable from and secured by a pledge of income and revenue to be derived from the 
operation of the electric utility. These issues were issued for electric system improvements, the 
construction of new substation, an east substation transformer, and costs associated with the 
implementation of automated meter reading (AMR). 
 
As of December 31, 2014, the water utility had total mortgage revenue bond debt outstanding of 
$1,926,638 payable from and secured by a pledge of income and revenue to be derived from the 
operation of the water utility. These issues were primarily for additions and improvements to the water 
system, street improvement projects, AMR implementation and a new tower.  
 
The wastewater utility had $5,694,293 of clean water fund loans outstanding as of December 31, 2014. 
These bonds were issued for a series of wastewater treatment plant upgrade and expansion projects, 
including an electrical upgrade in 2014.  
 
Tables of separate bond issues are included in note 7 of this audit report. 
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CONTACTING UTILITY MANAGEMENT 


 
This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors and creditors with a general overview 
of the utilities’ finances. If you have questions about this report, or need additional financial information, 
contact the Finance and Administrative Manager, Stoughton Utilities, 600 South Fourth Street, P.O. Box 
383, Stoughton, WI  53589. 
 
General information relating to the Stoughton Utilities can be found at the utilities’ web site at 
www.stoughtonutilities.com.   
 







 


ELECTRIC UTILITY 
 
 







2014 2013
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments 5,787,365$         5,622,496$       
Interest receivable 22,550                19,115              
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 397,337              387,545            
Customer accounts receivable 1,751,971           1,627,431         
Other accounts receivable 230,224              65,639              
Due from municipality 13,329                17,389              
Current portion of advance to municipality 35,065                33,119              
Materials and supplies 130,091              136,045            
Prepayments 2,918                  20,681              


Total Current Assets 8,370,850           7,929,460         


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Reserve account 704,728              704,728            
Depreciation account 25,000                25,000              


Other Assets
Electric plant and maintenance reserve account 506,807              505,712            
Sick leave reserve account 173,704              173,704            
Advance to municipality 413,741              448,806            
Investment in ATC 312,822              302,062            
Non-utility property (net) 21,613                25,273              


Capital Assets
Plant in service 26,566,725         26,114,254       
Accumulated depreciation (12,594,695)       (11,742,374)      
Property held for future use 352,664              352,664            
Construction work in progress 26,055                1,845                


Total Noncurrent Assets 16,509,164         16,911,674       


Total Assets 24,880,014         24,841,134       


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2014 and 2013


ASSETS


Page 20







2014 2013
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 1,183,584$         1,071,358$       
Due to municipality 403,925              453,337            
Customer deposits 135,472              155,552            
Accrued wages 12,030                21,305              
Accrued interest 1,792                  2,315                
Accrued liabilities 100,650              130,749            
Commitment to community 31,052                30,854              
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 480,000              480,000            
Accrued interest 37,860                41,231              


Total Current Liabilities 2,386,365           2,386,701         


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds 4,460,000           4,940,000         
Unamortized premium on bonds 60,835                74,461              
Accrued sick leave 166,873              173,704            
Customer advances for construction 14,350                5,514                


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,702,058           5,193,679         


Total Liabilities 7,088,423           7,580,380         


Investment in capital assets 9,349,914           9,231,928         
Restricted for debt service 1,089,205           1,076,042         
Unrestricted 7,352,472           6,952,784         


TOTAL NET POSITION 17,791,591$      17,260,754$    


LIABILITIES


NET POSITION


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 21







2014 2013
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of electricity 15,419,500$       15,233,311$     
Other 184,489              146,368            


Total Operating Revenues 15,603,989         15,379,679       


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 13,770,271         13,512,427       
Depreciation 934,151              918,885            


Total Operating Expenses 14,704,422         14,431,312       


OPERATING INCOME 899,567              948,367            


NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 80,893                59,346              
Interest expense (155,041)            (199,379)           
Amortization of debt issuance costs -                         (51,813)             
Amortization of premium on bond refunding 13,626                11,962              
Miscellaneous revenues (expenses) (3,913)                (3,660)               


Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (64,435)              (183,544)           


Income Before Contributions and Transfers 835,132              764,823            


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 80,949                78,489              
TRANSFER IN (OUT) (19,212)              (29,989)             
TRANSFERS - TAX EQUIVALENT (366,032)            (380,584)           


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 530,837              432,739            


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 17,260,754         16,828,015       


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 17,791,591$      17,260,754$    


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 22







2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers 15,206,898$       15,181,787$      
Received for street lighting 137,049              132,993             
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (12,903,408)       (12,528,169)      
Paid to employees for operating payroll (754,837)            (758,112)           
Customer deposit (20,080)              11,293               


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,665,622           2,039,792          


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (380,584)            (363,359)           
Received from municipality principal on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL 33,119                31,250               
Received from municipality interest on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL 14,458                15,395               
Transfers to other funds (19,212)              (29,989)             


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (352,219)            (346,703)           


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (621,075)            (570,320)           
Received from the sale of capital assets 5,091                  6,513                 
Capital contributions received 53,749                64,739               
Proceeds on bond refunding -                         3,170,000          
Debt retired (480,000)            (3,655,000)        
Interest paid (158,412)            (225,835)           
Debt issuance costs paid -                         (51,813)             
Premium received -                         86,423               


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,200,647)         (1,175,293)        


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased (1,292,597)         (1,473,764)        
Investments sold and matured 907,919              1,847,051          
Dividends/(Investment) in ATC 9,512                  12,731               
Investment income 85,745                23,093               


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities (289,421)            409,111             


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (176,665)            926,907             


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 3,752,549           2,825,642          


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 3,575,884$         3,752,549$       


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (32,257)$            (63,334)$          
ATC earnings allocated -$                       31,995$             
Capital contributions 10,760$              -$                      


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
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2014 2013
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
  FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income 899,567$            948,367$          
Nonoperating revenue (expense) 13,373                (3,660)               
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 934,151              918,885            
Depreciation charged to clearing and other utilities 39,600                39,600              


Changes in assets and liabilities
Customer accounts receivable (124,540)            (182,246)           
Other account receivable (139,309)            113,478            
Due from municipality 4,060                  7,529                
Due to municipality (34,860)              72,753              
Materials and supplies 5,954                  3,136                
Prepayments 17,763                (256)                  
Accounts payable 130,099              58,635              
Customer deposits (20,080)              11,293              
Accrued sick leave (6,831)                1,885                
Other current liabilities (53,523)              (4,525)               
Commitment to community 198                     54,918              


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,665,622$        2,039,792$      


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
   STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments 5,787,365$         5,622,496$       
Redemption account 397,337              387,545            
Reserve account 704,728              704,728            
Depreciation account 25,000                25,000              
Electric plant and maintenance reserve account 506,807              505,712            
Sick leave reserve account 173,704              173,704            


Total Cash and Investments 7,594,941           7,419,185         
Less: Noncash equivalents (4,019,057)         (3,666,636)        


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,575,884$        3,752,549$      


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 24







 


WATER UTILITY 
 







2014 2013
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments 227,481$            546,693$          
Interest receivable 1,938                  10,665              
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 120,935              123,710            
Customer accounts receivable 189,838              174,323            
Other accounts receivable 5,922                  5,808                
Due from municipality -                         2,709                
Materials and supplies 34,597                36,627              
Prepayments 698                     7,157                


Total Current Assets 581,409              907,692            


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Reserve account 274,005              274,005            
Depreciation account 25,000                25,000              


Other Assets
Water plant and maintenance reserve account 189,226              219,040            
Sick leave reserve account 94,638                94,638              
Non-utility property (net) 39,198                43,478              


Capital Assets
Plant in service 18,697,848         18,100,407       
Accumulated depreciation (5,981,157)         (5,578,071)        
Construction work in progress 30,627                24,194              


Total Noncurrent Assets 13,369,385         13,202,691       


Total Assets 13,950,794         14,110,383       


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2014 and 2013


ASSETS
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2014 2013
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 6,926$                20,627$            
Due to municipality 352,700              361,820            
Customer deposits 1,733                  39                     
Accrued wages 15,033                13,123              
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 151,257              150,575            
Accrued interest 13,606                13,879              


Total Current Liabilities 541,255              560,063            


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds 1,775,381           1,926,638         
Accrued sick leave 83,431                94,638              


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,858,812           2,021,276         


Total Liabilities 2,400,067           2,581,339         


Invested in capital assets 10,820,680         10,469,317       
Restricted for debt service 406,334              408,836            
Unrestricted 323,713              650,891            


TOTAL NET POSITION 11,550,727$      11,529,044$    


LIABILITIES


NET POSITION


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 26







2014 2013
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of water 1,727,999$         1,707,683$       
Other 22,962                20,286              


Total Operating Revenues 1,750,961           1,727,969         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 924,261              779,963            
Depreciation 390,653              381,278            


Total Operating Expenses 1,314,914           1,161,241         


OPERATING INCOME 436,047              566,728            


NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 2,118                  5,245                
Interest expense (80,004)              (85,856)             
Miscellaneous expenses (4,277)                (4,277)               


Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (82,163)              (84,888)             


Income Before Contributions and Transfers 353,884              481,840            


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 26,500                -                        
TRANSFER IN (OUT) (6,001)                (10,879)             
TRANSFERS - TAX EQUIVALENT (352,700)            (361,820)           


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 21,683                109,141            


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 11,529,044         11,419,903       


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 11,550,727$      11,529,044$    


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
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2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers 1,752,973$         1,728,676$       
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (589,326)            (494,642)           
Paid to employees for operating payroll (339,126)            (281,176)           


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 824,521              952,858            


CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (361,820)            (342,159)           
Transfers to other funds (6,001)                (10,879)             


Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities (367,821)            (353,038)           


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (590,292)            (434,301)           
Received from the sale of capital assets 1,798                  -                        
Debt retired (150,575)            (184,910)           
Interest paid (80,277)              (87,147)             


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (819,346)            (706,358)           


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased (1,030,000)         (608,868)           
Investments sold and matured 1,049,556           370,430            
Investment income 21,098                1,926                


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 40,654                (236,512)           


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (321,992)            (343,050)           


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 670,403              1,013,453         


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 348,411$            670,403$         


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (10,253)$            14,871$           
Capital contributions 26,500$              -$                      


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
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2014 2013
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
  FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income 436,047$            566,728$          
Nonoperating income (expense) (4,277)                (4,277)               
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 390,653              381,278            
Depreciation charged to clearing and other utilities 28,315                27,342              


Changes in assets and liabilities
Customer accounts receivable (15,515)              (9,382)               
Other account receivable (114)                   (5,808)               
Due from municipality 2,709                  3,632                
Materials and supplies 2,030                  (1,383)               
Prepayments 6,459                  (93)                    
Accounts payable (14,183)              (7,753)               
Accrued wages 1,910                  933                   
Accrued sick leave (11,207)              2,192                
Customer deposits 1,694                  (552)                  


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 824,521$            952,858$         


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
   STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments 227,481$            546,693$          
Redemption account 120,935              123,710            
Reserve account 274,005              274,005            
Depreciation account 25,000                25,000              
Water plant and maintenance reserve account 189,226              219,040            
Sick leave reserve account 94,638                94,638              


Total Cash and Investments 931,285              1,283,086         
Less: Noncash equivalents (582,874)            (612,683)           


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 348,411$            670,403$         


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
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WASTEWATER UTILITY 
 







2014 2013
CURRENT ASSETS


Cash and investments 1,055,750$         738,999$          
Interest receivable 1,461                  4,107                
Restricted Assets


Redemption account 328,068              198,451            
Customer accounts receivable 211,690              204,873            
Other accounts receivable 14,426                14,426              
Due from municipality -                         2,789                
Prepayments 872                     8,946                


Total Current Assets 1,612,267           1,172,591         


NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets


Depreciation account 33,283                33,283              
Replacement account 1,153,490           1,029,299         
Construction account 123                     123                   


Other Assets
Sick leave reserve account 91,605                91,605              


Capital Assets
Plant in service 26,620,265         23,965,448       
Accumulated depreciation (8,727,985)         (9,062,641)        
Construction work in progress 38,856                400,229            


Total Noncurrent Assets 19,209,637         16,457,346       


Total Assets 20,821,904         17,629,937       


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2014 and 2013


ASSETS
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2014 2013
CURRENT LIABILITIES


Accounts payable 118,866$            47,522$            
Accrued wages 16,670                20,838              
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets


Current portion of revenue bonds 381,701              256,735            
Accrued interest 24,894                13,110              


Total Current Liabilities 542,131              338,205            


NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds 5,312,592           2,646,720         
Accrued sick leave 91,005                91,605              


Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,403,597           2,738,325         


Total Liabilities 5,945,728           3,076,530         


Investment in capital assets 12,236,966         12,399,704       
Restricted for debt service 336,457              218,624            
Restricted for equipment replacement 1,153,490           1,029,299         
Unrestricted 1,149,263           905,780            


TOTAL NET POSITION 14,876,176$      14,553,407$    


LIABILITIES


NET POSITION


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 31







2014 2013
OPERATING REVENUES


Treatment charges 2,017,666$         1,997,981$       
Other 33,219                31,483              


Total Operating Revenues 2,050,885           2,029,464         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 944,780              877,420            
Depreciation 726,884              673,593            


Total Operating Expenses 1,671,664           1,551,013         


OPERATING INCOME 379,221              478,451            


NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 11,559                3,498                
Interest expense (105,611)            (85,280)             
Miscellaneous revenues -                         -                        


Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (94,052)              (81,782)             


Income Before Contributions 285,169              396,669            


CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 37,600                21,773              


CHANGE IN NET POSITION 322,769              418,442            


NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 14,553,407         14,134,965       


NET POSITION - END OF YEAR 14,876,176$      14,553,407$    


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 32







2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Received from customers 2,046,857$         2,034,979$       
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (639,382)            (514,833)           
Paid to employees for operating payroll (346,158)            (341,225)           


Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,061,317           1,178,921         


CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (3,254,921)         (1,053,700)        
Debt retired (256,735)            (649,737)           
Interest paid (93,827)              (88,589)             
Received from the sale of capital assets 15,347                -                        
Capital contributions received 37,600                -                        
Proceeds from debt issue 3,047,573           -                        


Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities (504,963)            (1,792,026)        


CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments purchased (846,000)            (608,868)           
Investments sold and matured 874,044              428,919            
Investment income 14,508                1,123                


Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities 42,552                (178,826)           


Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 598,906              (791,931)           


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year 1,449,778           2,241,709         


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 2,048,684$         1,449,778$      


NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Unrealized gain (loss) on investments (303)$                 22,685$           


Capital assets financed by CTC program -$                       21,773$           


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
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2014 2013
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
  FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Operating income 379,221$            478,451$          
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Noncash items in operating income


Depreciation 726,884              673,593            
Changes in assets and liabilities


Customer accounts receivable (6,817)                (1,309)               
Other account receivable -                         3,642                
Due from municipality 2,789                  3,182                
Prepayments 8,074                  (117)                  
Accounts payable (44,066)              16,341              
Accrued sick leave (600)                   (112)                  
Other current liabilities (4,168)                5,250                


NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,061,317$        1,178,921$      


RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
   STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ACCOUNTS


Cash and investments 1,055,750$         738,999$          
Redemption account 328,068              198,451            
Depreciation account 33,283                33,283              
Replacement account 1,153,490           1,029,299         
Construction account 123                     123                   
Sick leave reserve account 91,605                91,605              


Total Cash and Investments 2,662,319           2,091,760         
Less: Noncash equivalents (613,635)            (641,982)           


CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,048,684$        1,449,778$      


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013


See accompanying notes to the financial statements. Page 34
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements of Stoughton Utilities (utilities) have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to enterprise funds of 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  
 
The significant accounting principles and policies utilized by the utilities are described below. 
   
 REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The utilities are separate enterprise funds of the City of Stoughton (municipality). The utilities are 
managed by a utilities committee. The utilities provide electric, water and wastewater service to properties 
within the municipality. The utilities also provide electric service to the Townships of Dunkirk, Dunn, 
Pleasant Springs, Porter and Rutland. 
 
The electric and water utilities operate under service rules and rates established by the Public Service 
Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). The wastewater utility operates under rules and rates established by 
the utilities committee. The utilities are also regulated by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. 
 
 MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 
 
The utilities are presented as enterprise funds of the municipality. Enterprise funds are used to account 
for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the 
governing body has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and net income is 
necessary for management accountability. 
 
The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized 
when the exchange takes place.  
 
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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 ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 


 
  Deposits and Investments 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents have original maturities of three 
months or less from the date of acquisition. 
 
Investment of utilities' funds are restricted by state statutes. Investments are limited to: 
 
 1. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company maturing in three years or  
  less. 


 2. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village, town, or 
school district of the state. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition district, local professional 
baseball park district, local professional football stadium district, local cultural arts district or by the 
University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority. 


 3. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government. 


 4. The local government investment pool. 


 5. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest rating 
category of a nationally recognized rating agency. 


 6. Securities of an open end management investment company or investment trust, subject to various 
conditions and investment options. 


 7. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions. 
 
The utilities have adopted an investment policy. That policy follows the state statute for allowable 
investments. 
 
Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a 
current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on quoted market prices. No 
investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value 
are recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in investment income. Market values 
may have changed significantly after year end. 
 
  Receivables/Payables 
 
Transactions between the utilities and other funds of the municipality that are representative of 
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at year end are referred to as advances to/from other funds. 
All other outstanding balances between the utilities and other funds of the municipality are reported as 
due to/from other funds. 
 
The utilities have the right under Wisconsin statutes to place delinquent electric, water and wastewater 
bills on the tax roll for collection for properties within the municipality. As such, no allowance for 
uncollectible customer accounts is considered necessary. 
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  Materials and Supplies  
 
Materials and supplies are generally used for construction, operation and maintenance work, not for 
resale. They are valued at the lower of cost or market utilizing the average cost method and charged to 
construction or expense when used. 
  
  Restricted Assets 
 
Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets. Such segregations are required by 
bond agreements and other external parties. Current liabilities payable from these restricted assets are so 
classified.  
   
  Investment in American Transmission Company (ATC) 
 
The electric utility is a member of ATC. ATC was formed by approximately 25 utilities to plan, construct, 
maintain, monitor and own electric transmission facilities in Wisconsin. The utility owns less than 1/2 of 1 
percent of ATC. 
 
The investment earns dividends quarterly, some of which are paid in cash and some of which are 
required to be reinvested. From time to time, the utility has the option to contribute additional funds to 
maintain their proportionate share of ownership. The asset is valued at original cost plus additional 
contributions and reinvested dividends.  
 
  Sick Leave Reserve Account 
 
Upon retirement, these funds are used for insurance coverage for utility employees. 
 
   Plant and Maintenance Reserve Account 
 
These accounts are utilized to segregate funds for the future repairs and replacements of electric and 
water utility capital assets as designated by the committee.  
     
  Non-Utility Property 
 
Electric utility non-utility property consists of the city dam with a balance of $84,212 and leasehold rental 
property with a balance of $91,458 at December 31, 2014 and 2013. Water utility non-utility property 
consists of a park shelter with a balance of $107,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013. The costs are 
being amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful life. 
 
    Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are generally defined by the utilities as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than 
$1,500 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 
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    Capital Assets (cont.) 
 
Capital assets of the utilities are recorded at cost or the fair market value at the time of contribution to the 
utilities. Major outlays for utilities plant are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during 
the construction phase is reflected in the capitalized value of the capital assets constructed, net of interest 
earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. Capital assets in service are depreciated using 
the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 
 
  Years  


Electric Plant    
Transmission  33  
Distribution  25 - 54  
General  5 - 30  
    


Water Plant    
Source of supply  34  
Pumping  23 - 31  
Water treatment  30 - 31  
Transmission and distribution  18 - 77  
General  4 - 34  
    


Wastewater Plant    
Collecting system  100  
Collecting system pumping  25 - 50  
Treatment and disposal  15 - 40  
General  5 - 20  


 
  Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave 
 
Under terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacations in varying amounts. Only 
benefits considered to be vested are disclosed in these statements. Vested vacation and sick leave pay is 
accrued when earned in the financial statements. The liability is liquidated from general operating 
revenues of the utilities.  
 
  Customer Advances for Construction 
 
The balance represents fees collected for future capital improvements. The fees may be refundable 
based on rules filed with the PSCW or statutory requirements.  
 
   Commitment to Community 
 
The electric utility charges fees to all customers as required by the 1999 Energy Reliability Act and 2005 
Act 141. Revenues generated from the fees are forwarded to the State of Wisconsin and are used to fund 
energy conservation and low-income energy assistance ("Commitment to Community") programs. The 
utility is acting as an agent administering the low income program fees so revenues and expenses 
associated with the low income program are recorded as a current liability on the statement of net 
position  
. 
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  Customer Deposits  
 
This account represents amounts deposited with the utilities by customers as security for payment of bills. 
 
  Accrued Liabilities 
 
The balance represents collections of various payroll and sales taxes due to the state and federal 
government. 
 
  Long-Term Obligations 
 
Long-term debt and other obligations are reported as utilities liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Gains or losses on 
prior refundings are amortized over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever 
is shorter. The balance at year end for premiums and discounts is shown as an increase or decrease in 
the liability section of the statement of net position. 
  
 REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
 
The utilities distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection 
with the utilities' principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the utilities are charges 
to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales 
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
  Charges for Services 
 
Billings are rendered and recorded monthly based on metered usage. The utilities do accrue revenues 
beyond billing dates.  
  
Current electric rates were approved by the PSCW on January 3, 2011. The rates are designed to 
provide a 6.5% return on rate base 
  
Current water rates were approved by the PSCW effective June 1, 2014. The rates are designed to earn 
a 6.5% return on rate base 
  
Current wastewater rates were approved by the utilities committee effective July 5, 2007.  
  
   Capital Contributions 
 
Cash and capital assets are contributed to the utilities from customers, the municipality or external 
parties. The value of property contributed to the utilities is reported as revenue on the statements of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position.  
 
  Transfers 
 
Transfers include the payment in lieu of taxes to the municipality and other operating transfers. 
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 EFFECT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ON CURRENT PERIOD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved GASB Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and 
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an 
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. When they become effective, application of the standards may 
restate portions of these financial statements. 
 
 COMPARATIVE DATA 
 
Certain amounts presented in the prior year data may have been reclassified in order to be consistent 
with the current year’s presentation.  
 


NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 


 Carrying Value as of 
December 31,  


 


  2014  2013  Risks 


Checking and Savings $ 5,125,888 $ 5,162,273 Custodial credit risk 
LGIP  846,341  709,707 Credit and interest rate risks 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  2,465,472  2,226,329 Custodial credit, credit, 


concentration, and interest 
rate risks 


U.S. Agency Securities  2,750,094  2,694,972 Custodial credit, credit, 
concentration and interest 
rate risks 


Petty Cash  750  750  


 Totals $ 11,188,545 $ 10,794,031  
 


Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for time and 
savings accounts (including NOW accounts), $250,000 for demand deposit accounts (interest bearing 
and noninterest bearing). In addition, if deposits are held in an institution outside of the state in which the 
government is located, insured amounts are further limited to a total of $250,000 for the combined 
amount of all deposit accounts. 
 
Bank accounts are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund (SDGF) in the amount of $400,000.  
 
The utilities may also maintain separate cash and investment accounts at the same financial institutions 
utilized by the municipality. Federal depository insurance and the SDGF apply to all municipal accounts, 
and accordingly, the amount of insured funds is not determinable for the utilities alone. Therefore, 
coverage for the utilities may be reduced. Investment income on commingled investments of the entire 
municipality is allocated based on average investment balances.  
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$500,000 of the utilities' investments have coverage from the Securities Investor Protection Corporation 
(SIPC).  
 
In addition, the utilities, with the city, have collateral or depository insurance agreements in the amount of 
$4,339,228 at December 31, 2014 and $2,423,175 at December 31, 2013. 
 
The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF), and 
is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF 
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw 
their funds in total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the fair value of the LGIP's 
assets were substantially equal to the utilities' share. 
 


Custodial Credit Risk 


Deposits 


Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the utilities' deposits may 
not be returned to the utilities. 


The utilities maintain certain deposits at the same institutions as the municipality. The custodial credit risk 
pertaining specifically to the utilities' resources at these institutions cannot be determined individually for 
those accounts. The following is a summary of the utilities' total deposit balances at these institutions. 


Bank Carrying Bank Carrying
Balance Value Balance Value


Wells Fargo 2,559,228$    2,671,138$     3,188,597$      3,246,867$    
Wells Fargo Brokerage 928               928                928                 928               
Associated Bank 2,453,822      2,453,822       1,915,109        1,915,109      


Deposits Exposed to Custodial 
  Credit Risk 5,013,978$    5,125,888$     5,104,634$      5,162,904$    


2014 2013


 


The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 
Investments 
 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
utilities will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. 
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As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 the utilities' investments were exposed to custodial credit risk as 
follows: 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed  2014   2013  


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 2,750,094  $ 2,694,972  


Negotiable Certificates of Deposit    


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 2,746  $ 5,150  
 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 


Credit Risk 
 


Credit risk is the risk an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
 
As of December 31, 2014, the utilities' investments were rated as follows: 
 


Investment Type 
Standard & 


Poors 


Moody's 
Investors 
Services 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed AAA Aa 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit not rated  


 
As of December 31, 2013, the utilities' investments were rated as follows: 
 


Investment Type 
Standard & 


Poors 


Moody's 
Investors 
Services 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed AAA Aa 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit not rated  







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 


 


NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (cont.) 
 


Credit Risk (cont.) 
 


Page 43 


The utilities held investments in the Local Government Investment Pool which is an external pool that is 
not rated. 


 
The utilities' investment policy follows state statutes.  
 


Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in 
a single issuer. 
 
At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the utilities' investment portfolio was concentrated as follows: 
 
   Percentage of Portfolio 


Issuer Investment Type  2014  2013 
    
Ginnie Mae U.S. Agencies – Implicitly Guaranteed 44.41% 20.83% 
FHR 4083 PA U.S. Agencies – Implicitly Guaranteed 6.23% 4.03% 
FHR 3857 EC U.S. Agencies – Implicitly Guaranteed 5.53% 3.65% 
FHLB U.S. Agencies – Implicitly Guaranteed 10.15% 3.69% 


 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 


 
Interest Rate Risk 


 
Interest rate risk is the risk changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
 
As of December 31, 2014, the utilities' investments were as follows: 
 


 Maturity (In Years) 


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 - 3 3 or more 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed $ 2,750,094 $ - $ - $ 2,750,094 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  2,465,472  738,523  1,726,949  - 


Totals $ 5,215,566 $ 738,523 $ 1,726,949 $ 2,750,094 
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As of December 31, 2013, the utilities' investments were as follows: 
 


 Maturity (In Years) 


Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 - 3 3 or more 


U.S. Agencies - Implicitly Guaranteed $ 2,694,972 $ 216,701 $ - $ 2,478,271 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  2,226,329  735,710  1,490,619  - 


Totals $ 4,921,301 $ 952,411 $ 1,490,619 $ 2,478,271 
 
The utilities' investment policy does not address this risk. 
 


NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 
 
The following is a schedule of interfund balances for the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2013: 
 
  2014  2013 
 Due To   Due From   Amount  Principal Purpose  Amount   Principal Purpose 
      
Municipality Water utility $ 352,700 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
$ 361,820  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
Electric utility Municipality  13,329 Operating  17,389  Operating 
Water utility Municipality  - Operating  2,709  Operating 
Sewer utility Municipality  - Operating  2,789  Operating 
Municipality Electric utility  37,893 Stormwater  72,753  Stormwater 
Municipality Electric utility  366,032 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 380,584  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
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The following is a schedule of transfers for the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2013: 
 
  2014  2013 
 To   From   Amount  Principal Purpose  Amount   Principal Purpose 
      
Municipality Electric utility $ 19,212 Operating  $ 29,989  Operating  
Municipality Electric utility  366,032 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 380,584  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
Municipality Water utility  6,001 Operating  10,879  Operating 
Municipality Water utility  352,700 Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 361,820  Payment in lieu of 


taxes 
 


NOTE 4 – ADVANCE RECEIVABLE 
 
In December 2011, the Electric Utility provided an advance to the General Fund in the amount of 
$554,744 for the purpose of full payment of the Wisconsin Retirement System Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability. The General Fund will repay the Electric Utility over a period of fourteen years at 3.0% 
annual interest. The amount outstanding at December 31, 2014 is $448,806. 
 
Repayment requirements to maturity follow: 
 


Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 


2015  35,065  13,464  48,529 
2016  37,088  12,412  49,500 
2017  39,190  11,300  50,490 
2018  41,375  10,124  51,499 
2019  43,646  8,883  52,529 
2020 - 2024  246,511  23,314  269,825 
2025  5,931  178  6,109 


    
Totals $ 448,806 $ 79,675 $ 528,481 


 


NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED ASSETS 
 
 Restricted Accounts 
 
Certain proceeds of the utilities' debt, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are 
classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use is limited. The following 
accounts are reported as restricted assets: 
 
 Redemption - Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments  
   over the next twelve months.  
 Reserve - Used to report resources set aside to make up potential future  
   deficiencies in the redemption account. 
 Depreciation - Used to report resources set aside to fund plant renewals and  
   replacement or make up potential future deficiencies in the  
   redemption account. 
 Construction - Used to report debt proceeds restricted for use in construction. 
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 Replacement Account 
 
As a condition of receiving state and federal funds for wastewater plant construction, the utilities have 
established an account for replacement of certain mechanical equipment.  
 
 Restricted Net Position  
 
The following calculation supports the amount of electric restricted net position: 
 


  2014  2013 
Restricted Assets   


Redemption account $ 397,337 $ 387,545 
Reserve account  704,728  704,728 
Depreciation account  25,000  25,000 


Total Restricted Assets  1,127,065  1,117,273 
   


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets  (37,860)  (41,231) 
   


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 1,089,205 $ 1,076,042 
 
The following calculation supports the amount of water restricted net position: 
 


  2014  2013 
Restricted Assets   


Redemption account $ 120,935 $ 123,710 
Reserve account  274,005  274,005 
Depreciation account  25,000  25,000 


Total Restricted Assets  419,940  422,715 
   


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets  (13,606)  (13,879) 
   


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 406,334 $ 408,836 
 
The following calculation supports the amount of wastewater restricted net position: 
 


  2014  2013 
Restricted Assets   


Redemption account $ 328,068 $ 198,451 
Depreciation account  33,283  33,283 
Replacement account  1,153,490  1,029,299 
Construction account  123  123 


Total Restricted Assets  1,514,964  1,261,156 


Less: Restricted Assets Not Funded by Revenues   
Construction account  (123)  (123) 


Current Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets  (24,894)  (13,110) 


Total Restricted Net Position as Calculated $ 1,489,947 $ 1,247,923 
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 Electric Utility 
 
A summary of changes in electric capital assets for 2014 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/14  Increases  Decreases   12/31/14 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights $ 573,461 $ - $ -  $ 573,461 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Transmission  15,019  -  -   15,019 
Distribution  21,845,300  532,798  91,221   22,286,877 
General  4,033,138  44,694  33,800   4,044,032 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 25,893,457 


 
 577,492 


 
 125,021  


 
 26,345,928 


     
Total Capital Assets  26,466,918  577,492  125,021   26,919,389 


     
Less: Accumulated depreciation      


Transmission  (19,366)  -  -   (19,366) 
Distribution  (9,329,006)  (800,994)  92,721   (10,037,217) 
General  (2,394,002)  (177,848)  33,800   (2,538,112) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (11,742,374) 


 
 (978,842) 


 
 126,521  


 
 (12,594,695) 


     
Construction in progress  1,845  435,235  411,025   26,055 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 14,726,389   $ 14,350,749 
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A summary of changes in electric capital assets for 2013 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/13  Increases  Decreases   12/31/13 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights $ 573,461 $ - $ -  $ 573,461 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Transmission  15,019  -  -   15,019 
Distribution  21,382,617  531,617  68,934   21,845,300 
General  4,014,818  18,320  -   4,033,138 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 25,412,454 


 
 549,937 


 
 68,934  


 
 25,893,457 


     
Total Capital Assets  25,985,915  549,937  68,934   26,466,918 


     
Less: Accumulated depreciation      


Transmission  (19,366)  -  -   (19,366) 
Distribution  (8,617,372)  (788,359)  76,725   (9,329,006) 
General  (2,217,363)  (176,639)  -   (2,394,002) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (10,854,101) 


 
 (964,998) 


 
 76,725  


 
 (11,742,374) 


     
Construction in progress  29,095  593,691  620,941   1,845 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 15,160,909   $ 14,726,389 
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 Water Utility 
 
A summary of changes in water capital assets for 2014 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/14  Increases  Decreases   12/31/14 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights $ 430,131 $ - $ -  $ 430,131 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Source of supply  570,123  -  -   570,123 
Pumping  1,461,654  -  -   1,461,654 
Water treatment  90,763  -  -   90,763 
Transmission and distribution  14,763,312  596,098  17,680  15,341,730 
General  784,424  19,023  -   803,447 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 17,670,276 


 
 615,121 


 
 17,680  


 
 18,267,717 


     
Total Capital Assets  18,100,407  615,121  17,680   18,697,848 


     
Less: Accumulated depreciation      


Source of supply  (318,998)  (16,534)  -   (335,532) 
Pumping  (1,100,476)  (57,136)  -   (1,157,612) 
Water treatment  (87,329)  (437)  -   (87,766) 
Transmission and distribution  (3,461,841)  (279,584)  17,680   (3,723,745) 
General  (609,427)  (67,075)  -   (676,502) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (5,578,071) 


 
 (420,766) 


 
 17,680  


 
 (5,981,157) 


     
Construction in progress  24,194  538,384  531,951   30,627 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 12,546,530   $ 12,747,318 
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A summary of changes in water capital assets for 2013 follows: 
     
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/13  Increases  Decreases   12/31/13 
Capital assets, not being depreciated     


Land and land rights $ 430,131 $ - $ -  $ 430,131 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Source of supply  570,123  -  -   570,123 
Pumping  1,428,958  32,696  -   1,461,654 
Water treatment  90,763  -  -   90,763 
Transmission and distribution  14,387,194  381,074  4,956  14,763,312 
General  780,172  4,252  -   784,424


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 17,257,210 


 
 418,022 


 
 4,956  


 
 17,670,276 


     
Total Capital Assets  17,687,341  418,022  4,956   18,100,407 


     
Less: Accumulated depreciation      


Source of supply  (302,464)  (16,534)  -   (318,998) 
Pumping  (1,044,059)  (56,417)  -   (1,100,476) 
Water treatment  (86,892)  (437)  -   (87,329) 
Transmission and distribution  (3,198,394)  (268,403)  4,956   (3,461,841) 
General  (542,598)  (66,829)  -   (609,427) 


Total Accumulated 
Depreciation 


 
 (5,174,407) 


 
 (408,620) 


 
 4,956  


 
 (5,578,071) 


     
Construction in progress  24,233  475,491  475,530   24,194 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 12,537,167   $ 12,546,530 
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 Wastewater Utility 
 
A summary of changes in wastewater capital assets for 2014 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/14  Increases  Decreases   12/31/14 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Collecting system $ 9,092,573 $ 277,337 $ 9,754  $ 9,360,156 
Collecting system pumping  397,412  7,153  3,500   401,065 
Treatment and disposal  13,319,526  2,969,255   738,632   15,550,149 
General  1,155,937  477,958  325,000   1,308,895 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 23,965,448 


 
 3,731,703 


 
 1,076,886  


 
 26,620,265 


     
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (9,062,641)  (742,230)  1,076,886   (8,727,985) 
     
Construction in progress  400,229  3,334,405  3,695,778   38,856 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 15,303,036   $ 17,931,136 
 
A summary of changes in wastewater capital assets for 2013 follows: 
 
  Balance       Balance 
  01/01/13  Increases  Decreases   12/31/13 
     
Capital assets being depreciated      


Collecting system $ 8,789,146 $ 307,765 $ 4,338  $ 9,092,573 
Collecting system pumping  397,412  -  -   397,412 
Treatment and disposal  12,914,727  457,599  52,800   13,319,526 
General  1,150,622  5,315  -   1,155,937 


Total Capital Assets Being 
Depreciated 


 
 23,251,907 


 
 770,679 


 
 57,138  


 
 23,965,448 


     
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (8,446,186)  (673,593)  57,138   (9,062,641) 
     
Construction in progress  215,757  1,028,549  844,077   400,229 
     


Net Capital Assets $ 15,021,478   $ 15,303,036 
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NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 
 Revenue Bonds - Electric 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding  
      Final  Interest  Original   Amount  
 Date   Purpose  Maturity  Rate  Amount   12/31/14  
       
 February 15, 
2013  


Electric system 
improvements 


 April 1, 2023 2.00 - 2.25% $ 3,170,000  $ 2,865,000  


       
November 
15, 2006  


Electric system 
improvements 


 April 1, 2023 4.00 - 4.50  2,550,000   2,075,000  


 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 
    


2015  480,000  145,275  625,275 
2016  490,000  131,856  621,856 
2017  500,000  117,488  617,488 
2018  520,000  102,288  622,288 
2019  535,000  86,425  621,425 
2020 - 2023  2,415,000  161,194  2,576,194 


    
Totals $ 4,940,000 $ 744,525 $ 5,684,525 


 
All electric utility revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above 
revenue bonds until the bonds are defeased. Principal and interest paid for 2014 and 2013 (including 
amounts refunded) were $638,412 and $3,880,835, respectively. Total gross revenues as defined for the 
same periods were $15,684,882 and $15,439,025, respectively. Annual principal and interest payments 
are expected to require 4% of gross revenues. 
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 Revenue Bonds - Water 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding  
      Final  Interest  Original   Amount  
 Date   Purpose  Maturity  Rate  Amount   12/31/14  
       
November 
15, 2006  


Additions and 
improvements 


 May 1, 2023  4.00 - 4.50 %  1,925,000   1,450,000  


January 27, 
2010  


Additions and 
improvements 


 May 1, 2029  2.668  575,018   476,638 


 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 
    


2015  151,257  74,273  225,530 
2016  176,958  67,719  244,677 
2017  177,677  60,428  238,105 
2018  178,415  52,929  231,344 
2019  179,173  45,411  224,584 
2020-2024  882,965  101,733  984,698 
2025-2029  180,193  12,272  192,465 


    
Totals $ 1,926,638 $ 414,766 $ 2,341,404 


 
All water utility revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above 
revenue bonds until the bonds are defeased. Principal and interest paid for 2014 and 2013 were 
$230,852 and $272,057, respectively. Total gross revenues as defined for the same periods were 
$1,753,079 and $1,733,214, respectively. Annual principal and interest payments are expected to require 
8.9% of gross revenues. 
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 Revenue Bonds - Wastewater 
 
The following bonds have been issued: 
 
      Outstanding  
      Final  Interest  Original   Amount  
 Date   Purpose  Maturity  Rate  Amount   12/31/14  
       
December 
22, 1999  


Wastewater interceptor  May 1, 2019  3.049 % $ 623,465  $ 194,751  


July 12, 
2000  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2020  3.049   1,116,259   409,276  


September 
10, 2003  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2023  2.766   1,670,624   870,525  


June 27, 
2007  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2027  2.475   1,539,762   1,172,166  


November 1, 
2014  


WWTP improvements  May 1, 2034  2.625   3,047,575   3,047,575


 
Revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity follows: 
 


 Year Ending    
December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 
    


2015 $ 381,701 $ 145,212 $ 526,913 
2016  392,149  135,689  527,838 
2017  402,886  124,805  527,691 
2018  413,918  113,621  527,539 
2019  425,253  102,129  527,382 
2020-2024  1,653,821  364,195  2,018,016 
2025-2029      1,108,876       185,494      1,294,370
2030-2034  915,689  61,337  977,026 


    
Totals $ 5,694,293 $ 1,232,482 $ 6,926,775 


 
All wastewater utility revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the above 
revenue bonds until the bonds are defeased. Principal and interest paid for 2014 and 2013 were 
$350,562 and $738,326, respectively. Total gross revenues as defined for the same periods were 
$2,062,444 and $2,032,962, respectively. Annual principal and interest payments are expected to require 
16.8% of gross revenues. 
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 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Electric 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/14      12/31/14   Due Within 
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year 
       
Revenue bonds $ 5,420,000 $ - $ 480,000 $ 4,940,000  $ 480,000 
Unamortized premium 


on bonds 
 
 74,461


 
 - 


 
 13,626


 
 60,835 


 
 - 


Accrued sick leave  173,704  21,279  28,110  166,873   - 
Customer advances 


for construction 
 
 5,514 


 
 36,205 


 
 27,369 


 
 14,350  


 
 - 


      
Totals $ 5,673,679 $ 57,484 $ 549,105 $ 5,182,058  $ 480,000 


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/13      12/31/13   Due Within  
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year  
        
Revenue bonds $ 5,905,000 $ 3,170,000 $ 3,655,000 $ 5,420,000  $ 480,000  
Unamortized premium 


on bonds 
 
 - 


 
 83,431


 
 8,970


 
 74,461 


 
 - 


Accrued sick leave  171,819  42,282  40,397  173,704   -  
Customer advances 


for construction 
 
 8,082 


 
 49,389 


 
 51,957 


 
 5,514  


 
 - 


 


       
Totals $ 6,084,901 $ 3,345,102 $ 3,756,261 $ 5,673,679  $ 480,000  


 
 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Water 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/14      12/31/14   Due Within 
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year 
       
Revenue bonds $ 2,077,213 $ - $ 150,575 


 
$ 1,926,638 
  


$ 151,257 


Accrued sick leave  94,638  -  11,207  83,431   - 
      
Totals $ 2,171,851 $ - $ 161,782 $ 2,010,069  $ 151,257 


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/13      12/31/13   Due Within  
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year  
        
Revenue bonds $ 2,262,123 $ - $ 184,910 $ 2,077,213  $ 150,575  
Accrued sick leave  92,446  24,117  21,925  94,638   -  


       
Totals $ 2,354,569 $ 24,117 $ 206,835 $ 2,171,851  $ 150,575  







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 


 


NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.) 
 


Page 56 


 Long-Term Obligations Summary - Wastewater 
 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/14      12/31/14   Due Within 
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year 
       
Revenue bonds $ 2,903,455 $ 3,047,573 $ 256,735 $ 5,694,293  $ 381,701 
Accrued sick leave  91,605  4,905  5,505  91,005   - 


      
Totals $ 2,995,060 $ 3,052,478 $ 262,240 $ 5,785,298  $ 381,701 


 
Long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows: 
 
  01/01/13      12/31/13   Due Within  
  Balance  Additions  Reductions  Balance   One Year  
        
Revenue bonds $ 3,553,192 $ - $ 649,737 $ 2,903,455  $ 256,735  
Accrued sick leave  91,717  7,583  7,695  91,605   -  


       
Totals $ 3,644,909 $ 7,583 $ 657,432 $ 2,995,060  $ 256,735  


 
 Current Refunding 
 
On February 15, 2013, bonds in the amount of $3,170,000 were issued with an average interest rate of 
2.13% to refund $3,580,000 of outstanding 2003 bonds with an average interest rate of 4.81%. The net 
proceeds along with existing debt service funds were used to prepay the outstanding debt service 
requirements on the old bonds. 
 
The cash flow requirements on the old bonds prior to the current refunding was $4,575,205 from April 
2013 through 2023. The cash flow requirements on the new bonds are $3,554,591 from October 2013 
through 2023. The current refunding resulted in an economic gain of $564,120. 
 
 Bond Covenant Disclosures 
 
The following information is provided in compliance with the resolutions creating the utilities' revenue 
bonds: 
 
  Insurance 
 
The utilities are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, or destruction of 
assets, errors and omissions, workers compensation, and health care of its employees. These risks are 
covered through the purchase of commercial insurance, with minimal deductibles. Settled claims have not 
exceeded coverage in any of the last three years. There were no significant reductions in coverage 
compared to the prior year. 
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The utilities are covered under the following insurance policies at December 31, 2014: 
 


 Type  Coverage   Expiration 
    
Automobile $ 10,000,000 CVMIC   Self-Insured 1/1/15 
Excess Liability  5,000,000 CVMIC   Self-Insured 1/1/15 
Workers Compensation  5,000,000 CVMIC   Self-Insured 1/1/15 
  1,000,000 CVMIC   Self-Insured 1/1/15 
Boiler Insurance  100,000,000 CVMIC   Self-Insured 1/1/15 
Property  47,707,453 Wisconsin Local 2/1/15 
  Property Insurance  
  Fund  


 
 Debt Coverage - Electric  
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.3 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds. The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation or 
other debt. The coverage requirement was met in 2014 and 2013 as follows: 
 


  2014  2013   
     
Operating revenues $ 15,603,989 $ 15,379,679   
Investment income  80,893  59,346   
Less: Operation and maintenance expenses  (13,770,271)  (13,512,427)   
     


Net Defined Earnings $ 1,914,611 $ 1,926,598   
     
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:     


Highest annual debt service  $ 649,338 $ 649,338   
Coverage factor  1.30  1.30   


     
Minimum Required Earnings $ 844,139 $ 844,139   


Actual Debt Coverage  2.95  2.97   
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 Debt Coverage - Water 
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.3 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds. The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation or 
other debt. The coverage requirement was met in 2014 and 2013 as follows: 
 


  2014  2013  
    
Operating revenues $ 1,750,961 $ 1,727,969  
Investment income  2,118  5,245  
Less: Operation and maintenance expenses  (924,261)  (779,963)  
    


Net Defined Earnings $ 828,818 $ 953,251  
    
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:    


Highest annual debt service  $ 244,677 $ 244,677  
Coverage factor  1.30  1.30  


    
Minimum Required Earnings $ 318,080 $ 318,080  


Actual Debt Coverage  3.39  3.90  
 
  Debt Coverage - Wastewater 
 
Under terms of the resolutions providing for the issue of revenue bonds, revenues less operating 
expenses excluding depreciation (defined net earnings) must exceed 1.1 times the highest annual debt 
service of the bonds. The coverage only includes revenue debt and does not include general obligation or 
other debt. The coverage requirement was in 2014 and 2013 as follows: 
 


  2014  2013  
    
Operating revenues $ 2,050,885 $ 2,029,464  
Investment income  11,559  3,498  
Less: Operation and maintenance expenses  (944,780)  (877,420)  
    


Net Defined Earnings $ 1,117,664 $ 1,155,542  
    
Minimum Required Earnings per Resolution:    


Highest annual debt service  $ 527,838  $ 331,820  
Coverage factor  1.10  1.10  


    
Minimum Required Earnings $ 580,622  $ 365,002  


Actual Debt Coverage  2.12   3.48  
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 Number of Customers - Electric 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2014 and 2013: 
 


  Customers  Sales (000 kWh) 
  2014  2013  2014   2013 
     
Residential  7,562  7,552  64,316   65,629 
General  855  852  17,294   18,500 
Small power  50  50  16,725   15,105 
Large power  8  8  11,014   10,937 
Industrial  6  6  31,232   30,266 
Street and highway lighting  6  6  994   976 
     


Totals  8,487  8,474  141,575  141,413
 
 Number of Customers - Water 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2014 and 2013: 
 


  Customers  Sales (000 gals) 
  2014  2013  2014   2013 
     
Residential  4,383  4,381  234,669   214,740 
Commercial  403  413  59,411   83,772 
Industrial  24  25  170,804   175,414 
Public authority  42  43  5,777   5,864 
Interdepartmental  2  2  606   837 
     


Totals  4,854  4,864  471,267   480,627 
 
 Number of Customers - Wastewater 
 
The utility has the following number of customers and billed volumes for 2014 and 2013: 
 


  Customers  Sales (000 gals) 
  2014  2013  2014   2013 
     
Residential  4,364  4,375  207,008   213,095 
Commercial  399  399  83,053   81,512 
Industrial  21  21  35,629   27,101 
Public authority  31  32  4,448   4,193 
Interdepartmental  1  1  45   50 
     


Totals  4,816  4,828  330,183   325,951 
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 Utilities Budget   
 
The 2014 and 2013 utilities' budgets were prepared and approved as required by the bond resolutions.  
  


NOTE 8 - NET POSITION  
 
GASB No. 34 requires the classification of net position into three components - investment in capital 
assets; restricted; and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 
 
Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, including 
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the 
portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds are not included in the calculation of invested in 
capital assets. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position component as the 
unspent proceeds. 
 
Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net position use through 
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. 
 
Unrestricted - This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "invested in capital assets." 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the utilities' policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
The following calculation supports the electric investment in capital assets: 
 
  2014   2013  
    
Plant in service $ 26,566,725  $ 26,114,254  
Accumulated depreciation  (12,594,695)   (11,742,374)  
Property held for future use      352,664      352,664  
Construction work in progress  26,055   1,845  


Sub-Totals  14,350,749   14,726,389  
    
Less: Capital related debt    


Current portion of capital related long-term debt  480,000   480,000  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt  4,460,000   4,940,000  
Unamortized premium on bonds  60,835   74,461  


Sub-Totals  5,000,835   5,494,461  
 
Total Investment in Capital Assets 


 
$ 9,349,914  


 
$ 9,231,928 
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The following calculation supports the water investment in capital assets: 
 
  2014   2013  
    
Plant in service $ 18,697,848  $ 18,100,407  
Accumulated depreciation  (5,981,157)   (5,578,071)  
Construction work in progress  30,627   24,194  


Sub-Totals  12,747,318   12,546,530  
    
Less: Capital related debt    


Current portion of capital related long-term debt  151,257   150,575  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt  1,775,381   1,926,638  


Sub-Totals  1,926,638   2,077,213  
 
Total Investment in Capital Assets 


 
$ 10,820,680  


 
$ 10,469,317 


 


 
The following calculation supports the wastewater investment in capital assets: 
 
  2014   2013  
    
Plant in service $ 26,620,265  $ 23,965,448  
Accumulated depreciation  (8,727,985)   (9,062,641)  
Construction work in progress  38,856   400,229  


Sub-Totals  17,931,136   15,303,036  
    
Less: Capital related debt    


Current portion of capital related long-term debt  381,701   256,735  
Long-term portion of capital related long-term debt  5,312,592   2,646,720  


Sub-Totals  5,694,293   2,903,455  
    
Add: Unspent debt proceeds    


Construction funds  123   123  
 
Total Investment in Capital Assets 


 
$ 12,236,966  


 
$ 12,399,704 
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NOTE 9 – EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 
All eligible employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing multiple 
employer defined benefit, public employee retirement system. All employees, initially employed by a 
participating WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011, expected to work at least 600 hours a year and 
expected to be employed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in 
the WRS. All employees, initially employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and 
expected to work at least 1,200 hours a year and expected to be employed for at least one year from 
employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. 
 
Prior to June 29, 2011, covered employees in the General category were required by statute to contribute 
6.5% of their salary to the plan. Employers could make these contributions to the plan on behalf of 
employees. Employers were required to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund 
the remaining projected cost of future benefits. 
 
Effective the first day of the first pay period on or after June 29, 2011 the employee required contribution 
was changed to one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for General category employees. 
Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution rate. The 
employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing collective 
bargaining agreement. Contribution rates for 2014 and 2013 are: 
 
     Employees Employer 
 
   2014     7.00%    7.00% 
   2013     6.65%    6.65% 
 
Electric 
 


  Year Ended December 31 
  2014  2013  2012 
    
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 869,715 $ 911,661 $ 917,915 
Total Required Contributions $ 121,760 $ 121,251 $ 108,314 
Total Required Contributions  14.0%   13.3%   11.8%  


 
Water 


  Year Ended December 31 
  2014  2013  2012 
    
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 319,569 $ 260,471 $ 256,822 
Total Required Contributions $ 44,740 $ 34,643 $ 30,305 
Total Required Contributions  14.0%   13.3%   11.8%  


 
Wastewater 


  Year Ended December 31 
  2014  2013  2012 
    
Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 341,890 $ 343,835 $ 324,062 
Total Required Contributions $ 47,865 $ 45,730 $ 38,239 
Total Required Contributions  14.0%   13.3%   11.8%  


 
Details of the plan are disclosed in the basic financial statements of the City of Stoughton. 
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NOTE 10 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
 Long-Term Contracts - WPPI Energy 
 
The electric utility is one of 51 WPPI Energy member municipalities located throughout the States of 
Wisconsin, Iowa and Michigan. On December 1, 1989, each initial WPPI Energy member commenced 
purchasing electric service from WPPI Energy under a long-term Power Supply Contract for Participating 
Members (long-term contract). Under the long-term contract, WPPI Energy is obligated to provide and 
sell, and each member is obligated to take and pay for, the electric power and energy required for the 
operation of each member's electric utility.  
 
The long-term contract requires all WPPI Energy members to pay for power and energy requirements 
supplied or made available by WPPI Energy at rates sufficient to cover WPPI Energy's revenue 
requirement including power supply costs, administrative expenses and debt service. WPPI Energy's 
subsequent year's operating budget and rates are approved annually by its Board of Directors, consisting 
of representatives from each member. The members have agreed to charge rates to retail customers 
sufficient to meet their WPPI Energy obligations. The long-term contract provides that all payments to 
WPPI Energy constitute operating expenses of the utility payable from any operating and maintenance 
fund established for that system. 
 
In 2002, all WPPI Energy members ratified a thirteen year extension to their original thirty-five year 
contracts. The new contract expires at midnight on December 31, 2037. 
 
WPPI Energy's outstanding debt service obligation to be paid by its members through their wholesale 
power charges through the remainder of the long-term contract is $455 million as of December 31, 2014. 
 
 Claims and Judgments 
 
From time to time, the utilities are party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the 
outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of management and the 
utilities' legal counsel that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a 
material adverse effect on the utilities' financial position or results of operations. 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 


 


Page 64 


NOTE 11 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
 Wisconsin Municipal Insurance Commission (WMIC) 
  Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) 
             
The WMIC is an intergovernmental cooperation commission created by contract under Section 66.30 of 
the Wisconsin Statutes. It was created in August, 1987 for the purpose of facilitating the organization, 
establishment and capitalization of the CVMIC, and has numerous municipalities as members. 
 
The CVMIC is a municipal mutual insurance company established on September 19, 1987 under Section 
611.23 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The CVMIC provides liability insurance coverage to the municipalities 
which make up the membership of the WMIC. 
 
The CVMIC is self-insured up to a maximum of $2,000,000 of each insurance risk. Losses paid by CVMIC 
plus administrative expenses will be recovered through premiums to the participating pool of 
municipalities. The municipality's share of such losses is less than 1%. 
 
Management of each organization consists of a board of directors or officers comprised of 
representatives elected by each of three classes of participants based on population. The municipality 
does not exercise any control over the activities of the agencies beyond the election of the officers and 
board. 
 
Financial statements of WMIC and CVMIC are available directly from: Cities and Village Mutual Insurance 
Company, 1250 South Sunnyslope Road, Suite 105, Brookfield, WI 53005. 
 
The municipality shows the general obligation bond that it owes to WMIC in the insurance internal service 
fund (governmental activities column of government-wide statement of net position). The transactions of 
the organization are not included in these financial statements.  
 


NOTE 12 – SELF INSURANCE  
 
The utilities are part of the municipality's self-funded health insurance program with claims processed by 
an administrative firm on behalf of the municipality. A separate fund has been established into which 
deposits are made and actual claims are paid out. As part of the plan, a reinsurance policy has been 
purchased which covers claims in excess of $45,000 per individual up to a maximum of $1,000,000. 
Deposits to the self-insured fund in excess of the claims and other costs paid are retained by the 
municipality. The utilities' total contributions to the program during the years 2014 and 2013 were 
$315,080 and $380,119, respectively. Details of the plan can be found in the basic financial statements of 
the City of Stoughton. 
 


NOTE 13 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  
 
This utility evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were available to 
be issued, for events requiring recording or disclosure in the financial statements.  
 
 Rate Adjustment 
 
New sewer rates were approved by the utilities committee and placed into effect on January 1, 2015. 
 
The utility has also filed an application to increase electric rates with the PSCW. 
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Balance Balance
1/1/2014 Additions Retirements 12/31/2014


TRANSMISSION
Land and land rights 1$                 -$                -$                1$                 
Poles and fixtures 5,035            -                  -                  5,035            
Overhead conductors and devices 9,984            -                  -                  9,984            


Total Transmission 15,020          -                  -                  15,020          


DISTRIBUTION
Land and land rights 220,796        -                  -                  220,796        
Structures and improvements 44,389          -                  -                  44,389          
Station equipment 4,275,937     -                  -                  4,275,937     
Poles, towers and fixtures 2,991,945     134,700      19,366        3,107,279     
Overhead conductors and devices 5,713,985     84,219        32,348        5,765,856     
Underground conduit 428,831        24,062        119             452,774        
Underground conductors and devices 2,686,129     148,102      6,176          2,828,055     
Line transformers 2,871,527     63,187        21,935        2,912,779     
Services 1,681,144     50,383        4,090          1,727,437     
Meters 638,036        18,937        -              656,973        
Street lighting and signal systems 513,377        9,208          7,187          515,398        


Total Distribution 22,066,096   532,798      91,221        22,507,673   


GENERAL
Structures and improvements 1,635,949     14,025        -                  1,649,974     
Office furniture and equipment 210,662        4,738          -                  215,400        
Computer equipment 178,348        -                  -                  178,348        
Transportation equipment 288,978        25,931        33,800        281,109        
Stores equipment 9,984            -                  -                  9,984            
Tools, shop and garage equipment 81,791          -                  -                  81,791          
Laboratory equipment 50,236          -                  -                  50,236          
Power-operated equipment 1,200,625     -                  -                  1,200,625     
Communication equipment 92,122          -                  -                  92,122          
SCADA equipment 279,453        -                  -                  279,453        
Miscellaneous equipment 4,990            -                  -                  4,990            


Total General 4,033,138     44,694        33,800        4,044,032     


TOTAL ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT 26,114,254$ 577,492$   125,021$    26,566,725$


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT
December 31, 2014
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OPERATING REVENUES 2014 2013
Sales of Electricity


Residential 5,212,839$         5,217,505$       
Rural 2,932,266           2,945,578         
General service 1,645,991           1,631,966         
Large commercial and industrial 1,434,413           1,373,160         
Large power 1,044,735           1,021,094         
Industrial 2,805,130           2,728,523         
Public street and highway lighting 137,049              132,993            
Interdepartmental 207,077              182,492            


Total Sales of Electricity 15,419,500         15,233,311       
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 43,090                34,864              
Other 141,399              111,504            


Total Operating Revenues 15,603,989         15,379,679       


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Other Power Supply
Purchased power 12,122,364         11,899,750       


Transmission  
Operating supervision and engineering 1,876                  4,487                
Station 33,258                46,350              
Overhead lines 92,637                76,057              
Underground lines 51,736                35,018              


Total Transmission 179,507              161,912            
Distribution


Street lighting and signal system 3,787                  3,534                
Meter 55,839                36,976              
Customer installations 268                     174                   
Miscellaneous 39,457                45,332              
Maintenance


Structures -                         -                        
Station equipment 69,779                15,021              
Overhead lines 236,874              266,969            
Underground lines 12,734                7,961                
Line transformers 5,475                  1,284                
Street lighting and signal system 149                     140                   
Meters -                         -                        
Miscellaneous -                         -                        


Total Distribution 424,362              377,391            
Customer Accounts


Meter reading 4,800                  6,808                
Accounting and collecting labor 236,595              208,736            
Miscellaneous 3,548                  19,441              


Total Water Treatment 244,943              234,985            


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013


Page 66







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013


2014 2013
OPERATING EXPENSES (cont.)


Operation and Maintenance (cont.)
Administrative and General


Salaries 271,281$            269,473$          
Office supplies 62,574                32,183              
Outside services employed 16,782                31,058              
Property insurance 26,429                23,211              
Injuries and damages 21,445                16,951              
Employee pensions and benefits 166,987              238,598            
Regulatory commission -                         -                        
Miscellaneous 10,188                2,523                
Rents 11,356                11,377              
Maintenance 42,238                42,170              


Total Administrative and General 629,280              667,544            
Taxes 169,815              170,845            


Total Operation and Maintenance 13,770,271         13,512,427       
Depreciation 934,151              918,885            


Total Operating Expenses 14,704,422         14,431,312       


OPERATING INCOME 899,567$            948,367$         
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2014 2013


Utility Plant in Service
Beginning of year 23,396,576$      22,981,902$         
End of year 23,775,258        23,396,576           


Average 23,585,917        23,189,239           


Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning of year (10,874,683)       (10,083,729)         
End of year (11,626,564)       (10,874,683)         


Average (11,250,623)       (10,479,206)         


Materials and Supplies
Beginning of year 136,045             139,181               
End of year 130,091             136,045               


Average 133,068             137,613               


Regulatory Liability
Beginning of year (221,604)            (243,764)              
End of year (199,444)            (221,604)              


Average (210,524)            (232,684)              


Customer Advances for Construction
Beginning of year (5,514)                (8,082)                  
End of year (14,350)              (5,514)                  


Average (9,932)                (6,798)                  


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE 12,247,906$     12,608,164$        


OPERATING INCOME - REGULATORY BASIS 647,833$          693,277$             


RATE OF RETURN (PERCENT) 5.29                 5.50                    


STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY


RATE OF RETURN - REGULATORY BASIS
December 31, 2014 and 2013


This schedule is  computed  based  on Public  Service  Commission of Wisconsin regulatory accounting
which differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America due to GASB
No. 34 as well as PSC order 05-US-105, which was effective January 1, 2003 as amended September 8, 2004.
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WATER UTILITY 
 







Balance Balance
1/1/2014 Additions Retirements 12/31/2014


SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Land and land rights 11,635$              -$                -$                11,635$        
Wells and springs 570,123              -                  -                  570,123        


Total Source of Supply 581,758              -                  -                  581,758        


PUMPING
Structures and improvements 598,025              -                  -                  598,025        
Other power production equipment 278,732              -                  -                  278,732        
Electric pumping equipment 584,896              -                  -                  584,896        
Other pumping equipment -                     -                  -                  -                


Total Pumping 1,461,653           -                  -                  1,461,653     


WATER TREATMENT
Structures and improvements 13,671                -                  -                  13,671          
Water treatment equipment 77,092                -                  -                  77,092          


Total Water Treatment 90,763                -                  -                  90,763          


TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION
Land and land rights 13,206                -                  -                  13,206          
Structures and improvements 1,611                  -                  -                  1,611            
Distribution reservoirs and standpipes 1,955,850           -                  -                  1,955,850     
Transmission and distribution mains 9,032,168           405,998      16,531        9,421,635     
Services 2,022,314           86,097        1,149          2,107,262     
Meters 594,273              66,338        -                  660,611        
Hydrants 1,156,124           37,665        -                  1,193,789     
Other transmission and distribution plant 973                     -                  -                  973               


Total Transmission and Distribution 14,776,519         596,098      17,680        15,354,937   


GENERAL
Structures and equipment 405,290              5,100          -                  410,390        
Office furniture and equipment 60,775                1,723          -                  62,498          
Computer equipment 59,925                -                  -                  59,925          
Transportation equipment 28,026                -                  -                  28,026          
Stores equipment 2,187                  -                  -                  2,187            
Tools, shop and garage equipment 35,109                12,200        -                  47,309          
Power-operated equipment 102,034              -                  -                  102,034        
Communication equipment 37,858                -                  -                  37,858          
SCADA equipment 458,421              -                  -                  458,421        
Miscellaneous equipment 89                       -                  -                  89                 


Total General 1,189,714           19,023        -                  1,208,737     


TOTAL WATER UTILITY PLANT 18,100,407$      615,121$   17,680$      18,697,848$


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY PLANT
December 31, 2014
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2014 2013
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of Water
Metered


Residential 793,284$            797,026$          
Multi-family residential 59,595                -                        
Commercial 144,950              190,799            
Industrial 251,139              250,544            
Public authorities 16,738                17,672              
Interdepartmental 1,840                  2,195                


Total Metered Sales 1,267,546           1,258,236         
Private fire protection 28,385                26,318              
Public fire protection 432,068              423,129            


Total Sales of Water 1,727,999           1,707,683         
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 4,526                  4,741                
Other 18,436                15,545              


Total Operating Revenues 1,750,961           1,727,969         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Source of Supply
Operation labor -                         -                        
Maintenance


Wells and springs 8,377                  3,191                
Total Source of Supply 8,377                  3,191                


Pumping
Fuel or purchased power for pumping 144,116              116,965            
Pumping labor 1,607                  7,137                
Miscellaneous 472                     455                   
Maintenance


Structures and improvements 2,525                  4,762                
Pumping equipment 13,364                5,469                


Total Pumping 162,084              134,788            
Water Treatment


Chemicals 17,420                11,869              
Operation labor 27,981                24,449              
Miscellaneous -                         -                        
Maintenance


Structures and improvements 325                     875                   
Water treatment equipment 1,229                  3,654                


Total Water Treatment 46,955                40,847              


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
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STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


WATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013


2014 2013
OPERATING EXPENSES (cont.)


Operation and Maintenance (cont.)
Transmission and Distribution


Transmission and distribution lines 4,997$                11,694$            
Meters 18,683                22,885              
Miscellaneous 62,704                59,315              
Maintenance


Reservoirs and standpipes 46,168                54,415              
Mains 59,142                39,533              
Services 77,747                17,676              
Meters 4,541                  -                        
Hydrants 15,634                11,986              
Miscellaneous 959                     591                   


Total Transmission and Distribution 290,575              218,095            
Customer Accounts


Meter reading 3,272                  2,097                
Accounting and collecting labor 79,750                75,969              


Total Customer Accounts 83,022                78,066              
Administrative and General


Salaries 145,084              152,946            
Office supplies 17,688                7,500                
Outside services employed 34,968                24,169              
Property insurance 9,611                  8,440                
Injuries and damages 8,735                  7,797                
Employee pensions and benefits 85,430                80,708              
Regulatory commission -                         -                        
Rents 4,129                  4,195                
Maintenance 6,937                  4,639                


Total Administrative and General 312,582              290,394            
Taxes 20,667                14,583              


Total Operation and Maintenance 924,261              779,963            
Depreciation 390,653              381,278            


Total Operating Expenses 1,314,914           1,161,241         


OPERATING INCOME 436,047$           566,728$         
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2014 2013


Utility Plant in Service
Beginning of year 11,984,953$       11,571,887$     
End of year 12,555,894         11,984,953       


Average 12,270,424         11,778,420       


Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning of year (3,906,376)         (3,605,921)        
End of year (4,205,739)         (3,906,376)        


Average (4,056,057)         (3,756,149)        


Materials and Supplies
Beginning of year 36,627                35,244              
End of year 34,597                36,627              


Average 35,612                35,936              


Regulatory Liability
Beginning of year (342,284)            (376,512)           
End of year (308,056)            (342,284)           


Average (325,170)            (359,398)           


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE 7,924,809$        7,698,809$      


OPERATING INCOME - REGULATORY BASIS 187,072$           308,114$         


RATE OF RETURN (PERCENT) 2.36                   4.00                 


STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY


RATE OF RETURN - REGULATORY BASIS
December 31, 2014 and 2013


This schedule is  computed  based  on Public  Service  Commission of Wisconsin regulatory accounting
which differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America due to GASB
No. 34 as well as PSC order 05-US-105, which was effective January 1, 2003 as amended September 8, 2004.
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WASTEWATER UTILITY 
 







Balance Balance
1/1/2014 Additions Retirements 12/31/2014


COLLECTING SYSTEM
Land and land rights 100$             -$                -$                100$             
Collecting mains 7,179,438     277,337      9,754          7,447,021     
Interceptor mains 1,864,084     -                  -                  1,864,084     
Force mains 48,951          -                  -                  48,951          


Total Collecting System 9,092,573     277,337      9,754          9,360,156     


COLLECTING SYSTEM PUMPING
Structures and improvements 67,382          -                  -                  67,382          
Electric pumping equipment 308,631        7,153          3,500          312,284        
Other pumping equipment 21,399          -                  -                  21,399          


Total Collecting System Pumping 397,412        7,153          3,500          401,065        


TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL
Structures and improvements 3,369,224     2,346,880   352,032      5,364,072     
Preliminary treatment equipment 1,542,566     -                  -                  1,542,566     
Primary treatment equipment 1,147,165     5,371          2,000          1,150,536     
Secondary treatment equipment 529,291        -                  -                  529,291        
Advanced treatment equipment 1,930,493     -                  -                  1,930,493     
Chlorination equipment 366,162        -                  -                  366,162        
Sludge treatment and disposal equipment 3,685,143     617,004      384,600      3,917,547     
Plant site pumping 685,498        -                  -                  685,498        
Flow metering and monitoring equipment 25,166          -                  -                  25,166          
Other treatment and disposal equipment 38,818          -                  -                  38,818          


Total Treatment and Disposal 13,319,526   2,969,255   738,632      15,550,149   


GENERAL
Structures and improvements 232,233        6,375          -                  238,608        
Office furniture and equipment 62,088          2,154          -                  64,242          
Computer equipment 110,021        -                  110,021        
Transportation equipment 409,462        17,922        -                  427,384        
Communication equipment 309,620        451,507      325,000      436,127        
Other general equipment 32,513          -                  -                  32,513          


Total General 1,155,937     477,958      325,000      1,308,895     


TOTAL WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT 23,965,448$ 3,731,703$ 1,076,886$ 26,620,265$


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


WASTEWATER UTILITY PLANT
December 31, 2014
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2014 2013
OPERATING REVENUES


Wastewater Revenues
Residential 1,354,439$         1,388,955$       
Commercial 455,896              444,731            
Industrial 180,296              138,306            
Public authorities 26,590                25,519              
Interdepartmental 445                     470                   


Total Wastewater Revenues 2,017,666           1,997,981         
Other Operating Revenues


Forfeited discounts 5,116                  4,535                
Miscellaneous 28,103                26,948              


Total Operating Revenues 2,050,885           2,029,464         


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and Maintenance


Operation
Supervision and labor 61                       61                     
Power and fuel for pumping 108,486              101,446            
Sludge conditioning chemicals 10,078                7,761                
Other operating supplies 26,790                840                   


Total Operation 145,415              110,108            
Maintenance


Collection system 78,253                73,666              
Treatment and disposal plant equipment 105,856              121,426            
General plant structures and equipment 81,860                86,443              


Total Maintenance 265,969              281,535            
Customer Accounts


Accounting and collecting 116,233              110,777            
Administrative and General


Salaries 88,830                92,201              
Office supplies 43,550                21,065              
Outside services employed 17,923                11,265              
Insurance 20,650                19,112              
Employee pensions and benefits 125,938              124,135            
Miscellaneous 36,376                24,908              
Rents 59,527                57,768              


Total Administrative and General 392,794              350,454            
Taxes 24,369                24,546              


Total Operation and Maintenance 944,780              877,420            
Depreciation 726,884              673,593            


Total Operating Expenses 1,671,664           1,551,013         


OPERATING INCOME 379,221$            478,451$         


STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


WASTEWATER UTILITY OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
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600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  April 14, 2015 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


    


From:  Kim M. Jennings, CPA 


  Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 


 


  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


   


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Proposed Water Rate Adjustment 


 


The following is a proposed application for an increase in water retail rates.  The proposed annual 


increase of 3% or $51,840 is necessary to reduce the existing deficiency in present rates.  This type of 


simplified rate application does not require a public hearing.  However, a notice to all customers will 


be mailed on May 8, 2015.  If acceptable, the rate increase will become effective on July 1, 2015. 


  


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee accept and direct staff to submit the 


application to the Public Service Commission on April 21, 2015. 


 


Encl. 


 


cc: Sean O Grady - Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 


Brian R. Hoops - Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor 







Annual Report Information Page


1 Total sales of water W-1 $1,727,999


2 Rate increase factor 3.0%


3 Line 1 times Line 2 $51,840


4 Net operating income (Oper.Revenues - Oper.Expenses) W-1 $187,071


5 Adjusted Total Operating income (Line 3 plus Line 4) $238,911


6 Average net rate base Water Utility F-23 $7,924,804


7 Line 5 divided by Line 6 3.0%


8 Test 1 - Financial Eligibility Qualifies * YES


9 Adusted operating income from Line 5 Above


10 Total Operation & Maintenance (O&M) expense (600 and 900 accounts only) W-1


11 Line 9 divided by Line 10


12 Test 2 - Financial Eligibility Qualifies **


 * Eligible, if line 7 is equal to or less than 5.9%
 ** Eligible, If line 11 is equal to or less than 6.0%


Simplified Rate Case Application - Water Class: AB


5750 - Stoughton Water Utility


Public Service Commission of Wisconsin
P.O. Box 7854
Madison, WI 53707-7854


(filing this form out is in accordance with Wis.Stat196.193)
3011(11/22/2004)


Preparer Name: Kim Jennings


Preparer Phone Number: 608-877-7415


Preparer Email Address: kjennings@stoughtonutilities.com


Date Application will be filed with the PSC: 4/21/2015


Notice


Date to be Mailed/Published: 5/8/2015


Newspaper Name: Notice inserted with customer's monthly bill


Rate Effective Date: 7/1/2015


Historical Check


     Effective Date of Last Full Rate Case: 9/1/2010


     Rates from last full rate case in effect for one full calendar year. TRUE


     If Class AB, not more than 5 year since last full rate case. TRUE


     Effective Date of Last SRC: 6/1/2014


     Rate from last SRC in effect for one yar (12 months). TRUE


     Water Meter Rates


     5/8" meter rate at last full rate case: 6.75


     Current 5/8" meter rate: 6.95


     If Class C or D, new cummulative rate less that 40% higher than last full rate case. NA


Printed: 3/24/2015 1:31:50 PM







Notice of Rate Increase
Water Customer of the Stoughton Water Utility


This is to give you notice that Stoughton Utilities will file an application on April 21, 2015, with the Public Service 
Commission of Wisconsin (PSC), for authority to increase water rates. Rates for general service will increase 3 
percent. The increase is necessary to reduce the existing deficiency in present rates. The request is being made 
under Wis. Stat. 196.193. Rate increases granted under this statute do not require a public hearing. The effect of 
the increase for some selected customers is shown below. Public Fire Protection and Wholesale rates (if 
applicable) will also increase 3 percent.


This rate increase will go into effect on July 1, 2015


If you have any questions about the rate increase request, call Stoughton Utilities at (608) 873-3379.


Customer Classification Meter Size Gallons
Existing
Monthly


Rate


Revised
Monthly


Rate


Average Residential 5/8" 4,000 $15.27 $15.72


Large Residential 3/4" 6,000 $19.43 $20.00


Commercial 1" 50,000 $99.50 $102.41


Public Authority 1 1/2" 75,000 $147.40 $151.71


Industrial 2" 150,000 $270.86 $278.64


Printed: 3/24/2015 1:31:50 PM








 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  April 14, 2015  


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Sean O Grady 


Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


 


Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Light Emitting Diode (LED) Streetlight Conversion 


Program. 


 


Stoughton Utilities is implementing the conversion of street lighting for the City of 


Stoughton and portions of the five surrounding townships as follows: 


 


 The WPPI Energy Distribution Services Advisory Group (DSAG) selected a LED 


streetlight manufacturer on November 19, 2014 as a standard for the membership.  


They hosted a LED manufacturer presentation for the membership on January 21, 


2015, and offers the fixtures and ancillary equipment in their catalogue for 


purchase. 


 


 WPPI Energy and Stoughton Utilities has been working with the Wisconsin 


Public Service Commission to establish the rate tariff. 


 


 As high pressure sodium street lighting fixtures fail in our electric distribution 


system, LED replacement street lighting equipment is being installed. 


 


 All new street lighting equipment shall be LED.    


 


cc: Brian R. Hoops 


Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor 


 


Kim M. Jennings, CPA 


Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 


 


 


 


 













AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


10:52AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


1 of 4


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 4/2/2015


Thursday, April 02, 2015


Description


7430Company:


VO for check batch: 306328EP001007 516 WELLS FARGO BANK3/11/2015  74,482.27


Charter Comm-Mar Ach/Charter Comm-Mar 


Ach/Charter Comm-Mar Ach/Charter Comm-Mar 


Ach


HC001008 547 Charter Communications-Ach3/30/2015  411.35


Alliant Energy-Mar Ach/Alliant Energy-Mar 


Ach/Alliant Energy-Mar Ach/Alliant Energy-Mar 


Ach/Alliant Energy-Mar Ach/Alliant Energy-Mar 


Ach/Alliant Energy-Mar Ach


HC001009 003 Alliant Energy - Ach3/30/2015  4,329.78


EBC-Mar Ach/EBC-Mar Ach/EBC-Mar Ach/EBC-Mar 


Ach


HC001010 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach3/30/2015  548.28


AT&T-Mar Ach/AT&T-Mar Ach/AT&T-Mar AchHC001011 952 AT&T3/30/2015  355.53


Delta Dental-Mar Ach/Delta Dental-Mar Ach/Delta 


Dental-Mar Ach


HC001012 001 Delta Dental - Ach3/30/2015  2,710.12


Gordon Flesch-Mar Ach/Gordon Flesch-Mar 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-Mar Ach/Gordon Flesch-Mar 


Ach


HC001013 856 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY, INC.3/30/2015  66.54


TDS Metrocom - Mar Ach/TDS Metrocom - Mar 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - Mar Ach/TDS Metrocom - Mar 


Ach


HC001014 007 TDS Metrocom - Ach3/30/2015  467.17


Us Cellular - Mar Ach/Us Cellular - Mar Ach/Us 


Cellular - Mar Ach/Us Cellular - Mar Ach/Us Cellular 


- Mar Ach/Us Cellular - Mar Ach/Us Cellular - Mar 


Ach/Us Cellular - Mar Ach/Us Cellular - Mar Ach/Us 


Cellular - Mar Ach


HC001015 004 Us Cellular - Ach3/30/2015  524.74


Client Analysis-Mar Ach/Client Analysis-Mar 


Ach/Client Analysis-Mar Ach/Client Analysis-Mar 


Ach


HC001016 020 Wells Fargo Bank-Ach3/30/2015  7,715.33


State Taxes-Mar Ach/State Taxes-Mar Ach/State 


Taxes-Mar Ach


HC001017 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach3/30/2015  6,529.60


Federal Taxes-Mar Ach/Federal Taxes-Mar 


Ach/Federal Taxes-Mar Ach/Federal Taxes-Mar Ach


HC001018 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach3/30/2015  33,698.14


Dept of Rev-Mar Ach/Dept of Rev-Mar AchHC001019 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach3/30/2015  18,763.68







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


10:52AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


2 of 4


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 4/2/2015


Thursday, April 02, 2015


Description


Assoc Bank-Mar Ach/Assoc Bank-Mar Ach/Assoc 


Bank-Mar Ach


HC001020 015 Associated Bank-Ach3/30/2015  555,912.50


WPPI-Renewable Energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solar 


Credit/WPPI-Shared Savings/WPPI-Large 


Power/WPPI-Support Services/WPPI-Support 


Services/WPPI-Support Services


HC001021 009 WPPI3/30/2015  1,115,789.36


WPPI-Renewable Energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solar 


Credit/WPPI-Shared Savings/WPPI-Large 


Power/WPPI-Support Services/WPPI-Support 


Services/WPPI-Support Services


HC001022 009 WPPI3/30/2015  993,478.06


Inkworks-Cross Conn SurveyCK023573 166 INKWORKS, INC.3/4/2015  125.75


Elec Testing-Glove-blank testsCK023574 324 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB., LLC.3/4/2015  424.57


Utility-Qtr ped towerCK023575 362 UTILITY SERVICE CO., INC3/4/2015  4,491.44


Resco-Extendo sticksCK023576 400 RESCO3/4/2015  57.89


Strand-Wa Sys Study/Strand-Digester 


Project/Strand-Clyde-Van buren sts/Strand-Wash - 


Fifth sts/Strand-Wash - Fifth sts/Strand-Clyde-Van 


buren sts/Strand-Elec Database/Strand-Uniroyal


CK023577 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.3/4/2015  11,333.66


Auxiant-Medical Admin/Auxiant-Medical 


Admin/Auxiant-Medical Admin/Auxiant-Medical 


Admin


CK023578 590 AUXIANT3/4/2015  7,435.29


Obrion-Paper/Obrion-Paper/Obrion-Paper/Obrion-P


aper


CK023579 885 THE O'BRION AGENCY, LLC3/4/2015  320.00


D Tichenor-Customer RefundCK023580 942 DON TICHENOR JR3/4/2015  235.81


WRWA-Technical ConferenceCK023581 548 WISCONSIN RURAL WATER ASSOC.3/6/2015  390.00


M Wegner-Customer RefundCK023582 246 MARTINA WEGNER3/11/2015  40.23


Midwest-TrenchingCK023583 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC3/11/2015  1,846.00


A Stemler-Customer RefundCK023584 376 ADELINE & CAROL STEMLER3/11/2015  39.12


Resco-Insulator pinsCK023585 400 RESCO3/11/2015  130.50
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Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


10:52AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


3 of 4


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 4/2/2015


Thursday, April 02, 2015


Description


T Connery-Customer RefundCK023586 729 TOM CONNERY3/11/2015  59.36


City Stoton-Serve You/City Stoton-Serve You/City 


Stoton-Serve You/City Stoton-Auxiant Claims/City 


Stoton-Auxiant Claims/City Stoton-Auxiant 


Claims/City Stoton-March Rent/City Stoton-March 


Rent/City Stoton-March Rent/City Stoton-March Life 


Ins/More...


CK023587 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON3/17/2015  59,959.13


Border States-Inventory/Border States-SuppliesCK023588 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY3/17/2015  3,312.70


Rosenbaum-Dump FeeCK023589 405 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAV.3/17/2015  30.00


Spinlab-Meter baseCK023590 428 SPINLAB UTILITY INSTRUMENTATION, INC.3/17/2015  1,066.13


Treated Mat-InventoryCK023591 444 TREATED MATERIALS COMPANY, INC3/17/2015  9,532.00


Strand-WWTP Phos Eval/Strand-Long Range 


planning


CK023592 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.3/17/2015  2,123.51


Frontier-Fuel/Frontier-Fuel/Frontier-FuelCK023593 451 FRONTIER-SERVCO FS3/17/2015  1,069.13


PSC-Direct Assessment/PSC-Direct AssessmentCK023594 491 PUBLIC SVC. COMM. OF WI.3/17/2015  3,136.07


WRWA-Operator exam reviewCK023595 548 WISCONSIN RURAL WATER ASSOC.3/17/2015  200.00


Vining Sparks-SafekeepingCK023596 584 VINING SPARKS IBG, L.P.3/17/2015  51.00


Lab of Hygiene-Fldfluor testsCK023597 675 WI STATE LABORATORY OF HYGIENE3/17/2015  40.00


GLS-Feb Locates/GLS-Feb Locates/GLS-Feb 


Locates


CK023598 727 GLS UTILITY LLC3/17/2015  772.75


Dunkirk-Feb Dunkirk DamCK023599 781 DUNKIRK WATER POWER CO LLC3/17/2015  2,264.62


Hydro-Mcc JobCK023600 967 HYDRO CORP3/17/2015  280.00


Alere-Drug Tests/Alere-Drug Tests/Alere-Drug TestsCK023601 102 ALERE TOXICOLOGY SERVICES, INC.3/24/2015  288.00


Lamp Recyclers-Fluor lightsCK023602 119 LAMP RECYCLERS3/24/2015  159.75


Us Cellular-Cell PhoneCK023603 123 US CELLULAR3/24/2015  71.40







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


10:52AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


4 of 4


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 4/2/2015


Thursday, April 02, 2015


Description


City Stoton-SW FebCK023604 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON3/24/2015  35,078.60


Border States-Inventory/Border States-SuppliesCK023605 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY3/24/2015  518.35


Resco-Inventory/Resco-suppliesCK023606 400 RESCO3/24/2015  11,203.32


Seera-Focus on EnergyCK023607 603 SEERA3/24/2015  5,244.91


Dane Cnty Title-hults road/Dane Cnty Title-hults 


road


CK023608 633 DANE COUNTY TITLE COMPANY3/24/2015  250.00


City Stoton-March Retirement/City Stoton-March 


Retirement/City Stoton-March Retirement


CK023609 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON3/24/2015  17,039.86


United Way-March ContributionCK023610 293 UNITED WAY OF DANE COUNTY3/24/2015  50.00


Hanson-Pest Maint.CK101017 310 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT3/11/2015  43.00


Great West-March A Def CompCK101018 463 GREAT-WEST3/11/2015  2,845.00


N Demension-Utm Monitor/N Demension-Utm 


Monitor/N Demension-Utm Monitor


CK101019 597 N-DIMENSION SOLUTIONS3/11/2015  7,126.00


Dean-Hearing Tests/Dean-Hearing 


Tests/Dean-Hearing Tests


CK101020 600 DEAN HEALTH SYSTEMS3/11/2015  171.00


Cintas-Cleaning/Cintas-Cleaning/Cintas-Cleaning/Ci


ntas-Cleaning/Cintas-Cleaning/Cintas-Cleaning


CK101021 809 CINTAS CORPORATION #4463/11/2015  281.26


Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing


CK101022 852 INFOSEND, INC3/11/2015  6,365.06


Sun Dance-Mar Cleaning/Sun Dance-Mar 


Cleaning/Sun Dance-Mar Cleaning


CK101023 322 SUN DANCE CLEANING SVCS LLC3/24/2015  250.00


Great West-March B Def CompCK101024 463 GREAT-WEST3/24/2015  2,845.00


J Mclain-ReimbursementCK101025 683 JOHN MCLAIN3/24/2015  93.51


Cintas-Cleaning/Cintas-Cleaning/Cintas-Cleaning/Ci


ntas-Cleaning/Cintas-Cleaning/Cintas-Cleaning


CK101026 809 CINTAS CORPORATION #4463/24/2015  268.78


Company Total  3,016,741.91
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 41.49932 000000  - 1000BULBS.COM595 02/04/2015ballast for fixture outside on river side of building 41007430


 574.54932 000000  - 1000BULBS.COM595 02/04/2015Batteries for outside lights fixtures along the river side of the admin building 41007430


 20.79827 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 02/18/2015gage 87007460


 33.97827 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 02/19/2015belts for exhaust fans 87007460


 7.39828 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 02/27/2015fuel filter for generator 87007460


 1,144.37584 000000  - AMARIL UNIFORM COMPANY #1281 02/03/2015Winter wear for Nick and Steve 40007430


 161.61584 000000  - AMARIL UNIFORM COMPANY #1281 02/17/2015Hoody winter wear for Steve 40007430


 17.28932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/16/2015Conference Room Kitchen 84007450


 14.99932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/16/2015Conference Room Kitchen 84007450


 3.79827 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/13/2015Hardware 87007460


 8.49932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/13/2015Conference Room Kitchen 69107430


 1.79631 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/13/2015coupling for pipe extension at Well 6. 74007450


 14.44631 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/16/2015Paint supplies for Well 6. 74007450


 15.06631 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/09/2015Paint supplies for Well 6. 74007450


 51.96584 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/11/2015Replaced yard rakes 52857430


 6.99932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/02/2015Conference Room Kitchen 84007450


 7.00933 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/02/2015Car wash. 84007450


 135.95932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/02/2015Replacement vacuum for admin building 52757430


 6.99933 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/02/2015Grinding wheel for out-riggers on aerial trucks. 54007430


 9.99827 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/04/2015Hardware 87007460


 23.98932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/27/2015Peg hooks for tool board. 84007450


 7.49672 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/27/2015PVC glue for Tower III sump repair 74007450


 9.79631 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/20/2015Paint supplies for Well 6 74007450


 12.00675 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/25/2015Pipe to repair curb stop at 1401 N. Page St. 84007450


 4.99586 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/19/2015Glue for meters 52007430


 1.79933 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/23/2015Safety pin for backhoe bucket 74007450


 5.78672 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/23/2015Tower III sump pump adaptor 74007450


 18.32932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 02/23/2015pads for chairs legs in locker/break room 68007430


 67.60833 000000  - BADGER WATER390 02/05/2015lab water 83007460


 12,159.00923 000000  - BAKER TILLY648 02/13/2015Audit Fees 33007430


 836.00926 000000  - BARRY OPTICAL114 02/04/2015Maintenance 40007430


 253.49232 001099  - BORDER STATES ELECTRIC327 02/05/20152-6 u-guard reducer 41007430


 1,927.98583 000000  - BORDER STATES ELECTRIC327 02/17/2015dies for presses 41007430


 1,556.00370 003300  - BORDER STATES ELECTRIC327 02/20/20154 SMALL POWER METERS 41007430


 32.49583 000000  - BORDER STATES ELECTRIC327 02/26/2015Die holder replacement for press 41007430


 18.21921 000000  - CDW GOVERNMENT604 02/17/2015Microphones for employee PCs 52507430


 6.62921 000000  - CDW GOVERNMENT604 02/17/2015Microphones for employee PCs 52507450


 8.29851 000000  - CDW GOVERNMENT604 02/17/2015Microphones for employee PCs 52507460


 10,498.84388 000000  - CDW GOVERNMENT604 02/10/2015Data storage - Admin bldg SAN - HP HDD array enclosure and disks 52507430


 3,817.76388 000000  - CDW GOVERNMENT604 02/10/2015Data storage - Admin bldg SAN - HP HDD array enclosure and disks 52507450


 4,772.20388 000000  - CDW GOVERNMENT604 02/10/2015Data storage - Admin bldg SAN - HP HDD array enclosure and disks 52507460


 272.36921 000000  - CDW GOVERNMENT604 02/10/2015Data storage - Admin bldg SAN - one disk shipped separately 52507430
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 99.04921 000000  - CDW GOVERNMENT604 02/10/2015Data storage - Admin bldg SAN - one disk shipped separately 52507450


 123.80851 000000  - CDW GOVERNMENT604 02/10/2015Data storage - Admin bldg SAN - one disk shipped separately 52507460


 17.00675 000000  - CENEX D M SERV07083686317 02/24/2015GAS FOR TOURCH. 84007450


 3.77920 000000  - CHIPOTLE 2015894 02/20/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007430


 1.37920 000000  - CHIPOTLE 2015894 02/20/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007450


 1.72850 000000  - CHIPOTLE 2015894 02/20/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007460


 2,172.00232 001099  - CREE INC484 02/19/2015LED STREET LIGHT FIXTURES 41007430


 0.03921 000000  - CROSS BORDER TRANS FEE894 02/09/2015Fee for Skype Mobile VoIP trial -- Luxembourg 52507430


 10.54920 000000  - DOUSMAN EXPRESS894 02/20/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007430


 3.83920 000000  - DOUSMAN EXPRESS894 02/20/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007450


 4.81850 000000  - DOUSMAN EXPRESS894 02/20/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007460


 539.58933 000000  - DUECO INC172 02/04/2015Replaced bad u joint on hydraulic pump on Trk 2. 40007430


 13.20631 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 02/18/2015Paint supplies for Well 6 74007450


 18.24827 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 02/24/2015stainless pins 87007460


 48.88827 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 02/20/20152 come-alongs 87007460


 16.27827 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 02/20/2015hardware 87007460


 11.56827 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 02/27/2015grease line 87007460


 27.00584 000000  - FOSDAL BAKERY LLC601 02/19/2015MEUW Safety School 52857430


 4.32920 000000  - FOSDAL BAKERY LLC601 02/18/2015Meeting expense - utilities committee 36507430


 1.57920 000000  - FOSDAL BAKERY LLC601 02/18/2015Meeting expense - utilities committee 36507450


 1.97850 000000  - FOSDAL BAKERY LLC601 02/18/2015Meeting expense - utilities committee 36507460


 4.08921 000000  - GPS DANE COUNTY SHERIFFS894 02/12/2015Accident Report 33007430


 1,553.01641 000000  - HAWKINS INC309 02/24/2015Well chemicals 40007450


 2,829.77388 000000  - HP DIRECT-PUBLICSECTOR538 02/06/2015Server for secondary offsite DR hosting and storage 52507430


 1,029.00388 000000  - HP DIRECT-PUBLICSECTOR538 02/06/2015Server for secondary offsite DR hosting and storage 52507450


 1,286.27388 000000  - HP DIRECT-PUBLICSECTOR538 02/06/2015Server for secondary offsite DR hosting and storage 52507460


 82.50920 000000  - HYATT ON MAIN894 02/23/2015Training expense - lodging- WLIA Annual Conference 43007430


 30.00920 000000  - HYATT ON MAIN894 02/23/2015Training expense - lodging- WLIA Annual Conference 43007450


 37.50850 000000  - HYATT ON MAIN894 02/23/2015Training expense - lodging- WLIA Annual Conference 43007460


 527.40920 000000  - KEURIG GREEN MOUNTAIN994 02/26/2015COFFEE MAKERS FOR KITCHEN AND MEETING ROOM 33007430


 2,017.18833 000000  - L W ALLEN INC207 02/27/2015New DAF pump #1 82007460


 28.60584 000000  - LABSOURCE657 02/05/2015Ear plugs 41007430


 451.20933 000000  - LF GEORGE INC784 02/26/2015REEL TRAILER BRAKE REPAIRS. 40007430


 25.00920 000000  - LOCAL GOVERNMENT EDUCATIO050 02/12/2015WGFOA Dues 33007430


 3.82920 000000  - MCDONALD'S F12113894 02/23/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007430


 1.39920 000000  - MCDONALD'S F12113894 02/23/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007450


 1.74850 000000  - MCDONALD'S F12113894 02/23/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007460


 347.36932 000000  - MENARDS MONONA652 02/20/2015Conference Room Kitchen 69107430


 28.72663 000000  - MIDWEST METER165 02/25/2015Water meter parts. 40007450


 150.00932 000000  - MONONA PLUMBING331 02/23/20151/4 fire protection inspection and testing. 41007430


 20.00921 000000  - MSFT   E04000QPXY836 02/12/2015MONTHLY LICENSING FOR HOSTED LYNC COMMUNICATIONS 52507430


 7.20921 000000  - MSFT   E04000QPXY836 02/12/2015MONTHLY LICENSING FOR HOSTED LYNC COMMUNICATIONS 52507450


 9.60851 000000  - MSFT   E04000QPXY836 02/12/2015MONTHLY LICENSING FOR HOSTED LYNC COMMUNICATIONS 52507460


 3.20233 001099  - MSFT   E04000QPXY836 02/12/2015MONTHLY LICENSING FOR HOSTED LYNC COMMUNICATIONS 52507430
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 165.00833 000000  - NBS CALIBRATIONS414 02/06/2015lab equipment calibration 82007460


 24.47833 000000  - NCL OF WISCONSIN INC830 02/04/2015lab supplies 83007460


 71.60833 000000  - NCL OF WISCONSIN INC830 02/04/2015lab supplies 83007460


 81.62833 000000  - NCL OF WISCONSIN INC830 02/20/2015lab supplies 83007460


 5.90920 000000  - NOODLES & CO 212894 02/19/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007430


 2.14920 000000  - NOODLES & CO 212894 02/19/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007450


 2.69850 000000  - NOODLES & CO 212894 02/19/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - MEALS - WLIA ANNUAL CONFERENCE 43007460


 148.20584 000000  - NWTC GB REGISTRATION887 02/10/2015Spring line class fee 68007430


 3.06920 000000  - PANERA BREAD #601543994 02/19/2015Training expense - meals - WLIA Annual Conference 43007430


 1.11920 000000  - PANERA BREAD #601543994 02/19/2015Training expense - meals - WLIA Annual Conference 43007450


 1.40850 000000  - PANERA BREAD #601543994 02/19/2015Training expense - meals - WLIA Annual Conference 43007460


 3.35920 000000  - PANERA BREAD #601543994 02/20/2015Training expense - meals - WLIA Annual Conference 43007430


 1.22920 000000  - PANERA BREAD #601543994 02/20/2015Training expense - meals - WLIA Annual Conference 43007450


 1.53850 000000  - PANERA BREAD #601543994 02/20/2015Training expense - meals - WLIA Annual Conference 43007460


 4.08920 000000  - PANERA BREAD #601543994 02/23/2015Training expense - meals - WLIA Annual Conference 43007430


 1.48920 000000  - PANERA BREAD #601543994 02/23/2015Training expense - meals - WLIA Annual Conference 43007450


 1.86850 000000  - PANERA BREAD #601543994 02/23/2015Training expense - meals - WLIA Annual Conference 43007460


 49.12903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 02/03/2015Credit card processing - Onilne E-Pay 52507430


 17.68903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 02/03/2015Credit card processing - Onilne E-Pay 52507450


 23.58840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 02/03/2015Credit card processing - Onilne E-Pay 52507460


 7.87233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 02/03/2015Credit card processing - Onilne E-Pay 52507430


 29.97903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 02/03/2015Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507430


 10.79903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 02/03/2015Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507450


 14.38840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 02/03/2015Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507460


 4.81233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 02/03/2015Credit card processing - Desktop and recurring 52507430


 90.00921 000000  - PITNEYBOWES ONLINEBILL889 02/18/2015Postage meter rental - quarterly 36507430


 32.40921 000000  - PITNEYBOWES ONLINEBILL889 02/18/2015Postage meter rental - quarterly 36507450


 43.20851 000000  - PITNEYBOWES ONLINEBILL889 02/18/2015Postage meter rental - quarterly 36507460


 14.40233 001099  - PITNEYBOWES ONLINEBILL889 02/18/2015Postage meter rental - quarterly 36507430


 124.78933 000000  - PLASTIC COMPOSITES CO994 02/18/2015BUCKET MAT REPLACEMENT 52857430


 29.99827 000000  - RADIOSHACK DEA00019513690 02/16/2015cell phone battery 87007460


 225.38631 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS #3833748 02/19/2015Paint for Well 6. 84007450


 1.64921 000000  - SKYPE.COM189 02/09/2015MOBILE VOIP TRIAL 52507430


 0.59921 000000  - SKYPE.COM189 02/09/2015MOBILE VOIP TRIAL 52507450


 0.76851 000000  - SKYPE.COM189 02/09/2015MOBILE VOIP TRIAL 52507460


 576.00923 000000  - STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP186 02/27/2015Water extension legal services 33007450


 74.77921 000000  - STAPLES352 02/05/2015Misc office supplies 52507430


 26.91921 000000  - STAPLES352 02/05/2015Misc office supplies 52507450


 35.88851 000000  - STAPLES352 02/05/2015Misc office supplies 52507460


 11.98233 001099  - STAPLES352 02/05/2015Misc office supplies 52507430


 14.99921 000000  - STAPLES352 02/05/2015Misc office supplies 52507430


 5.45921 000000  - STAPLES352 02/05/2015Misc office supplies 52507450


 6.83851 000000  - STAPLES352 02/05/2015Misc office supplies 52507460


 755.97932 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER436 02/04/2015OH garage door repair lrg. trk room. 41007430
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 1.29672 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER436 02/26/2015Tower III Repairs to the sump pump line. 84007450


 32.09932 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER436 02/26/2015Work bench supplies 84007450


 9.99675 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER436 02/26/2015Pro gas bottle. 84007450


 5.98933 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER436 02/25/2015Ferrule and glue for repairing body doors on buckets 68007430


 602.50143 000000  - STUART C IRBY355 02/04/2015Overpayment on 1/0 wire. 41007430


 6,025.00232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 02/04/20151/0 wire 41007430


 82.94921 000000  - TELEFLORACOM PICKS RCV994 02/12/2015FLOWERS FOR AMY JO 36507430


 93.13833 000000  - THE UPS STORE 3617164 02/24/2015WET testing shipping cost 83007460


 48.78833 000000  - THE UPS STORE 3617164 02/26/2015WET testing shipping cost 83007460


 133.55833 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 02/27/2015lab supplies 87007460


 119.24833 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 02/16/2015pump couplers 87007460


 54.74642 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 02/09/2015Reagent agent for fluoride test. 52757450


 61.45831 000000  - USPS 56797007232510315824 02/26/2015shipping charges 87007460


 1.42642 000000  - USPS 56797007232510315824 02/19/2015Water sample shipping charges. 84007450


 21.10920 000000  - VZWRLSS PRPAY AUTOPAY498 02/23/20153G service for iPad 33007430


 8.97933 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 02/17/2015headlight bulb for truck 8 52757450


 7.94932 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 02/17/2015hand soap 52757450


 21.93827 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 02/10/2015Hardware 87007460


 5,968.00368 003300  - WESCO - # 7862521 02/09/20152 75 KVA 3-PHASE TRANSFORMERS 41007430


 188.50232 001099  - WESCO - # 7862521 02/11/2015seal kits for elbows 41007430


 5,968.00143 000000  - WESCO - # 7862521 02/11/20152-100 KVA POLE XFS DUPLICATE CHARGE 41007430


 90.00850 000000  - WWOA548 02/27/2015WWOA membership renewals - RKardasz, PLinnerud 36507460


 74,482.27Total:








 


DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, March 16, 2015 – 5:00 p.m. 
Edmund Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Building 
600 S. Fourth Street 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman, Alderperson Eric 


Hohol, Citizen Member John Kallas, Mayor Donna 
Olson via telephone conference call and Alderperson 
Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu. 


  
Absent: None. 
   
Excused: Alderperson Thomas Majewski and Citizen Member 


Alan Staats. 
  
Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor 


Brian Hoops and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz, P.E.  


 
Call To Order:  Alderperson Eric Hohol called the regular Stoughton Utilities 
Committee Meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda: Stoughton Utilities Director 
Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Meeting Consent Agenda items.  Discussion Followed.  Motion by Citizen Member 
David Erdman,  the motion seconded by Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu, to 
approve the following consent agenda items as presented:  Stoughton Utilities 
Payments Due List, Draft Minutes of the February 16, 2015 Regular Stoughton 
Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities January 2015 Financial Summary, 
Stoughton Utilities January 2015 Statistical Information, Stoughton Utilities 
Communications, Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar, and the 
Stoughton Utilities February 2015 Activities Reports.  The motion carried 
unanimously 5-0. 
 
Status Of The Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) To The 
Stoughton Common Council:  Alderperson Eric Hohol and Stoughton Utilities 
Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the following items from the 
Stoughton Utilities Committee that were approved and placed on file by the 
Stoughton Common Council: 
 


 Stoughton Utilities Bad Debt Account Write-Offs through December 31, 
2015. 
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 Stoughton Utilities proposed updated position descriptions for the utilities 
Electric System Lead Lineman and the Utilities Lead Meter 
Technician/Journeyman Lineman.  


 


 Payments Due List. 
 


 Stoughton Utilities Committee January 20, 2015 Regular Meeting 
Minutes. 


 


 Stoughton Utilities December 2014 Financial Summaries. 
 


 Stoughton Utilities December 2014 Statistical Worksheet. 
 


Stoughton Utilities Proposed Updated Position Descriptions For The Utilities 
Accountant II, Utilities Accounts Collections Technician, Utilities Customer 
Service Technician, Utilities GIS Analyst, Utilities Water/Wastewater 
Operator/Meter Technician and the Utilities Water Operator I:  Stoughton 
Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor Brian Hoops and Stoughton Utilities 
Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the  proposed updated position 
descriptions for the Utilities Accountant II, Utilities Accounts Collection Technician, 
Utilities Customer Service Technician, Utilities GIS Analyst, Utilities 
Water/Wastewater Operator/Meter Technician, and the Utilities Water Operator I.  
Discussion followed.  Motion by Citizen Member John Kallas, the motion seconded 
by Citizen Member David Erdman, to approve the updated position descriptions for 
the Utilities Accountant II, Utilities Accounts Collections Technician, Utilities 
Customer Service Technician, Utilities GIS Analyst, Utilities Water/Wastewater 
Operator/Meter Technician and the Utilities Water Operator I, and recommend 
them for approval to the Stoughton Personnel Committee and the Stoughton 
Common Council on March 24, 2015.  The motion carried unanimously 5-0.   
 
Stoughton Utilities Customer Service Technician Position:  Stoughton Utilities 
Technical Operations Supervisor Brian Hoops and Stoughton Utilities Director 
Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the proposed Stoughton Utilities 
Customer Service Position.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Elvin 
(Sonny) Swangstu, the motion seconded by Citizen Member John Kallas, to 
approve the proposed Stoughton Utilities Customer Service Technician and 
recommend it to the Stoughton Personnel Committee and the Stoughton Common 
Council on March 24, 2015.  The motion carried unanimously 5-0.    
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Stoughton Utilities Declarations Of Official Intent Nos. 2015-1 Through 2015-
3:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the 
Stoughton Utilities Declarations of Official Intent as follows: 
 
Declaration No. 2015-1 Stoughton Utilities 2015 Hults Road Sanitary Sewer 


and Water Main Project for $850,000.00. 
 
Declaration No. 2015-2 Stoughton Utilities 2015 Purchase of Electric Service 


Truck No. 8 for $30,000.00. 
 
Declaration No. 2015-3 Stoughton Utilities Church Street and Ridge Street 


Water Main Project for $65,000.00. 
 
Discussion followed.  Motion by Citizen Member David Erdman, the motion 
seconded by Citizen Member John Kallas, to approve Stoughton Utilities 
Declarations of Official Intent Nos. 2015-1 through 2015-3.  The motion carried 
unanimously 5-0.    
 
Stoughton Utilities Consumer Confidence Report (CCR):   Stoughton Utilities 
Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the CCR.  Discussion followed. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Electric and Water Annual Reports To The Wisconsin 
Public Service Commission:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz 
presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Electric and Water Annual 
Reports to the WPSC.  Discussion followed. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Item(s): 


 


 Light Emitting Diode (LED) street lighting use. 
 
Adjournment:  Motion by Citizen Member David Erdman, the motion seconded by 
Citizen Member John Kallas, to adjourn the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Meeting at 5:43 p.m. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 
 
 


 Respectfully submitted, 
 
Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  
Stoughton Utilities Director 
 


 








Highlights-Comparison to prior month


I have no concerns with the utility's financial status.  The following items are


meant to illustrate significant changes in the financial summary from prior periods.


Financial results are as expected through February 2015.


Water expenses are slightly high due to the semi-annual administration fees 


billed by the City in January.


Staff is recommending a water rate adjustment of 3%.  An application to


the Public Service Commission will be submitted upon approval by the


Utilities Committee.


An application has been filed for an electric rate adjustment.  


Wastewater rates were adjusted on January 1, 2015.


Submitted by: 


 Kim M. Jennings, CPA


Stoughton Utilities
Financial Summary


February 2015-YTD







Stoughton Utilities
Income Statement


February 2015-YTD


Electric Water Wastewater Total


Operating Revenue:


Sales 2,644,225$         280,158$          323,646$             3,248,028$        


Other 49,352                7,375                5,792                   62,520               


Total Operating Revenue: 2,693,577$         287,533$          329,438$             3,310,548$        


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 2,102,395$         -$                  -$                    2,102,395$        


Expenses 301,151              154,181            176,981               632,314             


Taxes (Including PILOT) 64,166                62,500              -                      126,666             


Depreciation 160,000              68,334              127,500               355,834             


Total Operating Expense: 2,627,712$         285,015$          304,481$             3,217,208$        


Operating Income 65,866$              2,517$              24,956$               93,340$             


Non-Operating Income 215,641              7,177                5,615                   228,433             


Non-Operating Expense (26,959)               (12,167)             (24,166)               (63,293)              


Net Income 254,547$            (2,473)$             6,405$                 258,480$           







Stoughton Utilities
Rate of Return


February 2015-YTD


Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 65,866$              2,517$              


Average Utility Plant in Service 23,623,889         12,076,402       


Average Accumulated Depreciation (11,333,957)        (3,940,897)        


Average Materials and Supplies 134,316              34,727              


Average Regulatory Liability (210,524)             (359,398)           


Average Customer Advances (11,505)               


Average Net Rate Base 12,202,219$       7,810,834$       


Actual Rate of Return 0.54% 0.03%


Authorized Rate of Return 6.50% 6.50%







Stoughton Utilities
Cash & Investments


Electric Feb-15


Unrestricted (2.6 months O&M) 3,384,527      


Bond Reserve 704,728         


Redemption Fund (P&I) 503,337         


Designated 2,291,230      


Total 6,883,823      


Water Feb-15


Unrestricted (3.1 months O&M) 429,193         


Bond Reserve 274,005         


Redemption Fund (P&I) 159,935         


Designated 87,855           


Total 950,989         


Wastewater Feb-15


Unrestricted (5.1 months O&M) 729,057         


DNR Replacement 1,283,407      


Redemption Fund (P&I) 418,068         


Designated 529,977         


Total 2,960,510      


3,384,527 , 49%


704,728 , 10%
503,337 , 8%


2,291,230 , 33%


Electric Cash - February 2015


Unrestricted (2.6 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


429,193 , 45%


274,005 , 29%


159,935 , 17%


87,855 , 9%


Water Cash - February 2015


Unrestricted (3.1 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


729,057 , 25%


1,283,407 , 43%


418,068 , 14%


529,977 , 18%


Wastewater Cash - February 2015


Unrestricted (5.1 months O&M) DNR Replacement
Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated







Stoughton Utilities
Balance Sheet


February 2015-YTD


Assets Electric Water WW Total


Cash & Investments 6,883,823$         950,989$          2,960,510$         10,795,321$     


Customer A/R 717,204              85,646              100,740              903,589            


Other A/R 108,432              5,922                14,426                128,780            


Other Current Assets 622,478              54,985              22,762                700,224            


Plant in Service 24,379,537         12,687,916       26,626,319         63,693,771       


Accumulated Depreciation (11,947,288)        (4,343,675)        (8,855,485)          (25,146,448)      


Plant in Service - CIAC 2,804,303           6,141,956         -                      8,946,259         


Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (968,131)             (1,775,418)        -                      (2,743,550)        


Construction Work in Progress 30,140                61,710              67,034                158,883            


Total Assets 22,630,497$       13,870,030$     20,936,304$       57,436,831$     


Liabilities + Net Assets


A/P 62,033$              7,084$              118,864$            187,981$          


Taxes Accrued 430,198              415,200            -                      845,397            


Interest Accrued 63,434                25,772              49,060                138,267            


Other Current Liabilities 288,402              126,970            111,638              527,010            


Long-Term Debt 5,105,996           2,009,690         5,952,432           13,068,118       


Net Assets 16,680,434         11,285,315       14,704,309         42,670,058       


Total Liabilities + Net Assets 22,630,497$       13,870,030$     20,936,304$       57,436,831$     








Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2014 KwH Purchased 2014 2015 KwH Purchased 2015 Peak 2014 Peak 2015


January 13,572,114 13,885,322 12,594,914 13,197,588 25,674 25,272


February 11,612,838 12,255,028 11,912,881 12,163,003 23,798 24,035


March


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 25,184,952 26,140,350 24,507,795 25,360,591


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2014 Gallons Pumped 2014 2015 Gallons Pumped 2015 2014 2015


January 39,159,000 41,904,000 38,998,000 43,515,000 1,621,000 1,699,000


February 36,656,000 41,813,000 36,093,000 38,638,000 2,034,000 1,650,000


March


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 75,815,000 83,717,000 75,091,000 82,153,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2014 Gallons Gallons 2014 2015 Gallons Gallons 2015 2014 2015


January 28,250,000 34,801,000 25,781,000 33,133,000 1.17 0.72


February 25,179,000 30,873,000 24,242,000 28,758,000 1.36 0.70


March


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 53,429,000 65,674,000 50,023,000 61,891,000 2.53 1.42


2015 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electic


Water


Wastewater








 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


 


Date:  April 14, 2015  


         


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Communications. 


 


March 5, 2015 Thank you card from Municipal Electric Utilities of 


Wisconsin (MEUW) Executive Director Zak Bloom to 


Utilities Billing and Customer Service Technician Erin 


Goldade for her panel participation in a recent MEUW 


Collections Seminar. 


 


March 23, 2015 Letter to the U.S. Department of Energy for support of a 


grant request from the Wisconsin State Energy Office. 


 


March 23, 2015 News Release regarding the end of the electric 


disconnection moratorium. 


 


March 23, 2015 Article in the American Public Power Association (APPA) 


newsletter “Public Power Daily” from WPPI Energy 


(WPPI) senior vice president of government and external 


relations Dan Ebert regarding renewable energy 


participation. 


 


March 23, 2015 WPPI Energy memorandum regarding Stoughton Utilities 


voting status. 


 


March 24, 2015 News Release regarding participation in the recent APPA 


Legislative Rally. 


 


March 25, 2015 Letter from WPPI Energy regarding the Stoughton Utilities 


Wastewater Treatment Facility generator use. 


 


March 31, 2015 WPPI Energy summary of benefits or “dividends”. 


 


March 2015  WPPI President and CEO Michael Peters Memorandum 


“things you should KNOW”. 


 


 







March-April, 2015 APPA magazine “Public Power”. 


 


April 2, 2015 Article in the APPA newsletter “Public Power Daily” from 


WPPI President and CEO Mike Peters regarding power 


plant emission standards. 


 


April 2015 Yahara WINs 2014 Annual Report.   


 


April 2015 MEUW newsletter “Live Lines” article regarding the 


APPA Legislative Rally. 


 


April 2015 Stoughton Utilities updated chapter in the Common 


Council Orientation Handbook. 


 


Spring, 2015 WPPI Energy newsletter “Power Report”. 


   


Encl. 


 


cc: Sean O Grady - Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent  
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News Release 
Stoughton Utilities 


 


FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
March 23, 2015 


 


Contact: Brian Hoops, Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor 


 


 


Stoughton Utilities cautions against electric service 


disconnections as winter moratorium ends  
 


Stoughton Utilities is advising electric and water customers who are behind on their bills to immediately 


pay any delinquent balances, or make payment arrangements with the utility to avoid service 


disconnection.  


Wisconsin’s Winter Emergency Period, often referred to as the moratorium on residential service 


disconnection, ends April 15. After that date, utilities statewide may begin to disconnect service to 


customers who are past due on payment of their electric bills for any period of time, including the winter 


months. Stoughton Utilities plans to disconnect electric service to all severely delinquent accounts on 


April 16. 


“The end of the winter moratorium on disconnections is fast approaching,” said Brian Hoops, Utilities 


Technical Operations Supervisor. “Unpaid bills drive up costs for the whole community. It is Stoughton 


Utilities' goal to do what we can to collect unpaid bills while also attempting to help customers avoid 


service disruptions for nonpayment.” 


The Public Service Commission of Wisconsin established the annual moratorium—from November 1 to 


April 15—to protect customers from service disconnection during harsh Wisconsin winters. 







According to Hoops, more than 2,100 utility customers have overdue bills totaling over $421,900. Despite 


these figures, over 75 percent of customers pay their bills on time each month. 


Hoops encourages customers to contact the Stoughton Utilities office as soon as possible to begin 


discussing deferred payment arrangements that can spread payment of delinquent balances out over a 


period of time. 


“We understand that situations can arise, making it difficult for customers to pay their bills,” said Hoops. 


“However, to avoid disconnection, we are urging customers to make the appropriate payment 


arrangements. We would like to help these customers make suitable arrangements to avoid shutting off 


their service.” 


Customers can contact Stoughton Utilities to establish a deferred payment arrangement. The utility will 


negotiate payment options with each customer based upon their unique financial situation, however will 


require a down-payment of at least one-third the past-due balance. All deferred payment arrangements 


must be made in-person at the Stoughton Utilities office, so customers should not wait until the last minute. 


Various low-income assistance programs are offered to Stoughton Utilities customers through our 


Commitment to Community program, as well as other area resources. To apply for energy assistance, 


customers should immediately call 1-866-HEATWIS (432-8947). An appointment is necessary, and 


assistance payments may take up to six weeks to be received. Under the eligibility requirements, customers 


at or below 60 percent of the state’s median income may qualify for WHEAP assistance, including: 


 A single person earning up to $25,152 per year; 


 A family of four with an annual income of up to $48,368 


Customers can review their account balances and make payments online at www.stoughtonutilities.com.  


To make payment arrangements or to explore payment options with the utility, customers can contact 


Stoughton Utilities at (608) 873-3379 during normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday 


through Friday. 


# # # 
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News Release  
Stoughton Utilities  


  


FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE  
March 24, 2015  


  


Contact:  Robert Kardasz, Utilities Director  


  


  


Local Leaders Discuss Energy Policy with Members of Congress  


Public power leaders from across the country gathered in Washington, D.C. March 9-11 for the 2015 


American Public Power Association (APPA) Legislative Rally.  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 


Kardasz participated in the event as an opportunity to learn more about legislative issues impacting the 


industry and to share their insights first-hand with federal lawmakers and staff.  


  


Kardasz shared with elected leaders three key concerns about the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s 


proposed Clean Power Plan, which will regulate carbon dioxide emissions from power plants.  


  


In all, 61 individuals from Wisconsin and Michigan’s Upper Peninsula attended as members of the trade 


association Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) and WPPI Energy, the regional power 


supplier for Stoughton Utilities.  


  


Kardasz and the other participants emphasized to policy makers the need for the EPA to provide credit for 


carbon dioxide reductions made since 2005, rather than using 2012 as the baseline year. In addition, the 







plan sets interim state-by-state targets that would be very difficult to achieve by 2020, attendees said. 


“We’re also concerned that the EPA plan lacks focus on broad, collaborative regional solutions,” Kardasz 


said.  


  


Other priorities for leaders in communities with public power utilities are preserving the tax exemption 


for municipal bonds and maintaining a balanced approach to cybersecurity regulations for electric utilities.   


  


  


Local officials and utility managers meet with Senator Tammy Baldwin during the  2015 
APPA Legislative Rally in Washington, D.C.  


  


# # #  


Founded in 1886, Stoughton Utilities serves electric customers in Stoughton and the surrounding area; and 


wastewater and water customers in Stoughton.  







 


 
Via Email: bkardasz@stoughtonutilities.com 
 
 
March 25, 2015 
 
Bob Kardasz, Utility Director 
Stoughton Utilities 
P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI 53589-0383 
 
SUBJECT: Results from the March 18, 2015 Customer-Sited Distributed Generation Test 
 
Dear Bob: 
 
WPPI Energy conducted a system-wide test on Wednesday, March 18, 2015 of all standby 
generators receiving monthly capacity payments. Overall, the response from participants was 
again very good. The test demonstrated a total of 10.3 megawatts of distributed generation 
capacity are available to WPPI for emergency response. This is enough reserve generation to 
maintain power to 4,100 homes. 
 
During the two-hour test, the generator at the City of Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facilities 
had an average output (“Tested Capacity”) of 224 kW. This Tested Capacity will be used to 
calculate your monthly payments for the next 12 months. You should also expect to see an 
energy payment included with the next monthly payment as a reimbursement for 572 kilowatt-
hours of creditable energy generated for WPPI Energy during the test period. 
  
If you have any questions about the test or the payment calculations, please do not hesitate to 
contact me at (608) 825-1755 or cneeley@wppienergy.org. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Cory Neeley 
Energy Services Representative 
 
cc: Brian Erickson, Stoughton Utilities 
 Sean Grady, Stoughton Utilities 
 Jake Oelke, WPPI Energy 
 
 
 
 
#124478 



mailto:bkardasz@stoughtonutilities.com
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MARCH 2015 
 
Things You Should Know is my monthly wrap-up for members of all things related to WPPI Energy. 
As always, I welcome your feedback. Hearing directly from you is critical to our ability to serve our members. If 
you have any questions, comments or concerns, please contact me at 608-834-4557 or mpeters@wppienergy.org. 
 
Report highlights local joint action benefits. This 
month I mailed to all WPPI Energy member utility 
managers a letter reporting many of the individual 
and system-wide benefits delivered to each member 
community in 2014 through their membership in 
WPPI Energy. Covering a broad range of topics—
from community-specific local energy-savings results for customers to power supply accomplishments for the 
membership as a whole—the figures and details in the report help portray the many ways that joint action helps 
member utilities operate more efficiently and effectively.  
 
This marks our second year of sending these annual “dividend reports” to demonstrate our commitment to every 
individual community we serve. I welcome any questions or comments you have on the information presented. I 
also encourage you to share this mailing more broadly, and to consider inviting us to give a presentation on the 
information in your dividend report. For the WPPI Energy membership, part of being stronger together is making 
sure that utility customers, governing body officials, and other key opinion leaders understand why their 
community is a member of WPPI Energy and what value that ownership brings.  
 
WPPI Energy calls for FERC leadership on Clean Power Plan reliability threats. While speaking as a 
panelist at a Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s technical conference, I highlighted some of the WPPI 
Energy membership’s top concerns about the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s proposed Clean Power 
Plan rules for reducing carbon dioxide emissions from existing power plants. EPA bases its authority to propose 
the Clean Power Plan on the Clean Air Act. This federal legislation was signed into law by Lyndon Johnson in 
1963 and was last revised in 1990. Held in St. Louis on March 31, the FERC conference was the final in a series 
focused on the reliability, infrastructure and wholesale market impacts of the draft EPA regulations.  
 
My remarks, which were based on the work of our in-house EPA expert Andy Kellen, focused on how disparate 
Clean Power Plan state emissions reduction goals, combined with differing state approaches to compliance, may 
impact regional wholesale market costs and reliability. I provided an example of how energy market prices 
between states might vary depending on each state’s compliance approach, with the possible result that identical 
generating units with identical fuel costs in different states could face significant price differences depending on 
the state’s compliance approach. The market impacts would likely cause resources on the regional grid to be 
dispatched in a manner for which the system was not designed or planned, which could impact reliability as well 
as affordability for customers.   
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Page 2 
As I noted in my remarks, generators should not be forced to choose between keeping the lights on or complying 
with their environmental obligations. Deciding which federal law to violate—the Federal Power Act or the Clean 
Air Act—would be an impossible dilemma. 
 
I emphasized the need for FERC, as the federal regulatory body with the responsibility to maintain reliability, to 
step in. And, knowing that policy makers are far more likely to listen to suggested solutions rather than 
complaints, I also offered two examples of how the commission could provide a necessary safety valve: FERC 
could conduct a reliability review as each state compliance plan is developed, and the agency could establish a 
mechanism to address reliability impacts after a state’s plan has been implemented.  
 
You can read my full submitted remarks to FERC at http://ow.ly/L0014. For more on the conference from the 
American Public Power Association’s Public Power Daily, visit ow.ly/LanMz.  
 
A successful legislative rally. Forty-two WPPI Energy member officials representing 22 communities 
participated in meetings with their congressional delegates during the APPA Legislative Rally held March 9-11 in 
Washington, DC. Decisions by our federal legislators can drastically impact the ability of our public power 
communities to serve customers responsibly, reliably and affordably, and participation in the APPA rally is one of 
our most effective opportunities to communicate about the energy policy issues that matter to our public power 
utilities. 
 
We used this opportunity to convey our significant concerns about the EPA’s draft of the Clean Power Plan to 
U.S. senators and representatives. Other issues we discussed at this year’s meetings with legislators included 
preserving tax-exempt municipal bond financing in order to affordably maintain essential safety and services for 
utility customers and citizens, and the importance of developing cyber security policies that will protect critical 
infrastructure without imposing unnecessary costs on small utility systems and their customers. 
 


 
Wisconsin municipal utility officials meet with U.S. Senator Ron Johnson at the APPA Legislative Rally in Washington, D.C. 


 
Meeting in person with our policy makers is by far the most effective way to build relationships and communicate 
our energy policy concerns, and our member communities’ local elected and appointed officials presence is most 
meaningful in these interactions. Thank you to all who attended. I cannot express strongly enough how much we 
appreciate your public power advocacy leadership and support. 
 
Remember to RSVP for the May board of directors meeting. Please RSVP by Wednesday, May 6, to attend 
the WPPI Energy Board of Directors meeting, which will take place at WPPI Energy on Friday, May 15. We will 
begin with a 7:30 a.m. breakfast buffet, and the meeting will start at 8:30. Contact Vicki Hewitt at 608-834-4573 
or vhewitt@wppienergy.org . 
 



http://t.co/50M5m9NPwH

http://t.co/ceEPPHPowo
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Page 3 
WPPI Energy member rates workshop on May 14. We will host a rates workshop on Thursday, May 14, for 
interested WPPI Energy board members, member utility managers, and member employees. We chose this time in 
order to make travel more convenient for those planning to attend the Board of Directors meeting scheduled for 
the next morning on May 15.  
 
The workshop agenda will include an overview of how the WPPI Energy membership’s wholesale rate is 
currently developed, some potential changes to the wholesale rate to capture more value from advanced metering 
capabilities, and more. Also covered will be regulatory issues such as the Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin’s March 30 letter regarding coincident billing of customers with multiple meters or service points, 
raising the monthly customer service charge, and some retail rate options with the potential to reduce WPPI 
Energy’s system costs. Please mark the date on your calendar and stay tuned for more information. Contact Tim 
Noeldner at 608-834-4579 or tnoeldner@wppienergy.org. 
 
Did you miss our first WPPI Energy member webinar? This week we conducted the first in a series of 
monthly educational webinars. WPPI Energy’s Sr. Vice President of Government Relations and External Affairs 
Dan Ebert kicked off the series with a very well attended and informative “Legislative and Regulatory Outreach 
and Issues” presentation explaining the importance of member involvement in advocating for public power and 
highlighting five major state and federal energy policy initiatives.  
 
The WPPI Energy member webinar series is intended provide member utility managers with information about 
WPPI Energy-specific topics or other timely and relevant issues related to the electric industry. A quarter of our 
member utility managers are new to their positions within the past two years. This series of webinars has the 
potential to increase their specific knowledge about our joint action agency and, at the same time, offer valuable 
information to those utility managers with longer tenure with the utility.  


If you missed participating in the first webinar, you’ll still have the opportunity to listen to the recorded session, 
which will be posted soon on our internal website for members, myWPPI. I hope you’ll join on us May 21 for the 
next webinar, “How WPPI Energy Develops Load Forecasts.” WPPI Energy power supply staff members Todd 
Komplin and Jared Hayden will discuss how we formulate load forecasts for members and the system as well as 
how this important data contributes to power supply planning and budget development. For more information, 
contact Lauri Isaacson at 608-834-4571 or lisaacson@wppienergy.org.  


Wisconsin Municipal Utilities Legislative Day. In addition to the federal policy maker outreach that we conduct 
directly and through APPA, WPPI Energy supports the legislative advocacy efforts of each of our members’ state 
associations in Michigan, Iowa and Wisconsin. On April 29, public power officials in Wisconsin have the 
opportunity to attend the Municipal Utilities Legislative Day, a collaborative effort by the Municipal Electric 
Utilities of Wisconsin, the Wisconsin Rural Water Association, the Wisconsin Water Association and the 
Municipal Environmental Group’s Water and Wastewater Divisions. The day will consist of a legislative briefing 
and panel of speakers followed by the opportunity to meet with state legislators on issues that impact your 
community. Register by Monday, April 13, at MEUW’s website, www.meuw.org. 
 
Staff Updates. Finally, I am pleased to welcome one addition to our staff. Steve Lightbourn will join WPPI 
Energy on April 13. Steve will fill an existing vacancy on our team as the Manager of Marketing Programs.    
 
I am always open to suggestions and feedback from WPPI Energy members. If you have any questions, comments 
or concerns about WPPI Energy or the updates I’ve provided here, please don’t hesitate to reach me at 608-834-
4557 or mpeters@wppienergy.org. 



mailto:tnoeldner@wppienergy.org
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The Yahara WINs Pilot Project is testing a new, innovative, and collaborative compliance approach, 
called watershed adaptive management, to meet regulatory requirements for phosphorus and sediment 
(TSS) reduction in the Yahara River Watershed.  Thirty entities are participating in the pilot project 
including wastewater treatment plants, industry, cities, villages, towns, and numerous other partners. 


Early pilot project efforts focused on implementing a robust water quality monitoring program and 
evaluating baseline conditions related to phosphorus in the pilot project area.  Over the course of the 
pilot, the project’s focus and activities have evolved to start paving the way for a full‐scale watershed 
adaptive management project.  By its completion in 2015, the pilot project will provide the data needed 
to help Yahara WINs participants make informed decisions relating to the use of adaptive management 
to meet the Rock River TMDL phosphorus and sediment (TSS) reduction requirements.  


Important accomplishments that aid in moving toward a full‐scale adaptive 
management program in the Yahara River Watershed: 


 A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Madison Metropolitan Sewerage 
District and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) was signed that 
provides certainty to the District and its adaptive management partners in several key 
areas related to adaptive management implementation and its use as a compliance 
strategy.  


 A more robust and refined model was developed to improve cost estimates for full‐scale adaptive 
management. 


 Refining the cost model and developing the MOU with WDNR have already helped contribute to 
some of these key areas needed in a full‐scale adaptive management plan that will be submitted to 
WDNR for review and approval. 


 Growing interest in watershed‐based projects that address pollution at its source, presents 
opportunities to secure supplemental funding, such as the $1.6 million Regional Conservation 
Partnership Program (RCPP) grant that was awarded to Dane County Land Conservation Division 
(LCD).  The diversity of the public‐private partnerships in the grant, as well as the established 
relationships and past successes among partners, were integral to the RCPP proposal’s success.  


 Through Yahara WINs funding, the Rock River Coalition continues the growth of the volunteer 
monitoring program, which also lays the groundwork for expansion to full‐scale adaptive 
management. 
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Yahara WINs Pilot Project implementation efforts: 


 Phosphorus reduction practices and agricultural inventories were expanded. 


o 78% of agricultural land in the pilot watershed has been inventoried for current practices 
and baseline phosphorus index (PI) values. 


o 37 new conservation practices were implemented by Dane County LCD.  


o A total of 4,842 pounds of phosphorus per year was reduced from the pilot project area.  


o A 79% reduction in phosphorus loadings was achieved in one of the pilot watersheds. 


o The harvestable buffer program began this year and will reduce phosphorus loads by 399 


pounds per year for each of the next five years.  


o Yahara Pride Farms (YPF) continued their promotion and demonstrations of phosphorus 
reduction practices and reduced phosphorus loadings by an estimated 1,923 pounds 
through YPF cost‐share program and 7,388 pounds through additional practices installed by 
Yahara Pride Farmers.   


o There was increased participation in the Yahara WINs grant program, which enabled the 
execution of a mix of projects that deliver 5,244 pounds per year of phosphorus reductions 
at a low cost per pound.  


o Dane County LCD evaluated how cropping practices are changing over time for the seven 
TMDL reaches, so that informed decisions can be made on approaches to conservation 
practice implementation and subsequent phosphorus reductions. 


o Phosphorus index (PI) values for agricultural land located in the Waunakee Marsh, Pheasant 
Branch, and Sixmile Creek Watersheds have been evaluated and will help prioritize 
conservation efforts and the allocation of resources.     


 Other ongoing projects include a leaf management study by USGS/UW, the evaluation of legacy 
sediments by Dane County LCD, SnapPlus improvements by UW to take into account frozen ground 
and exercise areas, and adjacent research opportunities through Water Sustainability and Climate 
Change and a Department of Energy grant to promote biofuels/grassland. 


 Water quality monitoring efforts during the past year have been extended and continue to enhance 
our understanding of the flows and loads of phosphorus in the Yahara River Watershed, which is 
important for full‐scale project planning and compliance. 


 New staff have been hired or are in the process of being hired at MMSD and Dane County LCD to 
prepare for the transition to full‐scale adaptive management.   


 Underlying all these efforts was the continued participation and support of Yahara WINs partners.  
This high degree of collaboration has been a theme throughout the pilot project, demonstrating an 
encouraging willingness of various sectors to come together around improving water quality.   







 
3 


Yahara WINs 2014 Annual Report 
Executive Summary 


Yahara WINs Pilot Project Participants 


Towns   Villages  Cities  Other 


Blooming Grove 
Bristol 
Burke 
Cottage Grove 
Dunn 
Westport 
Windsor 
Middleton 


Cottage Grove
DeForest 
Maple Bluff 
McFarland 
Oregon 
Shorewood Hills 
Waunakee 


Fitchburg
Madison 
Middleton 
Monona 
Stoughton 


Clean Lakes Alliance 
Clean Wisconsin 
Dane County 
MG&E 
MMSD 
Sand County Foundation
Stoughton Utilities 
USGS 
Yahara Pride Farms 
Wisconsin DNR 


Yahara WINs Interested Parties 
Capital Area Regional Planning Commission 
Friends of Badfish Creek  
River Alliance of Wisconsin  
Rock River Coalition  
US Environmental Protection Agency  
USDA/NRCS 
Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection 
Yahara Lakes Association 


 


What to Expect Moving Forward 


The success of the pilot project is the driving force behind the efforts to plan for a full‐scale adaptive 
management program in the Yahara River Watershed.  As we move forward into 2015, work on key 
items needed for full‐scale adaptive management has begun, including the refinement of the adaptive 
management cost model, the development of a more formal organizational structure for the Yahara 
WINs partners, and the development of the Adaptive Management Plan.  It is essential that Yahara 
WINs partners make progress on the key items listed below, as 2015 will be a critical year. 
 


Key items for Yahara WINs Partners to Accomplish in 2015 
MS4s should revisit their modeling results to determine how much phosphorus and sediment (TSS) are 
needed to meet their requirements under the TMDL.  These calculations will need to follow WDNR 
guidance and take into account existing drainage areas and management controls.  When complete, 
these results will be input into the cost model so that all partners can have a more accurate estimate of 
their cost to participate in a full‐scale adaptive management program.  Credit can then be given in those 
cases where the current level of phosphorus and sediment control results in loads that are less than the 
baseline loads used in the TMDL.   


All partners with TMDL allocations should review all their compliance options (facility upgrades, etc.), 
so that they are prepared to make the decision whether to participate in a full‐scale adaptive 
management program.   


Inform your decision leaders, boards, consultants, etc. of the advancement of a full‐scale adaptive 
management program.  


Maintain your pilot project payment allocation in your  2016 budget so that the phosphorus reducing 
practices and associated activities (including water quality monitoring) can be continued during a 2016 
transition year before the full‐scale adaptive management program begins. 
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Tentative Adaptive Management Timeline 


 


Additional information on Yahara WINs can be found at: 


http://www.madsewer.org/Programs‐Initiatives/Yahara‐WINs  


 


2015


• Complete pilot project


• Continued funding of phosphorus reducing practices


• Partners evaluate compliance options


• Adaptive management plan developed


• Intergovernmental agreement  to support a full‐scale adaptive management project is developed


2016


• Transition year


• Continued funding of phosphorus reducing practices 


• Adaptive management plan submitted to WDNR for approval


• Organizational structure to support full ‐scale project in place


• Continued financial support of WINS by participating partners at pilot project levels


2017


• Start of full ‐scale adaptive management project


• Expanded funding of phosphorus reducing practices and supporting activities











































 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES  (SU) – 2015 
600 South Fourth Street 


www.stoughtonutilities.com 


 


Utilities Director 


Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


RKardasz@stoughtonutilities.com 


877-7423 


Operations Superintendent 
Sean O Grady 


SOGrady@stoughtonutilities.com 


877-7416 


Finance & Administrative Manager 


Kim M. Jennings, CPA 


KJennings@stoughtonutilities.com 


877-7415 


Wastewater System Supervisor 


Brian G. Erickson 


BErickson@stoughtonutilities.com 


877-7421 


Technical Operations Supervisor 


Brian R. Hoops 


BHoops@stoughtonutilities.com 


877-7412 


 


About Us: 


SU is a locally-owned, not-for-profit municipal utility charged with providing electric, water, and wastewater service 


to approximately 6,200 city and 2,300 rural electric customers in parts or all of five townships in Dane and Rock 


Counties, and 4,900 wastewater and water customers within the city.   


The SU Water Utility was founded in 1886.  It was followed by the establishment of the Electric Utility in 1891, and 


the Wastewater Utility followed soon thereafter.  SU is operated under the direction of the seven-member Utilities 


Committee, the Mayor, and the Stoughton Common Council. The Utilities committee consists of the Mayor, three 


alderpersons, and three citizen members appointed by the Mayor.   


Our staff currently includes the Utilities Director and twenty-five employees, with one vacancy.  Assistance is 


provided by an Energy Services Representative provided by SU’s power supplier, WPPI Energy, and a Regional 


Safety Coordinator from Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW), the state association representing 


Wisconsin’s locally owned municipal utilities.   


SU serves a 24 square mile territory from the Utilities Administration Building located at 600 S. Fourth Street and 


the Wastewater Treatment Facility located at 700 Mandt Parkway.   


Electric service is provided to customers via three substations and 220 miles of overhead and underground electric 


lines.  Water service is provided via four production wells, two elevated storage tanks, one ground storage reservoir, 


one booster station, and 61 miles of water main.  Wastewater collection and treatment service is provided via 54 


miles of sanitary sewer mains,  five lift stations, one treatment facility, and two inverted siphon stations.  All remote 


locations are monitored and controlled by two supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) systems. 


Equipment: 


SU’s field equipment include nine service trucks, two passenger vehicles including one plug-in hybrid electric 


automobile, two digger-derrick trucks, three elevated bucket trucks including two hybrid electric vehicles, two dump 


trucks, one mobile tree chipper, one pole trailer, one stringing trailer with brake system, two wire reel trailers, one 


sanitary sewer jet-vac cleaning truck, one sanitary sewer video televising truck, one backhoe, one asphalt roller, one 


forklift, one equipment trailer with excavation shield, one power valve turner, two mobile emergency generators, 


and six fixed emergency generators. 



http://www.stoughtonutilities.com/

mailto:RKardasz@stoughtonutilities.com

mailto:SOGrady@stoughtonutilities.com

mailto:KJennings@stoughtonutilities.com

mailto:BErickson@stoughtonutilities.com

mailto:BHoops@stoughtonutilities.com





 


Operations: 


Each month SU staff reads approximately 8,600 electric and 4,900 water meters using our drive-by automated meter 


reading (AMR) system, generates approximately $1.6 million in monthly customer billings, and processes 


approximately 8,600 customer payments.   


Staff also processes and provides customer service, low income financial assistance, customer collections, 


conservation education and programming, accounts payable and receivable, construction and other invoicing, 


employee payroll, and state and federal reporting services.   


In addition, staff provides information technology and systems maintenance and support, materials and equipment 


acquisition, equipment and building maintenance scheduling and completion of work order billings, material 


retirements, project design and engineering, customer construction and development estimates, records retention, 


continuing property records maintenance and reporting, systems data acquisition and reporting, custom software 


programming, mobile systems access, and offline and online GIS mapping services. 


Revenues: 


SU operates under the enterprise fund financial system which establishes a separate accounting and financial 


reporting mechanism for municipal services for which a fee is charged in exchange for goods or services. Under 


enterprise accounting, the revenues and expenditures of services are separated into individual funds with their own 


financial statements, rather than commingled with the revenues and expenses of all other government activities.   


SU realizes annual electric revenues of $15.7 million from the sale of 142 million kilowatt-hours of electricity, 


wastewater revenues of $2.1 million from the conveyance and treatment of 330 million gallons of wastewater, and 


$1.8 million from the production, treatment and sale of 471 million gallons of water annually. 


Regional Partnerships: 


SU is one of 51 municipal utilities located in Wisconsin, Iowa and Upper Michigan that are members and joint 


owners of WPPI Energy, a regional Joint Action Agency.  WPPI Energy maintains a power supply portfolio 


consisting of ownership in coal and natural gas power plants, and contracts for coal, hydro, landfill bio-gas, natural 


gas, nuclear, solar, and wind power producing facilities.  This power producing mix has allowed WPPI Energy to 


meet all State and Federal renewable energy and other regulatory standards. 


SU is one of 82 locally-owned, not-for-profit members of Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW).  


MEUW is the state association representing the interests of Wisconsin’s locally-controlled municipal electric 


utilities. The association has been providing service, advocacy and safety initiatives to municipal electric utilities in 


Wisconsin since 1928. Collectively, these public power utilities distribute over 11 percent of the electricity in 


Wisconsin. 


SU is also a member of American Public Power Association, American Water Works Association, Wastewater 


Municipal Environmental Group, Wisconsin Rural Water Association, Wisconsin Wastewater Operators 


Association, and the Yahara Watershed Improvement Network. 


Goals: 


The Utilities Committee has established the following goals for SU and addresses them semi-annually.  All goals 


are considered both short term and long term, are achievable, and evolve on a regular basis as costs, conditions, and 


state and federal laws and regulations change. 


 Provide safe and reliable electric, water, and wastewater service at competitive rates in compliance with all 


applicable regulations.   


 Influence State and Federal regulation and law making that benefit our customers. 


 Ensure that all customers are categorized for the optimum rate available to them.   


 Provide our customers with accurate, timely, and easy to understand billing statements.   







 


 Offer billing payment opportunities that meet or exceed our customers’ expectations.   


 Maintain a business culture of environmental stewardship.   


 Develop customer programs and rate options that promote conservation.   


 Seek new, and maintain existing joint action partnerships that benefit our customers.   


 Remain a utility informational clearinghouse for our customers.   


 Provide staff that is open, understanding, and accessible to our customers.   


 Operate a highly professional utility with appreciation for our history and vision for our future.   


 Create career pathways and educational opportunities for our staff, and ensure that they are compensated 


appropriately with competitive benefit packages.   


 Use evolving methods, technologies, and independent studies that create new opportunities to improve the 


service to our customers. 


Personnel: 


SU staff is organized in five cooperative divisions, with employees, equipment, and tasks shared throughout the 


organization. 


Administration: 


Utilities Director 


Operations Superintendent 


Finance & Administrative Manager 


Technical Operations Division: 


Technical Operations Supervisor 


Utilities Accountant II 


Billing and Consumer Services Technician 


Collections Technician 


Two Customer Service Technicians 


GIS Analyst 


Utilities Planning Division: 


Engineering Technician 


Water & Wastewater Operator / Meter Technician 


MEUW - Regional Safety Coordinator 


WPPI Energy - Energy Services Representative 


Electric System Division 


Lead Journeyman Lineman 


Metering Lead Journeyman Lineman 


Four Journeyman Linemen   


Three Apprentice Journeyman Linemen 


Wastewater System Division 


Wastewater System Supervisor 


Two Wastewater System Operators 


Laboratory Technician / Wastewater System Operator 


Water System Division 


Lead Water System Operator 


Water System Operator 












 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


 


Date:  April 14, 2015 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


 Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar. 


 


The following calendar is provided for information and discussion. 


 


April 17, 2015 Meeting with Congressman Mark Pocan 


 


April 20, 2015 Regular Meeting - Stoughton Utilities 2014 Annual 


Audit and Management Letter presentation, 


discussion, approval and recommendation to the 


Common Council - Stoughton Utilities Tax 


Stabilization Dividends discussion, approval, and 


recommendation to the Common Council - Approve 


Declarations of Official Intent 


 


April 28, 2015 Common Council Meeting - Approve 2014 Annual 


Audit and Management Letter - Accept the Tax 


Stabilization Dividends  


 


May 3-9, 2015 Drinking Water Week 


 


May 5-7, 2015 American Public Power Association (APPA) 


Engineering and Operations Conference in 


Sacramento, CA 


 


May 18, 2015 Regular Meeting - First Regular Meeting after the 


Common Council Reorganization Meeting - Elect 


Committee Chair and Vice Chair - Elect Committee 


Liaison and Alternate Liaison - Establish Meeting 


Time and Monthly Meeting Date - Approve 


Declaration(s) of Official Intent - Tour East Electric 


Substation property 







 


June 3-5, 2015  Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) 


Annual Conference in Wisconsin Rapids 


 


June 5-10, 2015 (APPA) National Conference in Minneapolis, MN 


 


June 8-10, 2015  American Water Works Association (AWWA) 


National Conference in Anaheim, CA 


 


June 11, 2014 WPPI Energy Orientation Meeting in Sun Prairie 


 


June 15, 2015 Regular Meeting - Approve and recommend the 


Wastewater Compliance Maintenance Annual 


Report (CMAR) and Resolution to the Common 


Council on June 23, 2015 - Annual Stoughton 


Utilities Goals Discussion - Stoughton Utilities 


RoundUp Donation - Tour Well No. 4 property  


 


June 23, 2015 Common Council Meeting - Approve the CMAR 


 


July 20, 2015 Regular Meeting - Annual Studies Discussion - 


RoundUp Donation - Tour Stoughton Utilities 


Building   


  


August 17, 2015 Regular Meeting at the Wastewater Treatment 


Facility - Tour the facility  


 


August 20, 2015 Wisconsin Rural Water Exposition in Plover 


  


September 14, 2015 Regular Meeting - Approve the Stoughton Utilities 


2016 Budget including the maintenance of market 


rates and approve Stoughton Utilities Ten Year 


(2016-2025) Capital Projects Program and 


recommend it to the Stoughton Common Council  


  


September 16-18, 2015 Wisconsin Waterworks Association (AWWA) 


Annual Conference in Wisconsin Dells 


 


September 17-18, 2015 WPPI Energy (WPPI) Annual Conference in 


Sheboygan Falls 


 


October 4-10, 2015 Stoughton Utilities Public Power Week Celebration 


  


October 6, 2015 Stoughton Utilities Public Power Week Open House 


 


October 19, 2015 Regular Meeting  


 


October 6-9, 2015 Wisconsin Wastewater Operators Association 


Annual Conference in Wisconsin Dells 


 







October 30, 2015 WPPI Energy Orientation Meeting in Sun Prairie 


 


November 5, 2015 Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) 


District Dinner Meeting in Waunakee 


 


November 10, 2015 Common Council action on the Stoughton Utilities 


2015 Budget and CIP  


 


November 16, 2015 Regular Meeting - Goals discussion  


 


December 14, 2015 Regular Meeting  


 


January 19, 2016 Regular Meeting - Stoughton Utilities RoundUp 


Donation  


 


January 20-22, 2016 Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW) 


Superintendents Conference in Stevens Point 


 


February 15, 2016   Regular Meeting - Write Off’s discussion, approval 


and recommendation to the Common Council 


 


February 23, 2016 Common Council Meeting - Approve Write Off’s  


 


March 7-9, 2016 American Public Power Association (APPA) 


Legislative Rally in Washington, D.C. 


 


March 14, 2016 Regular Meeting - Declarations of Official Intent - 


Review Drinking Water Consumer Confidence 


Report (CCR)   


 


March 23-25, 2016 Wisconsin Rural Water Association (WRWA) 


Annual Conference in Green Bay 


 


 


 


cc: Sean O Grady 


      Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent  








 Stoughton Utilities Activities Report     
                     
 


        March 2015      
 
 
 


ADMINISTRATION – Utilities Director Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 
 
Electric crews progressed with vegetative management and infrastructure inspections 
throughout our service territory.  Water crews addressed cross connection inspections, 
normal distribution system issues, facilities replacements, system monitoring, and 
responded to cold weather-related challenges.  Wastewater crews concentrated on 
sanitary sewer collection system cleaning and televising, treatment facility monitoring, 
and implemented a number of treatment operational changes as the weather change 
necessitated treatment modifications.   A number of Information systems improvements 
were achieved during the month.  Efforts on working with customers to meet their electric, 
wastewater and water financial obligations continued.  Several position descriptions were 
updated by staff and received Stoughton Utilities Committee support.  Two staff 
resignations were also processed.     
 
During March, the Utilities Director participated in numerous internal and external 
meetings and conference telephone calls and traveled to Washington, D.C. to participate 
in the American Public Power Association Legislative Rally.  Issues conveyed to the 
Wisconsin elected officials included tax exempt financing preservation, cyber and 
physical security, and power plant emissions standards. 
 
ACCOUNTING – Utilities Accounting and Administrative Manager Kim M. Jennings, 
CPA 
 
Accomplishments: 


 Water Utility Simplified Rate Increase Application 


 Response to PSC request #4 for information on electric rate application 


 Associated Bank quarterly services review – March 27 


 Wells Fargo Direct Placement Financing Meeting – March 26 


 MEUW Accounting & Customer Service Committee Meeting – March 26 


 A/P, CCER, payroll and treasury management approvals 


 Investment sales/purchases and income tracking.   


 Monthly account reconciliation, work order closings, reporting and billing statistics 
for February 2015 


 
In Progress: 


 Reviewing borrowing options for Hults Road project 


 Dynamics Fixed Asset and Human Resources Modules – training and 
implementation 


 Monthly account reconciliation and reporting for March 2015 







CUSTOMER SERVICES AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES DIVISION – Utilities 
Technical Operations Supervisor Brian R. Hoops 
 
• Staff processed 11,803 payments in March totaling $2.1M, including 2,271 checks, 


2,285 lockbox payments, 1,191 credit cards, 1,297 online E-Pay payments, 827 direct 
bank payments, 3,739 ACH bank withdrawals, and over $14,700 in cash.  February’s 
due-date fell on March 2, so these numbers include the payments processed on two 
due-dates. 


• As of March 3 there were 1,844 active accounts carrying delinquent balances totaling 
$330,339, and 95 final-billed accounts carrying delinquent balances totaling $13,106.  
Of the total amount delinquent, $117,309 was 30 or more days past-due.   


We ended the month of March with $106,256 remaining 30 or more days past-due; 
for comparison, this amount was $48,200 as of November 1 when electric 
disconnections were discontinued. 


As a result of the cold weather electric disconnection moratorium which runs through 
April 15, March collections activity was limited to mailing past-due notices and 
performing a few water disconnections of customers who were severely delinquent.  
This was our final month of water disconnections, and all customers who remain 
severely delinquent as of April 15 will have their electric service disconnected.  Our 
goal for April will be to reduce the total delinquencies by 50% by the end of April. 


• During the month of March staff applied Energy Assistance payments totaling $8,708.  
These funds are collected through the monthly Commitment to Community charge 
that is billed to all customers and is intended to assist low-income customers with their 
home heating and crisis expenses.  So far during the 2014-15 heating season, SU 
customers have received benefits totaling $65,150. 


• Technical Operations Supervisor Brian Hoops continued to rewrite the backend code 
of Stoughton Utilities’ online E-Pay website. March’s project was to create the ability 
for customers to enroll and cancel participation in our Auto-Pay programs, as well as 
securely view and edit their existing banking information on file.  Since our credit card 
processing is done through a custom internal program and not our CIS, a two-part 
solution was created, with a Windows service running on our server monitors our 
internal database for changes and then sends basic customer updates for display on 
the E-Pay website, while also monitoring the E-Pay website for changes when a 
customer enrolls, cancels, or modifies their banking information and then updating our 
internal database, all encrypted and nearly in real-time.  Enrollment, cancellation, and 
updates of Autopay via bank ACH was also completed, but in a much simpler manner.  
In addition to the AutoPay updates, there was quite a bit of fine-tuning done on various 
pages to accommodate some of the issues that came up due to unique customer 
billing configurations, account histories with non-standard events, and customer 
internet browser / PDF reader limitations, as well as additional optimization of pages 
previously completed.   


 


 







Additional new E-Pay features planned for the future include detailing customer 
deposit requirements and interest history, add pending disconnection warnings, 
replicate some information that exists on our main site to be viewed within the E-Pay 
site, and other minor improvements that will bring our customer portal to a level equal 
to or better than our investor owned competitors.  Longer term plans also include 
optimizing the site for mobile and tablet access.  If anyone has any suggestions for 
new features, please contact Brian and let him know.    


March also brought about numerous personnel challenges as a result of the extended 
absence of one of the front-office employees, at a time when other staff had their own 
spring breaks scheduled.  All members of the front-office have stepped up to provide 
additional coverage of the phones and walk-in customers.  Most of the collections 
tasks were reassigned primarily between the Technical Operations Supervisor and 
the Billing Technician, which has resulted in some new challenges for both, but has 
also allowed us to discover and fix several issues that had previously gone unnoticed 
for quite some time. A temp has been obtained to help out with basic inquiries by 
phone and at the front-counter, but the additional training to get them up to speed with 
our systems is also time consuming for staff.  With the end of the winter disconnection 
moratorium fast approaching, it’s expected that the ongoing absence is going to mean 
a lot more challenges for all division staff. 


In addition, Brian also worked with Microsoft to investigate an issue that is preventing 
the clustering of our two physical servers that host our VMs (still unresolved); worked 
with IPSwitch to investigate an issue with our network monitoring software preventing 
polling to one of our servers (unresolved, but with a workaround); performed further 
tuning of our network intrusion detection system software; provided additional 
historical electric SCADA information to Forster Engineering detailing system loads 
back to 2008; finalized and distributed our annual water Consumer Confidence Report 
to residents, both electronically and physically to certain locations; communicated the 
upcoming DPA rule changes for tenants by numerous methods including phone 
notifications, mailed notices, and an article in the Tower Times; worked with our GIS 
Technician to finalize our water meter data migration to GIS; created an all-employee 
paging system using our existing telephones for use in an emergency situation; 
rewrote the job descriptions for all division staff to more accurately reflect current 
duties and responsibilities; engaged in battle with one of our printers, which beat not 
only me, but also the printer repair technician that was brought in after I gave up; 
handled various IT issues as they arose and updates as they were issued; and 
oversaw general billing and collections supervision. 


• Billing Technician Erin Goldade spent a significant amount of time evaluating the 
status of various collections tasks and picking up where the Accounts Receivable 
Technician left off.  These tasks include reviewing active deferred payment 
arrangement, performing the full monthly disconnection process, handling customer 
request disconnects and reconnects, and the review of pending customer deposit 
requests.  In addition, she also spent a considerable amount of time training the new 
temp employee on how to complete basic tasks in the Northstar CIS and various 
common customer service requests.   


 







Ongoing billing-related projects include the review of various account setups in the 
Northstar CIS looking for common errors that may have occurred in the past.  As these 
reviews of existing accounts continue, she’ll update the billing policies and procedures 
to implement new pre-billing steps to proactively prevent future repeat errors.  Other 
routine account reviews being undertaken include taking a look at our commercial and 
other non-standard metering installations to ensure both the electric and water 
metering setups are correct and the accounts are being properly billed.  As part of our 
preparation for an inevitable future audit by the Wisconsin PSC, Erin will also be 
working to create documented policies and procedures for all billing, collections, and 
metering tasks. 
 
Our annual lead and copper sampling was completed during the month, and Erin 
prepared all the sample kits and documentation for the customers.  This year we 
provided an automated phone call to the customers providing them with details and 
instructions in lieu of having staff call each customer individually, primarily due to the 
sizable increase in sampling locations. 
 
In addition, Erin also processed the monthly ACH and credit card payments for 
customers enrolled in Auto-Pay, completed the pre and post processing of the 
automatic meter reading system to obtain the current month’s readings, processed 
and calculated the monthly utility billing and submitted the data to Infosend for mailing, 
calculated and mailed the final billing statements for customers as they move in and 
out of addresses throughout town, worked with WPPI Energy on several Northstar CIS 
issues, selected and edited our monthly statement insert and messages, reviewed our 
large customer account consumption for proper rate classification, and issued notices 
to properties for which the current owner/occupant is unknown. 
 


• Accounts Specialist Shannon Gunsolus kept busy with the customer service tasks 
throughout the month, as she provided assistance with the phones and coverage of 
the front-counter during both planned and unplanned staff absences.  our period of 
balancing and updating of customer accounts and general accounting tasks, including 
payroll, accounts payable, accounts receivable, customer account billing corrections, 
daily cash deposits, and general customer service.  Due to both planned and 
unplanned staff absences, she also spent a considerable amount of time assisting the 
front office with basic customer service tasks and coverage of the phones and front 
counter.   


• GIS Technician Louis Rada worked on numerous GIS related projects throughout the 
month, the most substantial of which continued to be the data migration of our water 
division’s continuing property records from a Microsoft Access database to our GIS 
geodatabase.  March was spent completing the address reviews, locating and 
updating any missing information, creating a master street name database, doing 
quality control reviews of the migrated data and system structures, and creating a 
basic user workflow.  The new system is now live, and all meter installation updates 
that have been pending over the past five months have been entered and reviewed.  
The workflow for updating maintenance and test records and installation locations has 
been created, and water division field personnel now have full access to the data 
using their mobile tablets, including the ability to update the records.  Additional fine-







tuning will occur over the next month as they receive training and begin using the new 
system. 


The same processes that were used and perfected during the water meter data 
migration will be utilized to migrate the electric meter data later this year. 


In addition, Lou also continued to work with the Operations Superintendent to create 
several wall maps for display, created various maps for staff use, updated the existing 
ArcGIS Online web applications, reviewed our ESRI software licensing, and worked 
with ESRI support on various issues. 


Customer Service Technician Jennifer Rigdon continued our water system cross-
connection inspection program, including making and tracking follow-up inspections and 
providing customer notification to those that have failed to schedule appointments.  
Jennifer also performed numerous administrative tasks, reviewed customer compliance 
with our budget-billing program, finalized and distributed the monthly Utilities Committee 
packet, maintained our customer and project files, and provided general assistance. 
 
ELECTRIC DIVISION, PLANNING DIVISION AND WATER DIVISION – Utilities 
Operations Superintendent Sean O Grady 


 


Dustin Hess: Dustin took a job with Adams-Columbia Electric Cooperative.  His last day 
of employment with us was on March 18, 2015.  We wish him well. 
 
2018 Reconstruction Projects: This year we will be working with Charter 
Communications replacing overhead primary lines with underground cables in the rear 
yards of homes located north of Roby Rd., and one section on Madison Street located 
between West Street and Roby Rd.  These areas are notorious for tree conflicts, wildlife 
outages, and deteriorating lines.  We are scheduled to start this project around mid-April 
and hope to wrap up the project in three-months.  We are also planning on replacing a 
deteriorating overhead line on Lake Kegonsa Road, north of Old Stone Road this 
summer. 
 
2015 Line Clearance Work:  Crews did a good job this year and were able to finish our 
tree line clearance work on our overhead distribution lines east of 4th street.  We were 
also able to finish trimming overhead lines on STH 138 South, USH 51 East, and a portion 
of CTH A and Lake Kegonsa Rd.  Our efforts over the past 25 plus years of trimming trees 
around overhead distribution lines are now showing the benefits of our labor.  Using 
direction pruning techniques rather than topping trees along with tree removals and 
planting the correct trees near power lines are now beginning to show benefits.  We are 
able to maintain more lines per year and have very few tree vs power line interruptions to 
our customers.  Staff also started working on distribution maintenance work orders.  
These work orders are generated from pole line inspection reports the PSC requires all 
electric utilities to perform once every five years. 
 
Electric Trouble Calls For The Month: The month of March was proved to be a quiet 
month for the electric system.  We only had one recordable trouble call for a wildlife 
contact that affected one customer. 
   







Water Division Service Truck:  A new truck chassis was ordered from the State of 
Wisconsin contract this month.  We will be working on getting a quote from Monroe Truck 
and Madison Truck and Equipment for installing a new utility body onto the chassis.  This 
truck replaces a truck that is 13 years old. 
  
Well No. 4: CTW was on site this month and pulled the well for preventative maintenance.  
Our wells are pulled once every 7 years.  The condition of the casing, shaft, screen, bowls, 
and motor are inspected for normal wear and tear.  Parts found to be worn beyond repair 
are replaced.  We should have the inspection report completed by April and have the well 
placed back in service following a safe sample by mid-April. 
 
Well No. 4 Maintenance:  Kent and Scott have spent part of this month insulating and 
boarding up the inside of the windows where you could see daylight through the cracks.  
The chemical room was painted and all the houses on the injector pumps for fluoride and 
chlorine were replaced.  Inside the well house, walls were prepped for painting, old 
conduits were abandoned and sealed off, and two walls painted prior to the pump being 
pulled for routine maintenance.  His work turned out better than expected and shouldn’t 
need to be touched for another 7-10 years. 
 
Water Nitrate Testing:  Entry point water samples were taken from each of our 4 
production wells.  USEPA regulates nitrates in drinking water to protect public health.  The 
greatest use of nitrates is in fertilizer.  Stoughton Utilities has never exceeded the MCL 
established by USEPA. 
  
Standard Specifications for Water Utility Construction:  Staff reviewed and provided 
comments to Strand Associates regarding company construction specifications and our 
special provisions section.  This document is used by developers installing new water and 
sanitary sewer mains located in our service territory and insures quality material is used 
and the installation of the pipes follow strict procedures.  Standards of material and 
construction installations not only insure quality material, it insures the installations will 
last under normal circumstances 60-100 years before needing replacement. 
   
2015 Hydrant Painting: Giant will be onsite again this year.  This is the third consecutive 
year Giant has received the contract for our hydrant painting.  The tentative schedule is 
to have the hydrants painted before our Syttende Mai Celebration. 
  
Water Main Break: We had a water main break the second week of this month located 
on Giles St.  This break happened on one of the warmest days so far this year.  Frost is 
still approximately three and a half feet deep in the street and was soft and easy to 
breakup. 
  
Water Lateral Leaks:  We had one on Johnson St. following a lead service replacement 
by a contractor. 
  
Frozen Water Services: We had two water service lateral freeze-ups this month.  Both 
services froze between the water meter setting and the outside wall inside the basement 
of each home as a result of poor ventilation and heating in the basements. 
  







Lead and Copper Sampling:  60 residential lead and copper samples were taken 
throughout the city of Stoughton this month and were sent off to Northern Lakes for 
analysis. 
 
Corrosion Study:  Strand and Associates completed a follow-up report requested by 
WDNR staff suggesting we compare the hardness of our water to the City of Madison.  
This report should satisfy DNR staff and all indications lead us to believing our lead and 
copper sampling will be reduced to 30 sample sites once every three years by the end of 
2015. Our first submittal wasn’t received as expected and will require us to complete 
additional studies and reports.  But, before we start working on the next round of requests, 
we thought it would be wise to meet with WDNR staff before proceeding and make sure 
we submit what is necessary to comply with the order. 
 


Light Emitting Diode (LED) Street Light Fixtures: We are down to our last few High 
Pressure Sodium (HPS) fixtures and have placed an order for our first LED street light 
fixtures through the WPPI Energy online catalog.  Typical lead times for LED fixtures are 
approximately 6 weeks.  We are also working WPPI and the Wisconsin Public Service 
Commission (WPSC) on reviewing and approving our proposed rate structure before 
deploying the new fixtures. 
 
2018 Bridge Replacement: Strand and Associates is working on plans and 
specifications for a bridge replacement on CTH N, west of Brickson Rd.  We provided 
them with existing utility infrastructure information for the area. 
 
2015 Annual Dielectric Testing:  Diversified Inspection of Phoenix, Arizona was hired 
this year to perform our dielectric testing of our five aerial devices.  This testing is crucial 
for insuring the integrity of our equipment when it comes in contact with energized lines. 
 
Service Truck Order:  We placed an order for a new Chevrolet Colorado pickup truck 
from the 2015 state contract.  We should take delivery in early June.  This service truck 
will be used by our electric metering staff. 
 
Hybrid Bucket No. 12:   This truck was brought down to DUECO for service.  The hybrid 
system failed and was repaired under warranty.  This truck was out of service for several 
days. 
 
Hybrid Bucket No. 16:  Shims on the bucket lift wore out and broke loose.  The repairs 
were able to be completed on site by a DUECO traveling mechanic.  This truck was out 
of service for three days. 
 
2015 Line Clearance Work:  Crews started trimming our overhead distribution lines east 
of 4th Street.  Staff has been making good progress in the area.  We are also working with 
the Street Department on a few tree removals where we have conflicts with our overhead 
primary lines. 
 
 
 







Cold Weather Projects:  The line division took this opportunity to complete some internal 
electrical projects, updated our overhead distribution specification book, completed 
equipment and tool maintenance, and general cleaning and organizing of the shop.  Not 
necessarily the type of work everyone likes to do but necessary to keep equipment and 
operations running smoothly throughout the year. 
 
Electric Trouble Calls For The Month:  We assisted the Fire Department with a 
structure fire on N. Page Street.  Staff pulled the electric meter to safely disconnect 
electric service to the property.  Our crews responded to a power outage at Stoughton 
Trailers Plant on Veterans Rd.  The outage was internal and power was restored by 
Stoughton Trailers staff.  We disconnect a transformer at the Skaalen Home at their 
request for internal electrical repairs.  A pole mount transformer feeding Quick Stop and 
two duplexes failed was replaced with a larger transformer.  Cause of the transformer 
failure is unknown. 
   
Underground Electric Service Laterals: We had four customers in the rural service 
territory pay additional frost charges to have their electric service laterals trenched in the 
ground this month.  I can say this is not the norm and I bet in the last 10 years we haven’t 
had 4 services trenched in during the winter.  I hope this isn’t a trend.  It should also be 
noted these were all completed in the rural service territory and not within the city limits. 
  
Asphalt Sealcoating: A contract was awarded to Fahrrner Asphalt Sealers LLC. for our 
parking lot areas located at our 3 substation and Production Wells Nos. 3 and 4.  Our 
administration office and wastewater plant asphalt areas will be repaved this year and will 
be included with the Street Department projects for 2015. 
  
Job Descriptions: Four job descriptions in our Water and Planning Divisions were 
recently updated to reflect current job responsibilities.  These position descriptions will go 
to the Utilities Committee next month for review and approval and subsequent Personnel 
Committee and Common Council action. 
     
Well No. 5: Our electric transfer switch was not operating during a monthly generator test.  
Precision Drive and Control (PDC) was contacted and found the voltage regulation seen 
by the transfer switch needed adjustment and placed the generator back in service after 
completing a load bank test on the generator. 
 
Well No. 6:  Last year Well No. 6 was pulled for routine maintenance.  During this process 
the inside of the pump house gets pretty messed up from pulling the pump and column 
pipe out of the ground for inspection. Kent Thompson was able to use part of this month 
cleaning the site, touched up the walls with paint, and applied a fresh coat of paint to the 
floor in the pump house and to the walls in the chemical room.  His work turned out better 
than expected and shouldn’t need to be touched for another 7-10 years. 
 
Well No. 7:  Last year during a normal raw water collection at the well we recorded a 
higher than normal fluoride residual in the water.  This exceedance required us to report 
annually to our customers over three years the effects this exceedance could have on the 
consumer.  The WDNR recognizes this as being inconclusive and asked us to take 
another sample this year to allow us to remove the order and potential public concern. 







Consumer Confidence Report:  Annually, we are required to report to our water 
customers any exceedances we had with our water sampling and identify the affects 
those exceedances can have on the consumer.  We also take this time to report some 
notable upgrades to our water distribution system and provide some educational 
information. 
   
Conference Room Dry Kitchen/Storage Area:  Scott Gunsolus was able to do this 
project for us between his normal duties.  This project turned out great and made use of 
an area that normally collected unwanted items.  Check it out the next time you visit the 
utilities office. 
 
2015 Hydrant Paint: We have another 118 hydrants that will be painted this year.  This 
program will wrap up a program we established back in 2012 to paint hydrants that were 
on the brink of rusting through.  Future painting will be identified through our annual 
hydrant flushing program and will be scheduled when we have a minimum of 100 
hydrants.  Spot painting will be done by our own water operators on an as need basis. 
  
Water Main Break: We had a water main break this month located on Chicago St.  This 
break happened on one of the coldest days of the year and was our second water main 
break this year. 
  
Water Lateral Leaks: None reported this month. 
  
Frozen Water Services: We had our first reportable water service lateral freeze-up to a 
vacant property located on Broadway St.  The lateral actually thawed itself after the 
homeowner removed a box covering the water meter and turned up the heat inside the 
home.  By doing those two things the water service thawed itself over a 24-hour time 
period. 
  
Lead and Copper Sampling:  We have been working with the WDNR staff on 
establishing additional sample sites to comply with our new sampling requirements for 
2015.  Previously, we sampled 30 sites once every three years.  Since we had three 
higher than normal samples collected last year, we are now required to sample 60 sites 
two times a year.  Our first round of sampling will be mid-March.  As you can imagine, we 
have a lot of work ahead of us educating our new sampling partners and making sure 
they collect the samples correctly, on time, and include all the reporting requirement for 
collecting the samples. 
 
WASTEWATER DIVISION – Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor Brian G. 
Erickson 
 
2015 Sanitary Sewer projects:  This year’s projects are out for bid.  We are assuming 
these projects will move forward if pricing is within budget.  
 
2015 Sanitary Sewer System Maintenance: Staff has started cleaning the sanitary sewer 
system.  I anticipate staff to be working in the collection system for a majority of the 
summer.  
 







Cody Sailing has accepted another job and will be leaving us the first of April.  We wish 
him the best in his new job.  We are hoping to have someone hired and on board by May. 
 
Yearly calibrations of our gas meters, flow meter and backflow preventers were 
completed in March. 
 
Wastewater Plant back-up generator switchgear program was updated.  We have had an 
issue with the new gear when it was installed last summer.  The manufacture was on site 
and updated the computer program.  The equipment seems to be working as it was 
designed for.  
 
Employee Performance Reviews:  I completed my employee’s reviews with positive 
feedback.  
 
Phil Linnerud continues running extra analytical test for Strand Associates to assist with 
our long range strategic plan.  Acute and chronic toxicity test results came back with 
almost 100% passing in all fields.  This test is extremely sensitive to any toxins in the 
wastewater stream.  Phil is also working with our sludge contractors on sludge analysis 
and amounts for this spring’s sludge hauling.   
 
Painting Projects:  Staff continues painting buildings and piping throughout the plant.  This 
work will continue to take place most of the spring. 
 
Hazardous Energy Control Manuel: Phil Linnerud is working on updating the manual. With 
the completion of our electrical project, the manual needs to be updated to comply with 
our written Hazardous Energy Control Program.  
 
Collection System:    We continue to work with our GIS Technician Louis Rada on our 
televising records with our GIS mapping database.    
 
Capacity, Management, Operation & Maintenance (CMOM) Program:  I continue to 
compile data for this program.  The WDNR will be holding training seminars throughout 
the year to assist permit holders with putting together this program.  There is a substantial 
amount of data required for the program that must be in place by July of 2016.   
 
Staff continues to work on plant maintenance projects throughout the plant.  
 
The wastewater treatment facility processed an average flow of 0.849million gallons per 
day with a monthly total of 26.327million gallons.  
 
ENERGY SERVICES SECTION OF THE PLANNING DIVISION – Stoughton Utilities 
and WPPI Energy Energy Services Representative (ESR) Cory Neeley: 
 


 We have a new potential solar (net-metered) customer.  This is on Quam Drive. 


 I met with Stoughton Trailers Energy Team and we discussed a few energy 
efficiency projects that they were planning this year.  They have two projects that 
could be sizable and amount to large incentives from Focus on Energy. 







 I followed up with Stoughton Garden Center to discuss the lighting project they 
completed earlier this year through the Shared Savings program. They had not yet 
received their Focus on Energy incentive.  Gary was very appreciative of the 
program and called it a great benefit to living in Stoughton. 
 


 Uniroyal is continuing to move on lighting and has completed their compressor 
project. 
 


 Stoughton Area School district is in the process of creating an Energy Team. 
 


 I responded to a rate inquiry from a private contractor; Summit Energy Services 
who is representing the Dollar General and LDS in Stoughton.  Basically the 
company works for these companies to ask the utility if there is a chance that they 
could be on a better rate for their electric service. I basically said that they were on 
the right rate and we were unaware of any savings potential for them to switch 
because we don’t collect TOU information for them.  The company asked what the 
impacts of an impending rate case and I said that we do not know the impact of 
the rate case will be until it has been decided what the rates will be. 
 


 I worked with Cummins to monitor energy usage at their facility with a data logger. 
  


Dates in Stoughton 


2,5,10,16,20,24,26,27 


 
SAFETY COMPLIANCE SECTION OF THE PLANNING DIVISION – Stoughton 
Utilities and Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin South Central Region Safety 
Coordinator Andrew Paulson: 
 


ACCOMPLISHMENTS 


 


1. Training 


a. Conducted Work Zone Safety Training 


 


2. Audits/Inspections 


a. Field Inspection – Linemen – Tree Trimming – Flaggers 


b. Field Inspection – WW - Flushing 


c. Utility Walkthrough 


d. WWTP Walkthrough 


e. Fire Extinguisher Inspections 


 


 







3. Compliance/Risk Management 


a. Reviewed BBP Exposure Control Written Program 


b. Reviewed SPCC Plan 


c. Reviewed Audiograms 


d. Completed MEUW Safety Award 


e. Continued to update SDS’s 


 


GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 


 


1. Training 


a. Conduct BBP Training 


b. Conduct Emergency Response Training 


 


2. Audits/Inspections 


a. Field Inspections 


b. Water Plant Walkthrough 


c. Eye Wash Stations 


d. BBP Kits 


 


3. Compliance/Risk Management 


a. Review Emergency Action Plan 


b. Review SDS’s for Updates 


 


RSC was at Stoughton Utilities on March 4th, 11th, 18th and 25th. 
 
Please visit us on our website at www.stoughtonutilities.com to view current events, 
follow project schedules, view meeting notices, packets and minutes, review our 
energy conservation programs, pay your utilities bill via the internet, or to learn 
more about your Stoughton Utilities Electric, Wastewater and Water services.  
 


 
 
 


 



http://www.stoughtonutilities.com/



